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To Our Feliow
Shareholders

At Central Garden & Pet we share our
consumers’ passion for beautifying their
homes and caring for their pers. We remain
:focu‘sed on innovating, developing and
bringing to market award winning branded
;products that enhance cutdoor living
‘experiences and deepen the bond between
owners and their pets. Our products are
fun, healthy, easy to use and provide
superior performance.

We are pleased with the Company’s .
performance in fiscal 2006. We dellvered
‘on our two broad objectives - to strengfhen

I . .
and build our brands and to improve our

Iopef:ating effectiveness and efficiency. We
Ireported record financial results for the;

fourth consecutive year. Additionally, we
xmproved operating margins by 110 basms
points and our return on invested capltal

by 90 basis points. :
STHENGTHEN & BUILD BRANDS

In fiscal 2006, sales of our branded products
lncreased 23% through a combination Of
mterna] growth and strategic acqu151t10ns

Core to our internal growth objectives is our
dedlcatlon to innovation, quality and service.
]n fiscal 2006, once again, we achieved ‘our
goal of delivering approximately 15% of
branded product sales from products
launched within the past 24 months. Qur
iretail partners and consumers continue to

recognize our accomplishments. In fiscal

William E. Brown

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Glenn W. Novotny
PRESIDENT &
GHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

2906, we received approximately 20 awards
for new product innovation and superior
service — the most in our history.

Complementing our internal growth
objectives is our disciplined acquisition
strategy. In fiscal 2006, we made a number
of strategic acquisitions that strengthened
our brands, broadened our platform and
gave us even greater access to leading tech-
nologies. These acquisitions will add over
$200 million in sales on an annualized basis.

The largest of the acquisitions was Farnam,
the leading North American brand in equine
care and growing rapidly in companion pet
supplies. We are in the process of integrating
Farnam into a new Central Life Sciences
strategic business unit, or SBU. The
backbone of this SBU is a leading position in
efficacious, active ingredient-based products
that provide superior care for horses, dogs
and cats and other animals. Breeder’s
Choice is another acquisition that we are
particularly excited about. It offers ultra-
premium dog and cat food and related
treats, featuring the brands Pinnacle,
Avoderm and Active Care, Its products are
targeted toward the high-end consumer and
contain all-natural ingredients such as trout,
salmon, free-range chicken, avocado and
other wholesome foods that provide distinct
health benefits to companion animals.

Gardening is the number |
leisure time activity in the U.S.
with 80% housebold partrcrpat:on.
The Garden Group at Central is
focused on developing innovative,
easy to use, bighly efficacious
products. We are a leading
provider of grass seed, wild bird
feed, insect, weed and other
garden control products and
decorative outdoor pottery.




The Pet industry accounts for
538 biﬂion|in annual retail sales -

63% U.S. households own at
least one pét and nearly 50% of
bouseholds: own multiple pets.
The Pet Group at Central is

focused onldeveloping innovative
products and ultra-premivm,

all-natural food and treats.

We are a leading provider of

aquariums Lnd related supplies,

products fo:r birds and small
animals, dog & cat food, supplies

and treats, 'insect controf and

other am’mz:z[ health products
for comparfion animals and the
equine industry.

On the Garden side, we strengthened our
branded products portfolio and access to
technology through two strategic acquisi-
tions: Ironite and Tech Pac. The Ironite
brand is a leading all-natural mineral
supplement for gardens and lawns that
improves the health and appearance of
plants. Tech Pac’s leading brands include
Sevin, a broad based insecticide, and Over
N OQut, a leading fire ant control product.
Our ownership interest in Tech Pac also
strengthens our access to next generation
active ingredient technologies.

Supporting our brands, we increased our
consumer outreach efforts in fiscal 2006.

We built upon the success of our “Power of
Three” initiative — designed to benefit our
brands, drive traffic to our retail partmers
and provide specific incentives for consumers
to use our products. In 2006, we sponsored
Dog Day at the Ballpark events with selected
Major League baseball teams. These fun
events encouraged owners to bring their
dogs to the ballpark and helped build our
brand awareness with consumers. We also
signed NASCAR racing legend Richard Petty
and gardening expert P. Allen Smith to serve
as brand spokespeople. Finally, we continued
to sponsor numerous key community and
socially responsible programs such as

Tony La Russa’s Animal Rescue Foundation
and Dogs for Diabetes.

QPERATING EFFECTIVENESS
& EFFICIENCY )

Last year, we announced our target to
achieve an operating margin of 10% by
fiscal 2008. In fiscal 2006, operating
margins expanded 110 basis points to 8.4%.
We believe we are on track to achieve the
10% margmm objective.

We are improving our effectiveness and
efficiency by creating strategic business units.
Our SBUs are intended to simplify the

interaction between us and our retailers by
creating one point of contact for each oper-
ating unit. Additionally, we are combining
the research & development functions
within each SBU to generate integrated
product solutions within category. Finaily,
by consolidating functions and facilities
wherever possible, we are enhancing
operating leverage within our business.

In support of our effectiveness and efficiency
efforts, we have embarked on a new infor-
mation technology strategy that includes the
implementation of SAP as our enterprise
platform. We believe that our new SAP
platform will provide us with a common
platform to support and empower future
growth and that our disciplined four-year
roll-out will mitigate risk.

FINANCIAL & OPERATING SUMMARY

In fiscal 2006, net sales increased 17% to
$1.62 billion; operating income increased
37% to $137 million; and net income
increased 22% to $66 million translating
into earnings per fully diluted share of
£2.85, an increase of 14% over fiscal 20035.
Sales from existing operations increased
approximately 7% while acquisitions
contributed $174 miilion to sales. Our
return on invested capital increased 20 basis
points to 9.3% and return on equity was
10.3%. Our objective is to improve these
returns year after year.

Garden Products

Qur Garden products segment produced
strong results. Net sales increased 8% to
$802 million. Garden branded products
sales increased 12% to $659 million:
Acquisitions contributed $29 million in
net sales. Operating income increased
22% to $57 million.

Pet Products

Qur Pet products segment produced
another solid year. Net sales increased 28%
to $819 million. Pet branded products
sales increased 35% to $665 million.



One of the significant acquisitions

we completed in Fiscal 2006 was

of the Farnam Companies. Founded
in 1946, Farnam is one of the nation’s
leaders'in the animal health care
industry. Farnam has a leading

share in the Horse Health Care
segment and rapidly growing HORg}-"S-]‘:IOH{SE
g )

L

shares in the Pet Health Care,

Professional Veterinary and
Econontic Animal segments.
To learr more about Farnam,
Please visit wwiw farnam.com.

®
e

Breeder’s Choice Pet Foods is another
of the acquisitions we completed during
the year. Breeder’s Choice Pet Foods
has been making high quality, ultra-
premium dog & cat food and treats

for over 60 years. Breeder’s Choice
leading brands are focused on providing
the highest level of nutrition for pets,
including all-natural, allergy-free
alternative ingredients.

Visit wiew.breeders-choice.com to
discover the specific food that meets
your pet’s dietary needs.
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INNOVATION, WE CONTINUE
TO DEVELOP THE LEADING
PRODUCTS THAT HELP
CONSUMERS BEAUTIFY THEIR
OUTDOOR LIVING SPACES
AND HELP PROMOTE HEALTHY
INTERACTION BETWEEN

PETS AND THEIR OWNERS,

Acquisitions contributed $146 million in CONCLUDING OBSERVATIONS
net sales. Operating income increased

5% to 105 million. Looking ahead, we will continue to pursue

our core strategy to drive sales and profis.
OTHER DEVELOPMENTS We believe our business is on the right

. . course to continue to deliver meaningful
Early in fiscal 2006, the Board of Directors . ) B
. - innovative products to our customers,
authorized a $100 million share repurchase . .
. more effective focus for our retailers and
program. By fiscal year-end, we had used .
superior returns to our shareholders. We
approximately $10 mllhon to repurchase

approximately 241 000  Shares. We expect to arep ass:lonate about our products, people
and business.

continue to opportunistically repurchase

shares in the open market. In September, We would like to thank all of our employees

we received shareholder approval for the for their dedication, commitment and

creation of a new class of stock. This Class positive attitude. These special attributes

A Common Stock has the same artributes as determine who we are as a company and

the current common stock except that it  has who we will be in the future. We are

no voting rights. This new 7 class of stock fortunate to have the vision, the people ]\

provides us addmona] flexibility to-pursue and the attitude to accomplish great things

T
large acqulsltlons without diluting the voting  for our customers and shareholders.
power ¢ of ur current shareholders. We
would Tike to thank all of odr-shareholders

‘ who supported this proposal. Finally, we Sincerely, X
Central Garden & Pet continues to would also llke:O recolgmze and tha[.]k . W
identify ,-m,{:wm»m new ways to/  brooks “Sonny” Pennington and Neil Pincus /4...,.—..
reach consumers. In Fiscal 2006,/ for their years of dedication to the business.

Glenn W. Novotny

| : SRt
Central expanded its relationship Both Sonny and Neil have assumed new
with several Major Leagiie Baseball

teams; continued tobe a major consulting roles within the organization
supporter o of/ToTay f.a Russa’s after distinguished careers in Garden
Animal Rescue Foundation and operations, We are thankful for their past . /—%
Dogs for Dmbcrcs and teamed . ,&%—- .
with NASCAR racing legend, contributions and look forward to new _
“The King"| Richard Petty. opportunities together. William E. Brown
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

PRESIDENT & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER




// CENTRAL

Garden & Pet
CENTRAL GARDEN & PET COMPANY

- 1340 Treat Blvd,, Suite 600
Walnut Creek, California 94597

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Monday, February 12, 2007, 10:30 A.M.

To THE STOCKHOLDERS:.

Notice is hereby given that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Central Garden & Pet Company will be
held at the LAFAYETTE PARK HOTEL, 3287 Mt. Diablo Boulevard, Lafayette, California, on Monday,
February 12, 2007, at 10:30 A.M. for the following purposes:

(1) To elect seven directors; and

(2) To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting.

Only stockholders of record on the books of the Company as of 5:00 P:M., December 15, 2006, will be
entitled to vote at the meeting and any adjournment thereof. A complete list of the Company’s stockholders

entitled to vote at the meeting will be available for examination by any stockholder for ten days prior to the
meeting during normal business hours at the Company’s pnncnpal executive offices at 1340 Treat Blvd., Suite’

600, Walnut Creek, California.

Dated: December 29, 2006

By Order of the Board of Directors

Stuart W. Booth, Secretary

STOCKHOLDERS ARE REQUESTED TO MARK, DATE, SIGN AND RETURN THE
‘ENCLOSED PROXY AS PROMPTLY AS POSSIBLE,




CENTRAL GARDEN & PET COMPANY

e o ot ¢t . 1340 Treat Blvd., Suite 600 s T LS L
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... . PROXYSTATEMENT - - s..  ..osi -0

| The enclosed proxy is solicited by the Boar_d of Directors of Central Garden & Pet Company (the 1+ -
“Company?).to be used at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders on February 12;2007 (the “Annual Meeting”), for
the purposes set forth in the foregoing notice. This.proxy statement and the enclosed form of proxy wege first -, - :
sent to stockholder's on or about January 4, 2006. o

-+ If the enclosed form of proxy is properly srgned and returned the shares represented thereby,wrll be voted at
the ‘Annual Meetmg in accordance with the mstructrons specified thereon. If the proxy does not specnfy how the '
shares represented, thereby are to be voted the proxy will be voted as recommended by the Board of Directors.
Any stockholder signing a prOxy in the form accompanymg this proxy statement has the power to revoke it prior
to or at the Annual Meetmg A proxy may be revoked by a writing delivered to the Secretary of the Compz}ny . |
statmg that the'proxy is revoked bya subsequent proxy signed by the person who signed the earher proxy, or by
attendance at the Anriual Meetmg and votmg in person ' :

..
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Only stackhoiders of record on the books of the Company as of 5: 00 P M December 15, 2006, will be
entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. ol ‘

L [ L. "

. As of the close of business on December 15, 2006, there were outstanding 22,163,158 shares of Common . .
Stock of the Company, enntled to one, vote per share, and 1,652, 262 shares of Class B Stock of the Company, ,
entitled to the lesser of ten votes per share or 49% of the total votes cast. Holders of Common Stock and Class B .
Stock will vote together on all matters presented to the stockholders for their vote or approval at the meeting, '
including the election of drrectors cat

The holders of a majonty of the outstandmg shares of the stock of the Company, present in person or by
proxy, will constitute a quorum for the transaction of busmess at the Annual Meeting or any adjournment thereof.
Votes cast by proxy or in person at the Annual Meetmg will be tabulated by the election inspector appointed for
the meeting and will determme whether or not a quorum is present. The election inspector will treat abstentions
and broker non-votes as shares that are present and entitled to vote for purposes of determining the presence of a
quorum but as unvoted ‘for purposes of determmmg the approval of any matter submitted to the stockholders for a
vote, : o .

’ L LI U
L)

With regard to the electlon of drrectors votes may be cast “For” or “Withhold Authority” for each nominee;
" votes that are withheld w1ll be excluded enttrely from the vote and will have no effect. The directors shall be
elected by a plurality of the votes of the shares present 1n person or Tepresented by proxy at the meeting and
entitled to vote on the election of directors. ‘Asa result, if you withhold your authority to vote for any nominee,
your vote will not count for or against the nominee, nor wili a broker “non-vote™ affect the outcome of the
election.

¥ 0!




“,~ + ? ELECTION OF DIRECTORS ¢ ‘. "+%".

The persons named below are nominees for director to serve until the next annual meeting of stockholders
and until their successors shall have been elected.. The' nominees are all members of the present Board of
Directors. In the absence of instructions to the contrary, shares represented by proxy will be voted for the election
of all such nominees to the Board of Directors. If any nominee is.unable or unwilling to be a candidate for the

- office of director at the date of thé Annual Meeting, or any adjournment thereof, the proxies will vote for such
substitute nominee as shall be designated by thie proxies. Management has no reason to believe that any of the
nominees will be unable or unwilling to serve if elected: Set forth below is certain information concemmg the

nominees which is based on data furnished by them.- . .= .~ REPEELIE LA SRR

o B , ) : - Served as
: . . Business Experience During Past Director

Nominees foi Director o Age' .~ .. .Five Years and Other Information ;- * * .. - " Since
William E. B'rown ....... e 65 Chalrman of thé Board since 1980 From 1980 to June 1980__:'
e " 2003:MF: Brownalso sérved' as Chlef Executwe Officer’ "

4T L R T & 110 Company . : “

M_;,*ou'pr"}" N ..

¢ g K AGIEANTWINOVOIY ool 59 Chref Executive Offlcer srnce June 2003 and Presrdem ... 1990
since 1990. Prior to, 1990 Mr Novotny was with, ,

~ Weyerhaeuser Corporanon in a variety of capacities.
Brooks M. Pennington HI . .. .... .. 52 -.Director of Special Projects for the Company since 1998

October 1, 2006. From 1994 through September 30,
2006, Mr. Pennington was the President and Chief
Executive Officer of Pennington Seed, Inc., a business.,
which was acquired by the'Company in 1998,

John B. Balousek .......... L 61 Mr. Balousek served as President and Chief Operating = 2001
' ’ ) Officer of Foote, Cone & Beldmg Communications, onc =~ :

of the largest global ‘advertising and communications'
networks, from 1991 ustil- 1996 and'as Chairman and
CEO of True North Technologies, a'digital and
interactive services company affiliated with True North
Commumcatlons in 1996. Mr. Balousek co-founded and,
" from. 1998't0’ 1999, served as an Executive Vice -
Presrdent of PhotoAlley.com, a San Francisco company -

' markeung photographrc equrpment ‘supplies and’ "
services online. Prior to 1991, he held various senior '
executive management’ posmons with Foote, Cone & -
Belding Communications and positions in brand
management with the Procter & Gamble Company He
also currently serves as a drrector at web, com, an
internet’ hoslmg and business services- company, and
Aptrmus lnc a performance based lead generatlon
network oo

ca T L A L . ’ e . P IR LT
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o e : S s 'E Served as

. «+ « . Business Expenence During Past Director
Nominees for Director . Age ) Five Years and Other Information Since
David N. Chichester ............. 61 Partner of Tatum LLC, a financial and technology - -, 2002
leadership services firm, since 2004. Mr. Chichester )
.+ . served as the Chief Financial Officer of Starbucks

. - Coffee Japan, Ltd. from 2003 to 2004 and the Senior ..

- . .+ . Vice President Finance of Starbucks Corporation from,,

2001 to 2003. Mr. Chichester served as Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer at Hecklers ... -,

Online, Inc. during 2000 and at Red Roof Inns, Inc. from
, » 1 1996 to 1999. Prior to these positions, he held senior. .

' e oo . .~ management positions in finance at Integrated Health e
. Services, Inc.; Marriott Corporation and General Electric

Credit Corporation, and served as Vice President- . )

¢ o v Investment Banking of Warburg Paribas Becker o

. . »! ... " - .Incorporated and Assistant Vice President at The First ~ - - * + *

Lo 7 National Bank of Chicago. He has also servedonthe - 2 ./

- . *»_. ™ boards of other public and privaté companies. L e

Alfred A. Piergallini *.. 770 . P ,.60° ‘Consultant with Désert Trail Consultmg, a marketing- 2004
' ' o o " consulting organization, since January 2001 and ' '
7T Chairmar of Wisconsin Cheese Group, Inc., a specialty "
- L cheese company, since January 2005. From December
, 1999 to Decembeér 2001, Mr. Piergallini served as _the
- T © ' Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of
Novartis Consumer Health Worldwide, a manufacturer; -
developer and marketer of health-related products and
from February 1999 to December 1995 Mr. Plergalllm
served as the Premdenl and Chief Executive Off" icer of .
‘Novartis Consunier Health North Ameérica, From 1989 to
1999, Mr. Piergallini held séveral sénior management o
positions with Gerber Products Company, including, at =~ * "% .
various times, the offices of Chairman of the Board, .
" President and Chief Executive Officer. He also currently
_servesasa director of Comerica Incorporated, a financial _
" services company. .

. ,
-t
o . ot s

1 A +

Bruce A. Westphal . ... .. e ~ 66 Chairman of Bay Alarm Company, a security systems 1999
company, since 1984. Mr. Westphal is the President of :
Balco Properties, a real estate development and
© 7 . managemént company. Mr. Westphal previously served .
T - - as Chairman of InReach Internet; 'a provider of internet =+ '«
S - <1 .t o .t sérvices. Mr. Westphal was also Chairman of PacWest REERE
: ' ‘ Telecomm, Inc: from’ 1994 t01998.*° -

.
= h ]

The Board of Directors unammously recommends that stockholders vote “FOR” each of the dlrector
nominees listed above T o . . : . it

o+
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o FURTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING
' L THE BOARD OF DlRECTORS

Board Independence ' ' ST

A

Upon consideration of lhe ériteria and Fequirements regarding director mdependence set forth in NASDAQ

Rules 4200 and 4350, the Board of Directors has determined that each of Mr. Balousek, Mr. Chichester,
Mr. Piergallini and Mr Westphal méet the snmdards of mdcpendence established by the NASDAQ.

Committees of the Board -
During fiscat 2006, the Board of Directors held 12 meetings and acted by unanimous. written consent on a
number of occasions. The Company has an Audit Committee and a Compensation Commitiee but does not have

a nominating committee or a committee'performing the functions of a nominating committee.

" The members of the Audit Committee are Bruce A. Westphal(Chairman), John B. Balousek and David N.
Chichester. The Company’s Board of Directors has determined that David N. Chichester qualifies as an audit
committee financial expert as set forth in Section 401(h) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and he is independent as such term is defined in the NASDAQ Rules.
Among the functions performed by the Audit Committee are to make recommendations to the Board of Directors,
with respect to the engagement or discharge of the Company s independent registered public accounting firm, to
review with the independent registered public accountmg firm the plan and results of the auditing engagement, to
review the Company’s system of internal financial and accounlmg controls, to review the financial statements of
the Company, 1o discuss the Company’s accounting policies, and to make inquiries into matters within the scope
of its functions. The Board of Directors has adopted,a written Audit Committee Charter The Audit Committee
held 12 meetings dunng fiscal 2006 ..

The members of.the Compensation Committee are John.B. Balousek (Chairman), Bruce A. Westphal and
Alfred A. Piergallini. Among the functions performed by theé Compensation Committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board of Directors concemmg [the compensation of the key management employees of
the Company and to administer the Company’s equny incentive plan. The Compensation Committee held nine
meetings during fiscal 2006.

1-

Attendance at Meetings "
During fiscal 2006, there were no members of the'Board of Directors who atiended fewer than seventy-five
percent of the meetings of the Board of Directors and all committées of the Board on which they served.
“ . - R P R oo

Compensation of Dlrectors e ‘-

r

In fiscal 2006, members of the Board of Directors who are not employees of the Company were paid
directors’ fees consisting of $25,000 per year and $1,200 for each Board meeting attended. The chairs of the
Audit Committee and the Compensation, Committee each received annual retainer fees of $12,000. Directors who
attended meetings of the Audit Commiitee or. Compensation Committee received an additional $1,200 for each
meeting not held on the same day as a Board meetmg ’

. v3 > - IR

Each dlrector receives $SOO for pammpauon in each lelephomc meeting of the Board of Dlrectors the Audit
Comrmittee or the Compensation Committee of less than three hours and $1,000 for participation in meetings of
three hours or more. The Company pays non-employee directors $1,000 for each day spent attending subsidiary

and division management meetings and conducting plant and facility visits.

Under the Nonemployee Director Equity Incentive Plan, Messrs. Balousek, Chichester, Westphal and
Piergallini were each granted on the date of the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders options to purchase

4




2,896 shares of Commin Stock (dctcrmmed by d1v1clmg $140,000 by the fair market value of a “Share of Cormon

Stock on the date of the 2006 Annual Meetlng) and i restrlcted stock grant for 31 1 shares w1th a market value of
$15,000. + - ! ST

Set forth below is a summary of the compensation paid during fiscal 2006 to those of the Company’s
directors who are not also executive officers whose compensation is disclosed in the Summary Compensation
Table on page 7.

"DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE

' S . ' "Change in 2
,- L . VTR -, - Pension "
o L D - " Valueand .
' ‘ 5 ‘ 1Y Non-Equity Nonqualiﬁed oot
v Fees’ v Incentive .. - .Deferred. . : .
Famed Stock ©  “Option’ Plan Compen- Al Other
or Paid Awards Awards Compen- sation Compen- .
Name \ ' Ao t’ ;. in Cash- (1) . (2) Tsation . Earnings- - sation , , Total($)
John B. Balousek *..7.... .. .7 "$74,300" $15 000" $31,624 - — L= - 78120924
David N. Chichester ....... .. $67.800 $15,000 $31,624 s — _— $114.424
Alfred A. Piergallini .......... $57,800 $15,000 $31,624 — — = $104,424
Bruce A. Westphal ........... $64300 $15000 $31624 ~ — — — 1o

{1) As of the end of fiscal 2006, Mr. Balousek heldl 3,384 shares, Mr. Chichester held 1,663 shares,
Mr, Piergallini held 2,838 shares and Mr. Westphal held 9,084 shares.

(2) Represents the grant date fair value estimated uéing the Black-Scholes option valuation model. As of the end
of fiscal 2006, Mr. Balousek, Mr. Chichester, Mr. Piergallini and Mr. Westphal each held options o
purchase 8,153 shares, 5,457 of which were then exercisable.

Director Nominations

Due to the limited size of the Board, the Board has determined that it is not appropriate at this time to
establish a separate nominating committee. As such, the Board as a whole fulfills the function of nominating
additional directors. A majority of the members of the Board have been determined by the Board to be
independent under the standards established by NASDAQ. At a minimum, the Chairman of the Board, as well as
at least two independent directors, must interview any qualified candidates prior to nomination. Other directors
and members of management will also interview each candidate as requested by the Chairman. Once potential
candidates have successfully progressed through the interview stage, the independent directors will meet in
executive session to consider the screened candidates. All director nominees must be selected, or recommended

for the Board’s selection, by a majority of the independent directors. .

A majority of the members of the Board must be independent directors as defined in NASDAQ Rule
4200(a)(15). When considering potential director candidates, the Board also considers the candidate’s
knowledge, experience, integrity, leadership, reputation and ability to understand the Company’s business. In
addition, all director nominees must possess certain core competencies, some of which may include experience in
consumer products, logistics, product design, merchandising, marketing, general operalions, strategy, hurnan
resources, technology, media or public relations, finance or accounting, or experience as a Chief Executive
Officer or Chief Financial Officer.

The Board will consider any director candidate recommended by security holders, provided that the

candidate satisfies the minimum qualifications for directors as established from time to time by the Board. To be

considered, stockholders must submit recommendations to the Company’s secretary for consideration by the
Board no later than 120 days before the annual meeting of stockholders. To date, the Board has not received any
recommended nominees for consideration at the Annual Meeting from any non-management stockholder or
group of stockholders that beneficially owns five percent or more of the Company’s voting stock.

5




When the need arises, the Company has engaged and intends to conunue to engage independent search firms
and consultants to identify potential dlrector nominees and assist the Board in identifying a diverse pool of .. "

qualified candldates and in evaluating and pursuing individual candidates at the direction of the Chairman of the
Board.

) v , s . NP S '] L

- All of the nominees included on this year’s proxy card are directors $tanding for re-election. .

Stockholder Communications with Directors , _ S
The Board welcomes, commumcatlons from the Company s stockholders. Stockholders may send
commumcauons to the BoaId or to any director in particular, c/o Central Garden & Pet Company, 1340 Treat
Blvd., Suite 600, Walnut Cl_'eek California 94597. Any correspondence addressed to the Board or to any director
care of the Company’s ofﬁces is forwarded by the Company to the addressee without review by management.

The Company encourages but does not requlre, the members of its Board of Dlreclors to attend its annual

- X . g

[ o
-
e




- w. ¢ EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION - . . |

’ Compensatnon of. Executwe Ofﬁcers

H
Set forth below is. the compensauon paid durmg ﬁscal 2004 2005 and 2006 to the Company’s Chref

Executrve Officer and the five other most highly compensated executive ofﬁcers of the Company who were
executrve officers on September 30,2000. . Pt . .

L ' SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE:

Boors 0T tetett et s 2 o Long-Term-
‘ - Annual Compensanon Compensation Awards
I Co Fisc:l| o S LSS glher Annual  Restricted * . Securities’  All Other
Name and Principal Position , :° "~ Year  Salary, ‘. Bonus ompfln)sa m?n Awsam‘(z) %',',‘:f{,',ﬁ}',}? .C:a'?i?,;n‘
Glenn W. Novotny .. 0. .....7. 2006 :$700,000- (3} '  '$3,506(5) $1,670,000(6): ~25.000 - $ 3,750(4)
President and Chzef Executrve 2005 $659,410 $500,000 =~ . — Sty g T < 24,000 $ 4,200(4)
Officer e L |2004, $629192 $410000 o= T 25000,.8,02,375(4)
William E. Brown ... . i |2006° $409 994 - @ T _14 000 “$ 2,375(4)
Chairman =~ * = ' 2005 $409,994 $270000(7) T L 14,000 $ 2,375(4)
A e 112004 $409,994 $260,000 - —' . s— o 15,0000 § 2,375(4)
Stuart W..Booth- /... .. ... ..[2006.8360,731: . ~(3) © . — v 13,000 § 3,750(4)
Executive Vice President And. . | 2005, $347,258 $185;000-, = $.383,600(8) 10,000, $ 4,200(4)
Chief Financial Officer  ;, - | 2004 $335,789 $160, 0005 f R Tt 15,000 , §, 3,250(4)
Brooks M. Pennington 1II . ... .. 2006 $360,072 3" T~ = ' — 12000 $ 6262(10)
Chief Executive Officer of . ;{2005 $352,932 $100,000 . — ., — .9000 $ 7374(11)
Pennington Seed, Inc.(9): . . 2004 $336,134 $ 65978 . — cLornT o 13,000 $,.7.252(12) -
Bradley P. Johnson . .50 e 2 2006 $389, 423 $250 000(]4) — $ 835 OOO(IS) 120,000 . $488 ,314(16)
President of Garden v, "0, 50 2005 oo o R T — :
Division(13) =% -1 : 12004 e - 20 0 T e =T e —_
James V. Heimi ............7 | 2006 $415,193" *'(3), $ 160(5) - 15000 $ 3,750(4)
President of Pet Products’ 't ['2005 '$375,000 $215,000 *» - Boemer Y8 686(4)
-Division{17) . Sl | 2004823077 .. — o . $ 471 300(18) 20000 - . —

(1) While the named executlve ofﬁcers enjoyed cenarn perqursrles for fiscal years 2004 2005 and 2006, these
"did not exceed the lesser of $50,000 or 10% of each ofﬁcer s salary and bonus. . -+ L A

(2) As of September 30, 2006, ‘the named executive officers did not:hold any shares.of restricted: stock other
than those awarded in fiscal 2004 2005:and 2006, as disclosed in this-table. ; ,

(3) Fiscal 2006 bonus amounts have 1ii been deterininéd-as of the date of this proxy-statement. The Company
- will’ f“ lea Form 8-K w1thm £buir busmess days of the determmatlon of bonuses for ﬁscal 2006

4) Represents the matchmg contnbutron whlch the Company made on beha]f of the execuuve ofﬁcer to the
Company s 401(k): Plan .

e

(5) Consists of above- market interest paid by the Company on the execuuve s prior deferred earmngs

(6} Mr. Novotny was awarded 40,000 shares of restricted stock on November 7, 2005. The closing price of the
Company'’s unrestricted Common Stock on such date was $41.75. The shares will vest, and the restrictions
will lapse, as to 20% of the shares on November 7, 2008 and on the anniversary of that date in each of the
four years following thereaftler conditioned upon Mr. Novotny’s continued employment with the Company.
The closing price of the Company’s Common Stock as of the last trading day of fiscal 2006 was $48.26,

. which equates to a market value for the 40,000 shares (assuming such shares were unrestricted) of
$1,930,400. The restncted stock award is entitled to dividends to the extent any are paid by the Company.
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(7)  Mr. Brown was awarded a $300 000 bonus for fiscal 2005 in January. 2006 but walved recelpt of $30,000 of
such bonus.

1 LS . ’ W
(8) Mr. Booth was awarded 10, 000 shares of restncted stock on December 9, 2004 The closmg pnce of lhe
registrant’s unrestricted Common Stock on such date was $38.36. The shares will vést, and thé restfictions
will lapse as to 20% of the shatcs on Décémbér 9; 2007 and on the anniversary of that date in each of the
four years following thereafter, conditioned upon Mr. Booth’s continued employment ‘with the Company.
The closing price of the Company’s Common Stock as of the last trading day of fiscal 2006 was 3$48. 26,
which equates to a market value for the 10,000 shares (assuming such shares were unrestricted) of $482,600.

The resmcted stock award is entitled to dwrdends o the extent that any are paid by the Company.
(9) As of October 1, 2006 MI Penmngton 1s no longer an executive officer of the Company.

(10) Includes a $5,002 matchmg conmbuuon that the:Compaty made on behalf of the executive'officerto -
Pennington Seed’s 401(k) Plan and $1; 260 pard under Penmnglon Seed S proﬁt-shanng plan P

(11) Includes a $3,504 matching contribution that the' Company made on'béhalf of the'exccutive officer (0"
Pennmgton Seed’s 401(k) Plan and $3 870 paid under Penmngton Séed’s profit-sharing plan.

(12) Includes a $3,519 matching conmbutron that the Company made on behalf of the executive ofﬁcer to

o Penmngton Seed s 401(k) Plan and $3,733 pard under Pennington Seed's profit-sharing plan.

o (13) Mr. Johnson became President of the Company's Garden Group effective November 7, 2006.

(14) Pursuant to his employment agreement with the Company, Mr. Johnson was paid a transition fee of
"' $250,000 upon the comméncement of his employment with the Company. Mr.Johnson is ‘also guaranteed a
" minimum annual bonus for fiscal 2006 equal 10:$225,000, prorated from the first start of his'employment.
- - ;Mr! Johnson’s lolal bonus amount for fiscal 2006 has not yet been calculated. e

(15) Mr. Johnson was awarded 20,000 shares of resiricted stock on November 7, 2005’ The’ closmg price of the
registrant’s unrestricted Common Stock on such date was $41.75. “The 'shares will vest, and the restrictions
‘will lapse, as to 25% of.the shares on November.7, 2006 and on the anniversary of that date in each.of the .

three years following thereafter, conditioned upon Mr. Johnson’s continued employment with the Company.

The closing price of the Company’s Common Stock as of the last trading day of fiscal 2006 was $48.26,.

t

. which equates to a market value for the 20,000 shares (assuming such shares were unrestricted). of $965 200.

The restricted stock award is entitled to. d1v1dends 10, the extent that any are paid by the Company

(16) Includes'$314,099 of moving and relocation expenses and $174,215 paid as reimbursement of the increased
interest cost associated with Mr. Johnson S new pnmary resrdence in Cahfomla

L §

(17) Mr. Heim was appointed P1e51dent of the Company 5 Pet. Products Division in August 2004.-

(18) Mr. Heim was awarded 15,000 shares’of restricted stock on August 20; 2004. The closing price of the ! -
Company’s unrestricted Common-Stock on such date.was $31.42. The shares will vest, and the restrictions
.will lapse, as to 25% of the shares on August 20, 2006 and on.the annjversary of that date in each of the
three years followmg lhereafter condmoned upon Mr. Heim’s continued employment with the Company
The closmg price of the Company s Commion Stock as of the last tradmg day of ﬁsca] 2006 was $48.26 .
which eqates to a market value for the 15,000 shares (assuming suchi'shares were unrestrrcted) of $723,900.
The restricted stock award is entitled to dividends to the extent any are pard by the Company ner
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The following table sets forth certain information regarding stock options.granted during fiscal. 2006,to the,
!
executive officers named in the Summary Compensauon Table. None of such persons received awards of stock

\
e e, L 0 T A N

apprecratron nghts durmg=ﬁsca] 2006 -+

v cofa e T e T N At D
P, ,QIPjI‘IQl'\I‘_GgANT“S IIN_LA‘ST‘EI.SCAL YEAR
cowb AT A e, "“5;- " -.u"’-::‘. + ll- v BRI -‘I'I.l.'-:l
L b ) e H
Vo ' i3 Bl TR K G TH S TE RS I a0 I A
l_ . . S . r'-‘ '1,7‘" v r‘*'f i . |.t£ 1".1. ._"’ o i )
© Indmdual Grants Potential Realu.able
. 2 g Number of - _Percent of Grute fa ‘A'}l’ﬂ;e;;::sss of Sock
il'l*‘!ﬁ.‘%‘ - . r:Securities  Total Options, S I Price Appreciation for
Underlying “Grantedto* Exercise or _ ! -
. e peni oo p o Option Term(3)
, Options Employees in Base* ¢ Expiration '\ it
Name oy i Granted(#)(1)  Fiscal Year Price(2) - Date 5% .. o+ 10%.
Glenn W Novotny 40 255000 4% $45.44 . 1271472013 .$542.380  $1,299.117
William E. Brown ... _........| 14000 = 23%  $4544 12/14/2013 $303,738 S 727,505
Stuart W, Booth 13000 L2 wﬂ” g5 ‘12/14/2013 $232042 $ '675,541
BrooksM Penmngtonllll w00 T 00 1 SAS AL 121402013 - $260., 347"$ "623,576
Brad]eyP Johnson".. ... .. ... 20,000° ¢ " 33% 842,00 ¢ 11/07/201] $285 680 $ 648 111
James V. Heim .............. 15,000 2. 5% $45. 44 12/14/2013 " $325 434" $'17%,470
——h el Lt e R et ol 1 Cen B T N
(1) " The options grantlad to each%f Messrs, Novotny, Brown Booth Penmngton and Hetm vest in mcremems of
20% upon each of the third, i ourth fifth, ‘sixth and seventh anniversaries of the grant date. The opuons granted
to Mr. Johnson vest in increments of 25% upon each of the second, third, fourth and fifth anmverqanes of the
grant date. Under the terms of the Company’s 2003 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plah, the Compensatron R
. Committee retains discretion}subject to plan limits, to-modify the tem_1§,0f outstanding options. ; ., . .:
(2) All optrons were granted’ at fair market value at date of & gram e Taomn e e e
0o, ".l‘ntf ff;' fi AT ARTY SFL I

(3) Reahzable values arel reported net of the optron exercme pnce The dollar amounts under these columns are ,
“'the result of calculatlons at the 5% and 10% rales (determmed from the prlce at the date of grant,.not the .
stock’s current market value{) set by the SEC and therefore are not mtended to forecast possrble future ., ,
.apprecmtlon if any, of the ompany 8 qtock prlce Actual gams if arly, on SlOCk optton exercnses are |, .
ldependent on the future pe ormance of the Common Stock as well as the opuonholder s contmued '
employment through the ve ung penod ,The;potentla] reallzable vaIue calculatlon assumes that the
optronholder waits until the end of the opuon term lo exerc1se the optron S e e ,“ .

The following table sets forth certain information with respect 1 stock optlons exerc1sed during fiscal 2006
and. stock _options held by each [of the executive ofﬁcers named in the Summary Compensatlon Table as of
September 30,,2006. The closmg, pnce of the Company s Common Stock on the Jast trading day,of the ﬁsca] year

was$4826pershare e L VT U P A ST
AGGREGATED OPTION EXBRCISES IN LAST FrséAL YEAR'AND "
FISCAL YEAR-END OPTIONVALUE. , s -7 ..., . .= .,

b .'r: . ‘.~ G lr PR '
L i T S Nk Seivites © Value of Unexreised
Lot e e e ey el a0 U sUnderlying Unexercised In-the-Money Options -
et rode e e Shares o . i, ., Options at FY-End@#) _ »  atFY-End-_ , |

‘ Acquired On . Value . Exercisable/ = - | Exercisable/
Name Exercise(#) *  Realized *! " Unexercisable - Unexercisable - ' °
Glenn W, Novotny . ...... .[......,- ;25,000;.,;-_ 18 597,350, . 45,000/129,000 $],263,700/$3,l39,620
William E. Brown . ... 0o a]noe o 00425,000 0.8, 547,000 . «-,,15,000/28,000 - -~ $. :332,700/$175,000
Stuart W. Booth ... . i .o da oy 43 OOO s '$l 374,690 1 15, 000/38 000 $, .332,700/$531,260
Brooks M. Pennmgton Ir ... e n 32,50_0,;. . $,-v743 760 .-, . i 01’6900_0 PR 0/$1,823,040

Bradley P. Johnson ...... l sl == T =aiaeen e 0420,000 $.., 0/$125.200

James V.Heim ...........1.....

=1 e, £ 5,000/30,000° . S, -85,050/$297,450




Equity Compensatlon Plan Information .~ v R
[ ] ceoal " I, - o R T '
The followmg table gives mformanon about the Company’s Cornmon Stock lhat may be 133ued upon lhe
exercise of options, warrants and nghtq under its ex15t1ng equny compensanon pla.ns as of September 30, 2006.

r

Number of Secuntles Weighted-Average Number of Securities Remaining

: to be Issued Upon Exercise Price of Available for Future Issuance
Exercise of Outstanding Under Equity Compensation
Outstanding Options, Optlons, Warrants Plans (Excluding Securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights . . .- and Rights® - - ~ " *=Reflected'in"Column’(@))y"” ~ ~
' PER TN () (b} (c}
Equity compensauon plans approved by = T 1, R T
security,holders . .. ................ o 1,631,361(1) $35.09 3,646,559(2)
Equity Compensation plans not approved by ) o o |
security holders ©....... S el L — L — |
Totalr..«:.r .7 oL, P Lo 1631361(1) $35 09 , 3,646 559(2)
(1) Includes 1, 380 749 shares 1ssuable upon exercise of options granted under the 2003 Ommbus Equny
o ey Incentive Plan, 218 000 shares issuable upon exercise of options granted under the 1993 Ommbus EqultY
- lncenuve Plan and 32,612 sha.ree lseuable upon exercise of options granted under the Nonemployee leeCtOT

Equity Incentlve Plan. ~ e date s

IR L ] Cae e
. (2) Includes 3, 553 ,031 shares-available for,issuance, undcr lher,2003;g®mnlbus’lEquff)'?‘Incennve Plan and 93 528 T
e s TS a Vai bl 16'ﬂ_lssuance under the Nonernployee Dll’CCIOI‘ Eqmty Incentwe Plan ' ' : '

Y b

' R RS T D e . '

tor ..l.‘.. 1
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Employment Arrangements

Pursuant to a Nongualified Deferrecl Compensation Agreement dated effective as of June 19, 2002 between
Mr. Novotny and the Company, Mr. Novotny had the right (subject to the approval of the Compensation -
Committee) to defer receipt of a certain pomon of his compensation, with such deferred compensation to be
credited with investment feturn or loss in a¢cordance with the'performance of a measuring investment fund or
funds, On December 14; 2005, the Board of Directors approved the amendment and restatement of this
agreement (as so amended and restated, the “Deferred Compensanon Plan") and its expansion to additional
employees of the Company Pursuant to the Deferréd Compensanon Plan, eligible employees of the Company
including Mr. Novotny may elect to defer receipt of a pércentage of their base salary and/or incentive bonuses
until a future date or dates. Compensauon deferred pursuant to this Plan will be credited with mveqzmem return
or loss in accordance with the performance of a measuring investmerit fund or funds. =

The Company and Mr. Novotriy entered into‘a Post Employment Consulting Agreen'lent on November 7,
2005. This agreement provides that, in the event Mr. Novotny’s employmient with the' Company terminates, for a“
period of twenty-four (24) months thereaftér Mr. Novotny will be available approximately 10 hours per month to
provide strategic advice and counsel to the Company for a base fee of $5,000 per month, subjeét to adjustment.
This agreement contains conﬁdennallly and non- competmon provnslons

The Company and Mr. Booth entered into a Post Emp]oyment Consulting Agreement on December 9, 2004.
This agreement provides that, in the event Mr. Booth’s employment with the Company terminates, for a period of
twenty-four (24) months thereafter Mr.. Booth:will be available approximately 10 hours per month to provide
strategic advice and counsel 16 the Company.for a base fee of $2,500 per month, subject to adjustment. This _
agreement contains conﬁdennalny and non- competmon prov151ons o

On April 10 2006, the Company and Brooks M. Pennmglon 11 entered into a Modification and Extension
of the Employment and Non-Compete Agreement dated February' 27, 1998, as amended June 2,72003. This
modified and extended agreement provides that effective October 1, 2006, Mr. Pennington would resign as
President and CEO of Pennington'Seed, Inc. and would thereafter serve as Director of Spécial Projects for the
Company until February 28, 2011. In this position, Mr. Pennington will be expected to work a maximum-of 650 *
hours per year for a base salary of $100,000 annuaily. -
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On July 9, 2004, the Company entered into an Efiployment Agreement with James V. Heim. This
employment agreement provides that.Mr. Heim will sérve as Président.of the Company’s Pet Products division at
an annual minimum salary of $375,000. He is also eligible for an annual bonus, targeted at 50% of base
compensation with a maximum payout-of 100%, subject to his and the Company’siperformance.; Thé agreeinent
terminates in August 2007, unless terminated earlier for his dismissal with cause, death or disability. If the
Company terminates Mr. Heim without cause, he will continue to feceive the compensation-and benefits ..

provided lhereunder for the remaining term of lhe agreement

1, [T e . eyt RTEE ey, s u

On Seplember 30, 2005 the Company- entered into an Employment Agreemeént with Bradley P. johnson, .

This employment agreement, which'has a term of five years; providesithat Mr. Johnson will serve as President of

the Company’s Garden Group at an annual salary of $450,000. He is:also eligible for an annual bonus, targeted at
50% of base compensation with a maximum-payout of 100%, subject to his:and-the Company’s performance, For:
fiscal 2006, Mr. Johnson’s bonus is guaranteed at the 50% level. Mr. Johnson is also'éntitled.to a tfansition fee of. '
$250,000 payable upon his start of employment and $250,000 payable upon the first anniversary of his
employment.This transition fee is subject to repayiment if Mr.-Johnson'does hot-remain.employed by the: «
Company for at leasttwo years, The Company will also reimiburse Mr. Johnson for certain relocation expenses - .
and for a portion of the differerice in the interest costs associated with a new home in the;Walnut Creek, ' . - ..
California area and his previous. home. If the Company terminates Mr."Johnson other than for cause, he will .
continue to receive compensation and benefits for one year. If Mr.Johnsonterminates-his employment for
Material Breach (as defined in the agreement), he will continue to receive compensation and benefits for one
year. The agreement terminates in November-2010, unless terminated earlier. for his dismissal with cause; death

T P T L S A R
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or disability.© 1, ¢+ . oue

Compensati(m Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation ' e -

Messrs. Westphal Balou}sek and Pxerg'?\lllm serveg as members of lhe Compensauon Comrmttee durmg
fiscal 2006. They have no rélationship with the Company other than as directors and stockholders. Durmg ﬁscal
2006, no executive officer of the Company served as a director, or as a member of any compensation commmee
of any other for-profit entity that had an execunve officer that served on the Board of Directors or Compensauon

Committee of the Company.

Ve *

Transactions with the Company

A e

Brooks M. Pennington I11, a director of the Company standing for re-election, is a minority shareholder and
a director of Bio Plus, Inc., a company that produces granular peanut hulls. During the twelve months ended
September 30, 2006, Bio Plus, Inc.’s total revenues were approximately $5.3 million, of which approximately
$1.5 million were derived from sales to subsidiaries of the Company. As of September 30, 2006, the Company
owed Bio Plus, Inc. approximately $52,000 for such purchases. .
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~w' . AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT .
R T .=..r4 ~." .- -~ ON AUDITED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS o
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-The Audlt Comnuttec ‘'of the Board. of-Directors conmsts of the' dlrectors whosc 51gnatures appear below.
Each member of the Audit Committee is “independent™ as defined in the NASDAQ Rules and Rule 10A-3.of the,
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act") X

The Audit Committee’s general function is to oversee the Company s accountmg and financial reportmg
processes and the audits of the Company’s-financial statements, including monitoring the integrity of the
Company's financial statements; the iridependent registered public accounting firm’s qualifications - and
independence; and the performance of the Company.’s independent registered public accounting firm. Its specific
responsibilities.are $et forthiin its-charter; a copy of which was atlached as Appendlx Alto the proxy statement. for

* the 2005 ‘Annual Meeting of Stockholders:- .1- .- & % i, T T R T R

— e a e e e s .,“v.f’.‘ T e AN 4“#*&&\4. [WE R TPS-AUTY P PRIV LIF NAAPpcy Y ¥ o j

“As requued by. the,chancr the. Audlt Committee.reviewed the Company's audited financial statements for
fiscal 2006 and met with management, as well as with representatives of Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm, to discuss:the financial statements. The Audit Committee also
discussed with representatives of Deloitte & Touche LLP the matters required to be discussed by Statement on.
Audumg Standards 61,.Communication with Audit Committees. - . - . + . .

S T R A o
+ I addluon the ‘Audit Committee dlscussed with representatives of Delmtte & Touche LLP thelr ‘

independence from management and the Company, including the matters in the written disclosures required by

Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1, Independence Discussions with Audit Committees.

Based on these discussions, the financial statement réviéw and other matiers it'deeinéd relevait, the ‘Audit
Committee recommcnded to the Board of Dr1rectors (and the Board approved) that the audned financial
statements be mcluded in the Company 5 Annual Repon on Form IO-K forthe ﬁeeal year ended
September 30 2006. o s :

’

Ll rooal oG . e

Decembér 20, 2006 - < T Audit Committee

BRUCE A. WESTPHAL, Chazg‘man ‘
JoHN B. BaLousek Y T oo
. Davip N. CHICHESTER
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REPORT (lF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE ~ .. -.. . Do
o ' " ON-EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION . oy

.
[ M 1 . - H . ] R LN R TR ) ) " R LI R

To the Board of Directors: - -

As members of the Compensation Committee, it is our duty to determine the compensation for officers and
directors and to administer the Company’s equity incentive plans. In addition, we evaluate the perfarirance of
managemem and related matters. .

, S T S, (R
Overview T A L
v R . . vis . . , S ) . .

‘The Company uses three primary tools to: compensate executives. They.are base salary; cash bonus and -
equity compensation.-Together they combine to provide an execulive’s total compensation package: The; ,
Company does not provide benefits-or. perquisites of significant value:to-its.executives. The Company,viéws base
salary as a primary indicator of the market value needed to attract and retain an executive with'the skill and - « -
expertise to perform the duties and discharge the responsibilities of the position. Cash bonus is principally seen
as a means of rewarding superior job performance and enhancing base salary to the extent:nécessary to meet
current market value, and the Company utilizes restricted stock and stock options as a means of linking., - . -
executives’ long-term benefits. to:the rate of return received by stockholders. The objectives of the Company’s .- *
compensation program are to recruit and retain high-caliber executives, and, to incentivize thosé executives to .
achieve the best possible long-term ﬁnanmal results for the Company and lts stockholders . S

et i [ R
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Process : . . oo Dy

As described below, the Compensanon Commiitee uses surveys and reports prepared by compensatlon
consulting firms to assrst us in understandmg the compensatron levels and pay | structure at peer group companies.
The Company’s compensanon is generally targeted within the broad range of compensauon pard by the peer
group, however, we use our Judgment to determine spec1ﬁc pay levels necessary to attract and retain executive
talent. In exercising this judgment, we look beyond the market data and place srgmﬁcant welghl on individual
job performance and compensation hlstory, future potential, mtemal comparlsons reténtion risk for mdrvrdual
executives, and, in the case of new hires, compensation at former employers.

With respect to the compensation of Glenn W. Novotny, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, we
receive and consider the recommendation of William E. Brown, the Company’s Chairman, as part of our process
of delerrmmng Mr. Novotny 8 salary bonus potentlal actua.l bonus and equity compensation. Mr: Novotny does
not make recommendatlons for his own c:ompens:monI In addmon Mr. Brown is 1nv1ted to dttend pomons of
many of the meefings of the Compensation Commmee although he does not vote wnh the Cornpensanon '
Committee. With respect to the Company’s other executive officers, we recéive and consider'the '~ '
recommendations of Mr Brown and Mr. Novotny and consult with the Company’s Vice President of Human
Resources as pa.rt of our process of .determining compensauon ‘Other than as descrrbed herein, other execuuve
officers have no role i in makrng dec1srons regardmg compensauon of our execunve officers. o

r
. - P

The Compensation Committee determines base salary and bonus potential as of each officer’s hire date, ind
we reconsider both elements on or about each anniversary of that hire date. We generally determine officers’
annual cash bonus in December or January of the succeeding fiscal year. We generally grant each officer a
certain number of stock options upon his or her hire date and grant additional awards on an annual basis after the
Company’s ﬁnancra] resulis for that fiscal year are announced We generally do not grant, and have not in ‘the
past . fiscal year gramed bonuses or equny compensat:on to ofﬁcers on a “one- oﬁ‘” basrs or outside of the
standard schedule * e

'
LR ] oL s Vo Lo
Compensarion ‘Consu[rams and Benéhma'rkr'ng e BRI ‘ . . ‘
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During 2006, the Company retained the services of Towers Perrin, a compensation consulting firm, to assist
Mr. Brown and Mr. Novotny in formulating their recommendations regarding executive compensation. The
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Compensation Committee also received the report of that ¢ompensation consultant and used it to assist us in
determining the market value compensation for the executive officers: Survey data, coupled with performance-
based peer group evaluations, were used to help determine competitive short and tong-term awards for
executives, Co "
. .o ' Lot A ' " eyt ’ . . [
- Al,loca_tibn' and Amount o L , ,

As mentioned above, the Company compensales its executives through a combination of annual cash
compensation (comprised of base salary and annual cash bonus) and long-term incentive compensation
(comprised of stock options and, in some cases, restricted stock grants). The Company views base salary and the
annual bonus target as-an essential part of attracting and retaining executive officers and thus we set both at'a
level thatwe belieye:are: necessary to attract and retain top executives. However, the Company believes, based on

market dala and actiial experience, that equity incentive compensatnon is an essenual factor in recrumng top. s
execunves and in dnvmg superior performance . S . S
The use and relative welghts of base sala.ry cash bonus and equlty compensauon is- based ona subjecuve
[determination by the Compensation Committee of the effectiveness of each in supporting the Companys-
business and talent strategies, as well as'the prevalence, weight and value of these elements for executives at -
other companies. Generally, the Compensation-Committee views the various elements of compensation as part of
one overall package, and uses tally sheets setting forth all components of compensation, including dollar amounts
for salary, bonus and perquisites and the value of unexercnsed stock options and restricted stock awards, to assist

us in balancmg the elements. '

When makmg compensation decisions, the Compensation Committee considers the issue of internal pay
equity betwéen the compensation of-other Company OfﬁCCI'S compired to the compensation of the Chief
Executive Officer. We also consider-issues relatmg to the tax and accounting treatment of various forms of
compensation and, with respect to equity compensation, we give serious conmderauon to the amount of dilution
caused by grarits of equity compensation. Our Company is focused on hmmng dllunon to the extent pracucable,
and we make our decisions with that goal in mmd o ! ) "

Salary and Cash Bonus - . - . : T
Ji LA 1 . .- A . f LT y . M

The Compensation Compmittee determmes the actual amount ‘of cash bonus awarded to each ofﬁcer "
prlmanly by considering the financial resuhs of the Company for thé glven year and such ofﬁcer s individual
performance and contribution to the Company We do’ not use a pre- determmed formula 1o calculate any ofﬁcer 5
bonus compensation and have full dlscreuon to detennme annual bonuses YL

. The Company does not have a pohcy regardmg the recovery or ad]ustmenl of awards based on Company
performance if the relevant ﬁnanc1al meadures are restatéd: Tn such event, the Compensanon Commmee would
consider whether it is approprlate to seek recovery of previously pald ‘awards or adjust futute awards
appropriately.

* .
. P ’ . . '

Stock Oprwns .

' Yoo St . tlas [

The Compensanon Commlttee detenmnes lhe size of executwe ofﬁcers 1mual hire opuon grants wuh
primary consideration towards making the offer of employmenl market competitive. ’I‘he size of annual option
grants to officers is determined after giving consideration to market factors, the officer’s performance over the
fiscal year, awards previously granted to the officer, such officer’s accumulated vested and unvested awards, the
current value and potential value over time using stock appreciation assumptions for vested and unvested awards,
the vesting schedule of the officer’s outstanding awards, comparison of individual awards between executives
and in relation to other compensation elements, stockholder dilution, and total accounting expense.

- . . . . ]
1 . o .
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Stock options granted dunng fiscal year 2006 had an exercise pnce equal to fair market value on the date of -

the grant Stock options granted 1o executive ofﬁcers typlcally vest in tranches begmmng two of more years after
the date of grant, with the specific’ vesting terms determmed by the Compensatron Commrttee at the time of
grant. Executives must be employed by the Company at the time of vesting to exercise the optlons

The Company does not have a program or practtce of trrmng optlon grants in eonnectron WIth the re]ease of
material non-pubhc 1nformatton except to the extent that it typically makes its annual optlon grants within a .
reasonable amount of time after the release of the Company’s ﬁscal year eammgs announcement

Restricted Stock

-

The Company has historically.. utilized stock options as the principal means of providing its executive -,
ofﬁcers with’ eqmty incentive compensatton However, in the past several years the Company has made grants of -
restricted stock to several executive ofﬁcers in connectron with anangements provrdmg fora post -termination
consulting relatronship with the Company and therr entry into srgmficant conﬁdentlahty and non-competition
agreeiments. Generally, restncted stock vests and the restrictions on transfer lapse, in accordance with a schediile
determined by the Compensation Committee. The Compensatton Commrttee has the authority to accelerate the
time at which any restrictions lapse, and/or remove any restrictions, on prevrously granted restricted stock.

The Compensation Committee is currently giving serious consideration to mcreasmg the overall use of
restricted stock (and.decreasing the use of stock options) as a means of providing equity compensation to
execulwe!ofﬁcers The ‘Compensation Comnmtee s decision in this regard wrll depend upon a number of factors
including the practtces of other compames w1th whrch the Company competes for talent

S R

D . , - - . LI
. e v - '.

Compensatrorr. of Chief Ejrecur_'ive,o_ﬁ.ilcer“ o o o, o .
o , 1

During fiscal 2006, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Glenn W. Novotny, received a base salary of
$700,000, Based on the Compensatlon Committee’s knowledge of market wages for chief executive officers of
comparab]e public companies, as of December 14, 2006, we increased Mr. Novotny s annual base salary to
$735,000. In January 2006 and based on the Company $ performance in ftscal 2005, we paid a bonus of $500; 000
" in reqpect of fiscal 2005 10 Mr, Novotny Mr. Novotny had a target bonus of 75% of his salary with respect 1o
fiscal 2005, thus his actual bonus represented 101% of his bonus potential. We determined to grant thrs bonus
aftér giving consideration to Mr. Novotny s individual performance and specific eléments of the Company ]
financial performance in fiscal 2005, including its increase in earnings per share, return on equity, return on
investments and return on net assets. In addition, Mr. Novotny received a grant of 40,000 shares of restricted
stock in November 2005 in connection wnth his entry into agreements with the Company containing
confidentiality and noncompetmon provisions. For fiscal 2006 Mr Novotny had a target bonus of 75% of his
salary, however, the Compensauon Committee has not yet ‘determined the amount of Mr. Novotny s actual bonus
with respect to fiscal 2006,

Stock Ownership Requirements
P
The Company does not have any stock ownershlp requirements, guidelines or expectations or any policies
regarding hedging the risk of stock ownershrp

Post-Employment Arrangements

Mr. Novotny and Mr. Booth are each party to a Post-Employment Consulting Agreement pursuant to which
each has commitied to make himself available to the Company for consulting services for 10 hours per month for
two years after termination of employment with the Company. Mr. Novotny will receive $5,000 per month for
such two year period while Mr. Booth will receive $2,500 per month for such consulting servtces These
agreements contain confidentiality and non-competition provisions.

15
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Pursuant to ‘Mr., Helm 5 employment agreement "if Mr. Herm is terminated without cause he will be entltled
to continue to recelve the compensatlon and beneﬁts prov1ded for in his employment agreement through the end
of its term. Mr Helm 'S employment agreement explres on August 20, 2007 - o L

Pursuant to Mr. Johnson 5 employment agreement, if the Company terminates Mr. Johnson without cause,
or if Mr Johnson termmates his emp'loyment because of a ‘material breach by the Company, Mr. Johnson will
contiftudo Keceive' the compensauon and benefits. provnded for in his employment agreement for one year
Mr. Johnson’s employment agreement expires on November 7, 2010. '

Benefits and Perquisites

In addttlon to quahﬁed rétirement plans and nonquahﬁed deferred compensatton and supplemental

reurement plans available to employees generally, the Company provides its executivés with benéfits such as
medical, dental life and dlsabrhty insurance and other benefits that are generally available to full tine
employees. The Company pays for leased automobiles for Mr. Novotny and Mr. Booth, ‘provides Mr. Heim' and
Mr. Johnson w1th automoblle allowances, and allows Mr. Brown the use of a Company automoblle The
Company also pays fora club membershlp for Mr Novotny v Ct

, . ' ] LY PR ’

Accouming and Tax Treatment , t
K 0 Yoo, W . I T N

In detemumng executive compensatlon the Compensatlon Comrmttee con51ders among other factors, the
possmle tax consequences to’ the Company and to the executlves However we belleve that it’is importanit to ’
retain maximum flexibility in designing compensation programs that meét the Company'’s stated objectives. For
this reason, we will not necessarily limit compensation to those levels or types of compensation that will be tax
deductible. We will of course consider alternative forms of compensation, consistent with the ( Company’s
compensauon goals, that preserve de_ductlblllty. _

Séction 162(m) of the lnternal Revenue' Code generally does not allow atax deductron to public compames
for compensanon over $1, 000 OOO pard to the Chref Executive Officer or any of the four other miost hlghly
compensated executlve officers unless the compensatlon is pa1d based solely on the attainment of oie or more"
pre-estabhshed ob]ectwe performance goals and certam ‘other requrrements are met, To date, the Company’s -
compensatlon plans, have generally not been des1gned to pemut us to grant awards that quallfy for deduct1b1hly
under Section 162(m) _1 N - Pt

. - -
re s ")-'""‘ .o - e . P i

We continie to subscrrbe to the phrlosophy that the Company s overall performance and its retum to
stockhotders will be the pnmary areas of cons:derauon when' rewardmg the Company s top executives. It is our
goal to ensure that our execunves are’ pard competmvely with the market and are rewarded for performance that
benefits the siockholders. ™ '™ tte e

*
yo- .

December 29, 2006 Compensation Commitlee
JOI-[NB BALOUSEK, Chairman
BRUCE A. WESTPHAL a o
ALFRED A, PIERGALLINI
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" L. y.. [PERFORMANCEGRAPH, . -

The following graph compares the percentage. change in the Company 5 cumulatwe total StOCkhOldel' return
on its Common Stock for the period from September 29, 2001 to Seplember 30 2006 wuh lhe cumulatwe total |
return of. the NASDAQ Composlte (U.8) Index and the Dow Joneq Non- Durable Houqeho]d Products Index,a
peer gmup index’ consmtmg of approxlmately 30 manufacturers and distributors of houschold produf:ts '

. Tar P ‘

~ The compansons‘m‘the graph below are based on historical data and are nol indicative of, or 1mended 10
forecast, the p0551ble future. performar{ce ﬁ;f the Company s Common Stock.
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OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

"The followmg table ll}dlCalCS, as to each dnrector, each named execuuve ofﬁcer and each holder known to
the Company to b the beneficial owner “of friore ihan five percent of any class of the Company s voting stock,
the number of shares and percentage of the Company s stock beneﬁc1ally owned as of December 1,2006. '

RS i

————— o ) ’ oo ’ ’ Shares Beneficially Ownéd e
T ‘ t- -as of December 1, 2006
A - N T TR R Percent of
Number of  Number of ‘Total
. e e e . ..+ . ... ClassB ' Common e - Voting
Beneficial Owier(1}" ) . : ' Shares - Shares Percent(2) | Power(3)
William E. Brown . ........ . it 1,600,459 83,983(4) 7.1% 41.6%
Brooks M. Pennington lII(S) ................ e - —  261,032(6) Li%:™ %
Glenn W.NOVOINY . ... .0 i.eieieiininnaraenanns —  166,148(7}) o
JamésV.Heim .................. e e S —20,000(8) * ok
< . * s
' Stuart W. Booth ... .. .....oeovee e 50000) N
| _ .. JohnB.Balousek .............ic-ceioene fee e . — 8.841(10) 2
T Bruce A. Westphal ............ e 20040011 K T
P ,____*-. —-* - """Da\'id N, chichcs‘gr __‘;-‘,y, B R T LA e e e - :7,120(]2) * *
g A RERITEd A, PIETEALIN « oW oo w F et v e e e n e .. — 8,295(13) * *
Bradley P. Johnson ............... U L =T 20 000 . A *
All directors and execunve ofﬁcers as a group (len persons) . 1,600,459 621 A68 93%' 429%
TlmesSquare Capltal Managemem LLC(14) ............... — 1,486_,786 6.2%. 38%
(*) Less than 1%. ; S T
(1) Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner listed below is 1340 Treat Blvd., Suite 600,
Walnut Creek, California 94597, e i
o (2) Represents the number of shares of Class B Stock and Common Stock beneficially owned by each
- stockholder as a percentage of the total number of shares of Class B Stock and Common Stock outstanding.

(3) Represents the percentage of the voting power of eaeh stockholder after giving effect to the disparate voting -
rights between the Class B Stock and Common Stock. The voting powers of the Common StocK and the., .
Class B Stock are identical-in all.respects, except that the holders of Common Stock are entitled to one vote:
per share and the holders of Class B Stock are entitled to the lesser of ten votes per share or 49% of the total
votes cast. ‘

(4) Includes 15,000 shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding options exercisable within 60 days of
December 1, 2006 and 8,000 shares owned by his spouse. Mr. Brown disclaims beneficial ownership of the
8,000 shares held by his spouse. - . '

(5) The address of Mr. Pennington is 1280 Atlanta Highway, Madison, Georgia 30650.

(6) Includes 49,040 shares held by BPCB Partners, L.P., with respect to which Mr. Pennington has sole voting
and dlsposmve power as the sole member of its general partner; 7,604 shares held by Pennington
Management Company 11, LLC, in which Mr. Pennington has an ownership interest and of which
MTr. Pennington is the president; and 6,938 shares owned by his spouse. Mr. Pennington disclaims beneficial
ownership of the 56,644 shares held by BPCB Partners, L.P. and Pennington Management Company 11,
LLC, except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein, and the 6,938 shares held by his spouse.

(7 Includes 45,000 shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding options exercisable within 60 days of
December 1, 2006,

(8) Includes 5,000 shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding options exercisable within 60 days of
December 1, 2006.
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(9) Includes 15,000 shares issuable upon exercise-of outstanding options exercisable within 60 days of
December 1, 2006.

(10} Includes 5, 457 shares 1ssuable upon exercrse ‘of outstanding options exercisable w1thm 60 days of
. December 1, 2006.

(11) Includes 6,508 shares held by a limited partnership of which Mr. Westphal is general partner and 5,457
shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding options exercisable within 60 days of December 1, 2006,
Mr. Westphat disclaims beneficial ownership of the 6,508 shares held by the limited pannershlp, cxcept to
- the extent of his pecumary interest therein. . I ‘

(12) Includes 5 457 chares issuable upon exercise of ou{statndiné options exercisable within 60 days of
December 1, 2006.

(13) TIncludes 5,457 shares 1ssuable upon exercise of outstanding options exercisable within 60 days of
December 1, 2006.

(14) The address of TlmesSquare Capital Management, LLC (“TimesSquare™) is Four Times Square, 25th Floor
New York, New York 10036. TimesSquare has sole voting power over 1,331,832 shares and dispasitive
power over 1,486,786 shares of the Companys capital stock.. The foregoing information is solely from a
Form 13F reflecting beneficial holdings of the Company’s capital stock as of September 30, 2006.

4

B

, SECTION 16(2) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE |

Section 16(a) of the Securities Excilange ‘Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) requirés theﬁ .
Company’s executive officers and directors, and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of
the Company's equity securities, to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the SEC. Executive
officers, directors and greater than 10% stockholders are required by SEC regulation to furnish the Cormpany
with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file. . o

Based 'solelf{ on its review of the copies of such forms received by it, or wrilten representations from certain’
reporting persons that no Forms 5 were required for those persons, the Company believes that, during the period
from September 25, 2005 to September 30, 2006 all filing requirements applicable to its executive officers,
directors, and greater than 10% beneficial owners were complied with, except for late filings made by William E.
Brown, who filed a Form 4 on December 19, 2005 to report an opuon grant made on December 14, 2005, Glenn
W. Novotny, who filed a Form 4 on April 19, 2006 to report the exercise of options on April 13, 2006 and the
sale of the under]ymg Common Stock on Apnl 17, 2006 and Bruce A. Westphal, who filed a Form 4 on
August 10, 2006 10 report an option exercise and same-day sale of Common Stock on August 7, 2006 and who
reported on a Form 5 several purchases and sales of Common Stock mistakenly made by his financial planner.
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INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM S

Deloitte & Touche LLP served as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the
fiscal year énded September 30, 2006and has been selected to serve as the Company's independent registered ‘'
public accounting firm for fiscal 2007. Representatives of Deloitte & Touche LLP will be present at the Annual
Meeting: with the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and will be available to'respond to
appropriate questions. . P : - .

The following table lists the aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by Deloitte & Touche
LLP for all “Audit Fees,” “Audit-Related Fees,” “Tax Fees.” and “All Other Fees” for the last two fiscal years.

i . [N R

Fiscal Year Ended

Y AMED Lty Ll e i L . Septembe.ry,lpﬂi Septergtbeﬂil,?.()ﬂﬁ
AUGIETEES - o - oottt et $3,530,000 -$3,623,000
Audit-related fees . .. ........ e e e 104,000 48,000
TixTees ..o .0 AT T 4000 T T 4,000
Allotherfees ...~ ... 0 Ceeeeiooeeo 7 o1s0800 0 272,000
Audit Fees ' ot '

" The audit fees for the fiscal years ended September 24, 2005 and September 30, 2006, respectively, were for
professional services rendered for the audits of the Company’s consolidaied financial statéments, statutory and
subsidiary audits, consents, income tax provision procedures, and assistance with review of documents filed with
the SEC. e o e ‘ ST T e e I

: v .
. YT N ™ . .
- . P . T AP R N s

Audit-Related Fees °

. - .o P . P . .
. [ P SR R S 4 e L Al f ) N

N N T A I e —

The audit-related fees as of the fiscal years ended September 24,'2005 and Septel'nb'ér 30, 2006 were |
primarily related to consultation and assistance with Sarbanes-Oxley compliance, potential acquisitions,
registration stéig:inénis_ an'_d cr“rilpl‘iiyée b@qeﬁ} plan Iaudits.' : ‘ : -

. LI oot - oot
Tax Fees . L L
L, "-d.“ BN -;: o, N 1) . [ , . 1
Tax fees as of the fiscal years.énded September 24, 2005 and September 30, 2006 were for services related
to tax compliance, including the preparation of tax réturns and claims for refund, tak planining and tax advice,
including assistance with and representation in tax audits and appeals, advice related to mergers and acquisitions,
_ tax services for employee benefit plans, and requests for rulings or technical advice from tax authorities.

All Other Fees

All other fees for the years ended September 24, 2005 and September 30, 2006 were primarily for services
associated with various legal matters. -

Audit Committee Authorization of Audit and Non-Audit Services

The Audit Committee has the sole authority (o authorize all audit and non-audit services to be provided by
the independent registered public accounting firm engaged to conduct the annual audit of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Audit Committee has adopted pre-approval policies and
procedures which are detailed as to each particular service, the Audit Committee is informed of each service, and
such policies and procedures do not include delegation of the Audit Committee’s responsibilities under the
Exchange Act to management. The Audit Committee pre-approved fees for all non-audit services provided by the
independent registered public accounting firm in fiscal 2006.

20




CODE OF ETHICS

‘The Company has adopted a code of ethics that applies to ali of its directors, officers and employees,
including its principal executive officer, principal financial and accounting officer, controller and certain other
senior financial personnel. The Code of Ethics, as amended, was filed as Exhibit 14 to the Company’s annual
report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 24, 2005,

OTHER MATTERS

The accompanying proxy card grants the proxy holders discretionary authority, to the extent authorized by
Rule 14a-4(c) under the Exchange Act, to vote on any matter raised at the Annual Meeting. As of the date of this
proxy statement, there are no other matters which management intends to present or has reason to believe others
will present at the meeting. If other matters properly come before the meeting, those who act as proxies will vote

in accordance with their judgment.
STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS:

If any stockholder intends to present a proposal for action at the Company’s annual meeting in 2008 and
wishes 10 have such proposal set forth in management’s proxy statement, such stockholder must forward the
-proposal to the Company so that it is received on or before August 31, 2007. Proposals should be addressed to
the Company at 1340 Treat Blvd., Suite 600, Walnut Creek, CA 94597, Attention: Corporate Secretary.

If a stockholder intends to submit a proposal at the Company’s annual meeting in 2008, which proposal is
not intended to be included in the Company’s proxy statement and form of proxy relating to that meeting, the
stockholder should give appropriate notice no later than November 20, 2007. If such a stockholder fails to submit
the proposal by such date, the Company will not be required to provide any information about the nature of the
proposal in its proxy statement and the proxy holders will be allowed to use their d:scrcuonary voting authority if

the proposal is raised at the Company’s annual meeting in 2008,
MANNER AND COST OF SOLICITATION

The Board of Directors of Central Garden & Pet Company is sending you this proxy statement in connection
with its solicitation of proxies for use at the Company’s Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Certain directors,
officers and employees of the Company may solicit proxies on behalf of the Board of Directors by mail, phone,
fax or in person. All expenses in connection with the solicitation of this proxy, including the charges of
brokerage houses and other custodians, nominees or fiduciaries for forwardmg documenls to stockholders, will

be paid by the Company.
Dated: December 29, 2006

By Order of the Board of Directors

Stuart W. Booth, Secretary
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 or 15(d) OF THE
- SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006
I Commission File Number 0-20242
i

CENTRAL GARDEN & PET COMPANY

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 68-0275553 !
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) ) (IRS Employer Identification Number)

1340 Treat Boulevard, Suite 600, Walnut Creek, California 94597
(Address of principal executive offices} (Zip Code)

‘Felephone Number; (925) 948-4000

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OF THE ACT:
Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered

None ' None
SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(g) OF THE ACT:

Common Stock
{Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the
Securities Act.  Yes [X]. No [

‘Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuam to Section 13 or Section lS(d)
of the Act. Yes [J.- No {X].-

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for.the past 30
days. Yes [Xl No [J.

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delmquent filers pursuam to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§ 229.405
of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in
definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K. ]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a
non-accelerated filer. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act. (Check one): Large Accelerated Filer Accelerated Filer [ ] Non-Accelerated Filer []

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act). Yes [ ] No [X. : 7

At March 25, 2006, the aggregate market value of the registrant’s Common Stock and Class B Stock held by
non-affiliates of the registrant was approximately $1,065,943,000 and $2,795,000, respectively.

At December 1, 2006, the number of shares outstanding of the registrant’s Common Stock was 22,155,014,
in addition, on such date the registrant had outstanding 1,652,262 shares of its Class B Stock, which are
convertible into Common Stock on a share-for-share basis. .

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Definitive Proxy Statement for the Company’s 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders — Part III of this Form 10-K.
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_ weaknesses, our business strategy and the trends we anticipate in the industry and economies in which we

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K includes “forward-looking statements.” Forward-looking statements include statements
concerning our plans, objectives, goals, strategies, future events, future revenues or performance, capital
expenditures, financing needs, plans or intentions relating to acquisitions, our competitive strengths and

operate and other information that is not historical information. When used in ‘this Form 10-K, the words -
“estimates,” “expects,” “anticipates,” “projects,” “plans,” “intends,” “believes” and variations of such words or

similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements,

including, without limitation, our examination of historical operating trends, are based upon our current

expectations and various assumptions. Our expectations, beliefs and projections are expressed in good faith, and '

we believe there is a reasonable basis for them, but We cannot assure you that our expectations, beliefs and

projections will be realized.

LIITS LY LY LTS

There are a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual resulis to dtffer materially from the

forward-looking statements contained in this Form 10-K. Important factors that could cause our actual results to

differ materially from the forward-looking statements we make in this Form 10-K are set forth in this Form 10-K,
including the facrors described in the section entitled “ltem 1A ~ Risk Factors.” If any of these risks or
uncertainties materialize, or if any of our underlying assumptions are incorrect, our actua] rcsults may differ

significantly from the results that we express in or imply by any of our forward- -looking statements. We do not

. undertake any obligation to revise these forward-looking statements to reflect future events or circumstances. .

Presently known risk factors include, but are not limited to,-the following factors:
. consolidation trends i in the retail industry; . ‘ _ - !

* dependence on a few customers fora Stgmﬁcant portion of each of our busmesses

= uncertainty of our product 1nqgvatton§ and markt?tln.g programs; " .

» fluctuations in market prices for seeds and grains;

* competition in our industries;

= risks associated with our acquisition strategy;

.+ adverse weather during the peak gardening season;, .,
.+ seasonality and fluctuations in our operating results and cash flow;

* dependence upon our key, executive OfﬁCCI'S‘ .

N . . . -, ' .

* nsing energy prices, fuel and related petrochemlcal costs; , ’ .

. 1mplemematlon of a new enterpnsc planning information technology system over the next several
years;

» potential environmental liabilities and product liability claims;
+ pending litigation and claims; and -

* the voting power associated with our Class B stock.




MARKET, RANKING AND OTHER DATA

The data included in this Formi 10-K regarding markets and ranking, including the size of certain markets
and dur position and the position of our competitors and products within these markets, are based on both
independent industry publications, including Mintel, Lawn & Garden, 2005, Packaged Facts, Pet Food in the
USA, 2006, Nursery Retailer Magazine, and our estimates based on management’s knowledge and experience in
the markets in which we operate. Our estimates have been based on information provided by customers,
suppliers, trade and business organizations and other contacts in the markets in'which we operate. We belicve
these estimates to be accurate as of the date of this Form 10-K. However, this information may prove to be
. inaccurate because of the method by which we obtained some of the data for our estimates or because this
information cannot always be verified with complete certainty due to the limits on the availability and reliabitity

_of raw data, the voluntary nature of the data gathering process and other limitations and uncertainties inherent in
a survey of market size. As a result, you should be aware that market, ranking and other similar data included in
this Form 10-K, and estimates and beliefs based on that data, may not be reliable.
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e . . PARTI '~ - - . - ‘ B
Item 1. Business
BUSINESS  '°

Our Company . . . B T

1 . o . H

W .. ' coT T S f . ! FPRELEE T
Central Garden & Pet is a leading innovator, marketer and producer-of quality branded products. We are one
of the Jargest suppliers in the lawn and garden and pet Supplies industries. The total lawn-and garden industry is
estimated to be approximately $95 billion in retail sales. We-estiriiate the retail sales of the lawn and garden
supplies industry in the categories in which we participate to be approximately $27 billion. The total pet.iridustry:

" is estimated to be approximately $36 billion in retail sales. We estimate the retail sales of the pet supplies and
ultra- premium pet food markets in the categories in which we participate to be appr0x1matcly $13:billion.

~'Ouir'lawn and garden supplies products include: propr:etary and non- propnetary grass seed; wild bird
i féed; bird feeders, bird'houses and other birding accessories; weed; grass, ant and 6ther heibicide,

' - insecticide and pesticide products; and decorative outdoor Jifestyle and lighting producis including -
pottery, trellises and other wood products and holiday lighting. These products are sold under a number of
brand names including Pennington, The Rebels, AMDRO, Grant’s, Lilly Miller, Ironite, Sevin, Over'n
Out, Norcal Pottery, New England Pottery, GKI/Bethlehem Lighting and Matthéws Four Séasons:»

¢ Our pet supplies products include: products for dogs and-cats; including edible bones, premium healthy

. edible and non-edible chews, ultra-premium dog and cat‘food, leashes, collats, toys, pet carriers,: .«+.-

- grooming supplies and other accessories; products for birds, small animals and specialty-pets, including
food, cages and habitats, toys, chews and related accessories; animal and household health and insect -
control products; products for fish, reptiles and other aquarium-based pets, including aquariums,
furniture and lighting fixtures, pumps, filters, water conditioners and supplements, and-information and
knowledge resources; and products for horses and livestock. These products are sold under a number- of .
brand names mcludmg All-Glass Aquarlum Aqueon Rle]a Oceanic, Coral Life, Kent Manne
Interpet TFH, Nylabone Four Paws, Pet Select, Kaytee, Super Pet, Zodlac Pre Strike, Allosu;i

.Breeder s Choice, Famam Adams and BlOSpOI

, LI P e S L

In fiscal 2006, .our’ consohdated net sales were $1.6 bllllon of which our lawn and garden segmeint, or Garden
Products, accounted for approximately $802 mllllon and our pet segitient, or Pet Products, accounted for* ‘¢ -
approximately $819 million. In fiscal 2006, our incoime from operations wds $137 million, of which Garden”
Products accounted for $57 million and Pet Products accounted for $105 million, before corporaie expenses and
eliminations of $25 million. See Note 15 of the notes to our consolidated financial statements for financial
mformat:on about our two operatmg segments s e -
. I e . r_':__ Lt P ST ' Ll R L AT

Recent Developments R S L S B B N S U L

Acquisition of Farnam . e o

In February 2006, we acquired Farnam Companies, Inc. for an initial payment of approx;mately $287
million in cash, plus $4 million in cash for the purchase of related real property. In addition, we antlclpatc '
makmg a payment of approximately $9 million upon fina! determination of'Farnam’s net assets'at closing.” '
Farnam is a léading mirketér and manufacturer of inhovative hiealth care products primarily for'horses,
household pets and livestock sold through over-the- counter and. veterinary channels, In additionto'the -
internationally recognized Fariam umbrella brand, Famam s portfolio of industry leading brands‘includes-
Equicares, ComboCare™, IverCare™, and Repel-Xe for horses; D-Worm™:; BmSpolO and Scratchex° for
household pets; and Adams™ and Bite Free™ insect controls for home and yard care, ~ =~ <+

Acqmsmon of Breeder’s Choice AT . Py

In February 2006, we acqmred the assets of Breeder’s Choice' Pet Foods Inc for appr0x1mately $25 million
in cash. Breeder's Choice is 4 leading branded marketer and’ manufacturer of ultra-premium all Agtural, healthy-

1




dog and cat food and treats sold exclusively in the pet specialty channel under the brands AvoDerme, Pinnacles,
Active Cares and Advanced Pet Dietss.

Acquisition of Majority Equity Interest.in Tech Pac, L.L.C.

~ InMarch:2006, we.increased our equity interest in Tech Pac, L.L.C. from 20% to 80%. We paid
approximately $21 million mmv&'é'ﬁosned ‘Cash of approximately $16 million in an escrow account for
possible contingent performance-based payments over the next five years. Tech Pac is a leading supplier of
branded insect control products in the lawn and garden market place, Tech Pac’s leading brands include Sevins, a
broad-based insecticide, Over’n Qut!e for fire ant control and RooTones, a leading root stimulant; for the, -
gardening ¢ enthusiast. : ‘ _ L Sy
: - o . o

Acqmsmon afIromte ", ) . S e

In April 2006, we acquired | the nghts to the Ironite® Products (“Ironite”) brand of natural soil supplements

and the associated intellectual property for approximately $6 million in cash. Ironite, 2 registered trademark since
1956, is a leading brand of envnronmentally-fnendly sor] supplements that promote healthy plant color and
dcepcr root structures. , _

Acquisi.rion of Shu-lo

In December 2005, we acquired certainintellectual property assets from Shirlo, Inc. for approximately $10
million in cash. The assets include the cémpany’s exclusive marketing rights to etofenprox, an insect adulticide
approved for on-animal use. The acquired assets were integrated into the business of our Wellmark International
subsidiary. o .

. New Senior Secured Credit Facr'lities

On’ Fcbruary 28, 2006, we entered into $650 million i in senior secured, credit facilities to finance the Farnam

acquisition and 10 refinance our existing $125 mllllon revolvmg credit fac111ty maturmg in May 2008 and our
existing $175 million term loan maturing in May 2009. The new credit facilities consist of a $350 million

revolving credit facility maturing in February 2011 and a $300 million term loan maturing in September 2012.
These facilities are secured by substantially all of our assets and contain certain financial covenants that require - ,
us to mamtam minimum levels of interest coverage and maximum levels of total debt to EBITDA and that.
restrict our abrlrty to repurchase our stock make mvestments in or acquisitions of other busmesses and pay
dividends above certain levels over the ]1{3 of the facilities.

ApT

New Class af Stock _ ' ' o o

On September 28, 2006, our stockholders approved an amendment to our Cemﬁcate of Incorporation to
authorize 100 million shares of new class of common stock to be designated as “Class A Common- Stock” that
would generally have no voting rights.

Senlemem of TFH nganan o : ' I

On March 24, 2006 lhe trial court entercd a final judgment in the TFH Pubhcatlons Inc. lmgauon awardmg
us $26.6 million. On May 23, 2006, the parties agreed to a settlement of all outstanding claims pursuant to which
the Axelrods paid us $26 million. We recorded a gain in the amount of $9.9 million as a reduction of selling, .
general and administrative expenses, where the related legal amounts previously expensed were reported, after
applying approximately $16.1 million to the balance of the,promissory note evidencing a prior loan by us to the
Axelrods and other related amounts previously accrued, and recognized interest income of $1.0 million. '

Pet Products Reorganization : ‘ . .

-

We are continuing to streamline our operating structure into five strategic operating units within our pet
products segment: Aquatics; Dog & Cat; Avian & Small Animal; Life Sciences; and Sales & Logistics., We:

2




believe that'the creation of these strafegic operatmg units will create scalable efficient operating platforms, more
effective résearch and development and brand building initiatives; facilitate interaction with our retatlers and
enable us to more seamlessly integrate potentlal future acqursmons ; e RS

v . oo . ¢ sl
¥ PR oo

C S i
Investments in Informanon Technology

R T LI . A

‘.
We are in the process of 1mplementmg a scalable enterprlse wrde 1nformat10n technology platform to
1mprove existing operattons support future growth and enable us to take advantage of new appltcatlons and
technologies Tl‘llS initiative will combme our numerous mformatron systems nto one SAP based enterprise
system that employs best practlces from across our operattng units and creates both a common busmess model
and a system for the collecuon of common data. We invested approxlmately $15 mllllOll in ﬁscal 2006 and fiscal

2005 (ona combmed basrs) m thts mttlatlve and autrcnpate mvestmg an addlllonal $25 mllhon in implementation
over the next three years

) g o T R T S
[ l e o4 o c ey Lo tya T e L P2 VRN BT .
Competitive Strengths - ¢ . o e DR TR R e .'.M a7

—We belteve we have the followmg competitlve strengths whrch serve as the foundat1on of our bus:ness strategy
o’

*  Market Leadershtp Positions’ Bmlt on a Strong Brand Portfoho We are one of the leaders,m the
, bremium branded U.S. pet supplies marlfet and in the U.S. consumer lawn and garden supplies market.
We have a dlverSIﬁed portfoho of brands, most of whlch we belleve Aare among the leadmg brands in
thelr respectwe U S market” categortes The mayorlty ‘of our brands have been marketed and sold for
' more than 20 years and have )developed strong b‘rand name recogmnon "which creates wrde appeal
leads to repeat purchases and provtdes our retarlers w1th strong ‘sell- through

C ok

* Innovative New Products We have developed a reputanon for lntroducmg innovative and hlgh quality
products. We continuously seek 1o introducé fiew produtts at a reasonable cost, both as ‘complementary
extensions of existing product lines and as new product categories: We have recewed numerous awards
for our new pet products.

LT, LI FRFA sy :'- vl -
In 2006, we won a total of 22 new product awards at the mayor industry tradeshows and from leading
industry trade publicanons

We won a record 14 out of a possihli§:33 néw pi'oduct awardsi,riii'c’luding sever “Bést in Show™ awards
at the 2006 Global Pet Expo industry tradeshow: Our award winning brands include Kaytee-and Super
[Pet, which won seven awards in the bird, small animal and specralty pet categorles TFH won three
‘awards in book publtshmg, Zodiac brand won an award for fiea & trck control Four Paws brand won
an award in the dog & cat category, and All- Glass Aquarlum brand won an award in aquatics.

|'r F A

We were also ret:ogmzed by Pet Busmess Maga.zme wmmng two, “Industry Recognition Awards” for
; our Kaytee bird and small antmal brand .ang our All- Glass Aquanum aquatlcs brand. Central Pet
Dlstnbution also won the Drstnbutor of lhe Year award e Iy

PP LA !
A v ' 1

e Atthe H:H. Backer 2006 Chiistmas Tradeshow, .our Oceanic brand.in aquatics won the ﬁrst place
“Retailer Select Award for Product Excellence.” CT e

At the Glee International Tradeshow, our Blagdon brand won the “New Product Award” in the water ’

gardening category. _ e

+OurTFH brand recéived Additional:awards in 2006 for publishing excellence winning first place from
- the annual News Stand Resource Cover ‘Awirds contest and won two awards from the. Dog Wnter s 7
" iAssociation ofAmerica R T : : Co et
R AL ‘
« Strong Relat:onshrps with Retailers. We have developed strong relationships with major and.
S 1ndependent retailers through product i ifinovation, premium braid namies, broad product offerings,
M captlve sales’and logistics capabilitie$ and a high level of customer service. Major retailers value the

* w “efficiency of dealing with suppliefs with national scope and strong brands. These strengths have made

T I

S
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.us one of the largest pet supplies vendors to Wal*Mart, PETsMART and PETCO and among the . .

- largest lawn and garden supplies vendors.to Wal*Mart, Home Depot and Lowe’s. We believe our.
ability to service large retailers, to meet.their unique needs for packaging and point of sale displays and
to offer new innovative products, provide us with a competitive advantage. Independent retailers value
our high level of customer service and broad array of premium branded products. We believe we are

the largest supplier to mdependent pet supplics l’elallers in the United.States.

o Favorable Industry Characteristics. The pet and lawn and garden suppl1es markets in the' U S have
: grown even during recent periods of economic’ and political uncenamty, and are expected to Contmue ;
" to grow due to favorable demographic and leisure treiids. Accordmg the Amertican Pet Products "
Manufacturers Assocraltort (the “APPMAT); pet mdustry retail sales mcreased to $36 3 billion in 2005
from $28.5 billion in 2001 The APPMA estimates total pel retail sales to mcrease to $38 4 billion i i
* 2006. The key demographics bolstering oir markets are the growth rates in the fumber of ¢hildren ™
under 18 and the number of adults over age 55. In particular, the 55-64 age group'is projected to grow
" at a compound annual growth rate of approximately 4% through 2010. Households with children tend

to own more pets, and adults over 55 are more likely to be “empty nesters” who keep petsas .. -

S e compamons and have more e disposable in income and leisure tlme available for both pets and garden
T s Many of our products such as brrd feed dog ‘food and chews groomrng supplies, grass seed

Tand pést andiinsect control, are routlnely consumed and replenished:

~

*  Sales and Logistics Networks. We are a leadmg suppher to mdependent specialty retailers for the pet
and lawn and garden supplies markets through our sales and logrstlcs networks, We belreve our sales
and logrstlcs networks give us a stgmﬁcant competmve advantage over, other suppliers.’ These networks

provide us with key access,to 1ndependem pet specralty retarl stores and retail lawn and garden
customers that requrre two-step distribution for our branded products facrlltattng

. . acqt_usrtron and mamtenance of premrum shelf placernent,
+  prompl product replenishment; . - VLN o
* customization of retailer programs;

+  quick responses to changing customer and retailer preferenees;

. » rapid deployment and ,feedback for.new products;. and ‘

©, - immediate exposure for acquired brands.. EEPRE O N

.k

We’ plan to continte to utrltze our team of dedrcated sales people and our sales and Iogtstrcs networks
to expand sales of our branded products

-
ie "

. Expenenced and lncentwtzed Management Team. Our senior management team has srgmﬁcant
expenence in the pet and lawn and garden- supplres 1ndustrres William E Brown, our Chairman, has
" over 25 years of industry experience, and Glenn W. Novotny has been our Chief Executive Officer
since June 2003 and our President since 1990. Mr. Novotily was prevrous]y with Weyerhaeuser

Corporation in a variety of management positions for 20 years. Our,chairman also owns approxrmately
7% of our Class B and common stock, on a combined basis. L , 3

+

“ . : - ' D . et TR

Business Strategy : . LT

- Qur objective is to increase market share revenue cash flow and profitability by enhancing our position as
one. of the.leading companies in the U.S. pet-supplies industry and the lawn and garden industry. To achieve our
objective, we plan to capitalize on our strengths and the favorable industry trends by rmplementtng the followmg

key elements of our. busmess strategy:
) ' ' .
Promore Exrsrmg Brands. With our broad product assonment strong | brand names, strong sell through’
,..' .-and innovative products and packaging, we believe.we can further strengthen our,relationships with

... - existing retailers to increase shelf space and sales. Many retailers are continuing to consolidate their

- N 1 Cogt e WLE
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S ' 4




.

RENE vendor base to focus on a smaller rimber of large supphers such-as us, particularlyin the fragmented
pet supphes industry.-We believe-that the éxpansion plans of our major customer$ provide us'with a
#'solid foundation for continued growth. We intend to gdin market share in the hass market! grocery and

T specialty pet store channels and add new Tretailers through our recent addition of marketing and-sales

 +-personnél dedicated'to these-channels, as well as our innovative product introductions and packaging”
i We will continue to focus on using our sales and logistics network to emphasize sales of our higher
e margm proprictary brands and to'use’ efficient supply chain cipabilities that enable us 1o provide =
** retailérs’ with: htgh service levels and consistent in-stock positions. In addition, we intend 10 levérage -
" dur exnstmg ‘brarids to expand Oppoﬂumstlcally into 1ntematnonal markets with ex1st1ng retatlers
: T
. Connnue I\few Producr and Packagmg Innovanon We w1ll contmue to leverage the strength. of ouf
_ leading brand names by mtroducmg innovative new products and packagmg, extendmg existing product
- lines-and -entering ncwrproduct categories. Qur new product strategy seeks 10 capltahze on consumer.

‘needs, our strong brand names, established customer relationships and history of product 1nnovauon
Some of the products we have recently introduced include Nylabone’s Nutrident 360° Bmshmg Action
o .. Edible Chews, Kaytee’s Animal Planet brand of bird food, Oceanic’s Half Circle and BioCube
’ Aquanums Four Paws 3-in-1 Pet Stroller msect control products mcludmg Zodtac topical solutions, the
- Mosquito Torpedo and Pre Strike, Super Pet’s Cntter Operated Chopper and Cntter Trail Dazzle,
, .Penmngton s Girass Repair Kit, 'AMDRO’s Ant Block Treatment and certain products under the
Eltmmator pnvate label line. We have also made mvestments in our corporate sales and markeung
, 1nfrastructure in the areas of product development category management and key account sa]es support

L

« Continue to Improve' Margins.-We believe there-is.an ‘opportunity to continue to improve our gross and’,
operating margins through increased sales of our blgher margin, consumer preferred, innovative
branded products and through cost reductions and leveraging of our existing infrastructure. We

- consolidated our sales and logistics'centers and made capital improvements and consolidated some of
o our manufacturing facilities to reduce costs and imprové manufacturing efficiencies. As a result'of our
initiatives;-gross margins have increased from 30.3% in fiscal 200410 32.1% in ﬁscal 2005 and 33.0%

in fiscal 2006. ) ‘ IR IR N S

* Pursue Strategic Acqutsattons of E Branded Compames We plan to continue to make selected strategic

‘ acqmsrtlons of branded product compames that complement our exnstmg brands and product offermgs
Management has substantlal expenence in acqumng branded products compames By leveragmg our
- marketing, manufactunng and sales and logistics capabﬂmes we beheve we can increase : the sales and
improve the operatmg efﬁc1ent:|es of acqu1red compames We look for compames with the potentral io
. have the top one or two brands in thetr respectlve categorles The cbaractenstlcs we seek ‘when
evaluanng target compames are strong brand names hlgh quality and 1nnovauve product offenngs an

. expenenced management téam and a history of ‘organic earnings growth We expect to finance our
acquisitions through a combination of operating cash flows, debt and equlty

- S

" Pet Products Business

Aty * ite

Overwew

S

' St ST b

We are one of the leadmg marketers and producers of premtum branded pet supphes in the Umted States :
We believe that most of our brands are the number one or two brands in their respective U.S. market categories.
In addition, Pet Products operates the largest sales and logistics network in the industry, which strategically-
supports its brands. In fiscal 2006,:Pet Products accounted, for $819 million of our, consohdated net sales and . .
$105 million of our consolidated income from operations | before corporate expenses and ellmmauons -

- Industry Background . .,

s . L
Accordmg to the 2005-2006 APPMA Natlonal Pet Owners Survey, U.S.pet ownershlp is at its hlghest level,
with'69.1 million households, or 63%; owning a pet, an increase of 4.9 million households, or 7.6%, when™ . .

compared to househiold pet ownership in 2002. Approximately 45% of U'S. households own two or more pets.
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.The pet industry-includes live animals, food, supplies, veterinarian care and services. We operate primarily
in the pet supplies segment of the industry. This segment. includes: products for dogs and,cats, including edible
bones, premium healthy.edible and non-edible chews, 1 leashes, collars, toys, pet carriers, .grooming supplies and
other accessories; products for birds;’ ‘small animals and specialty pets, including food, cages and habitats, toys,
chews and related accessories; animal and household health and insect control products; products for fish,
reptiles and other aquarium-based pets, including aquariums, furmture and lighting fixtures, pumps, filters, water
conditioners and supplements, and information and knowledge resources; and productg for horses and livestock.
Accordirig to the APPMA, sales:of pet supplies and over-the-counter pet medicines in 2005 were $8 7 billion.
The APPMA estimates sales of pet supplies and.over-the-counter pet medicines to-be $9.3 billion in 2006. We

- also operate in the ultra-premium category of dog and cat food and treats Packaged Facts estimates the total pet - .
food market to'be $14.5 billion in 2005, Packaged Facts asseris the pét ‘food market i§ eXperiencing an ’ﬁ'ﬁ?ﬁil‘t‘:‘ e
thrust,” featunng products that are natural, functrondl and address specrf'rc dtetary needs of ammals We estimate
the current applicable market opportumty for our hrgh—end ultra prermum dog and cat food and treats to be

approxrmately $4 btlhon * f Y
Y T K . C IRNT SR Fo b

We beheve thlS growth is due in srgnrﬁcant part to favorable demographlc and léisure trends, which we
expect to continue. "The key demographtcs bolstenng the U S. pet suppltes mirket are the growth rates in the
number of ¢hildren under 18 and the number of adults over age 55 Accordmg to U.S. census data, the 55-64 age

group is expected to grow ata compound annal growth rate of approx1mately 4% through 2010. Households

with children tend t6 own more pets, and adults over 55 are more likely to be “empty nesters” 'who keep pets as
companions and have more disposable i income and leisure time available for pets. In addmon, many pet supplies
products (e:g., dog and cat food, dog chews, bird food, groomrng supplies, pest control, etc. ) are routinely
consumed and replenished. . ‘ ) Y S Y ‘o
: - cL R N

The U.S.pet supplres market s hrghly fragmented- wrth over 2 000 manufacturers, consisting prrmanly of
small companies with limited product lines: Virtually all of these. manufacturers do not have a captive sales and
logistics network and-must rely on us or other independent distributors to supply,their products to regional pet

specialty chains and independent retailers. . A

. The pet food and supplies industry’ retail channel also remdms fragmented with over 15,000’ 1ndependent pet

supply stores in the United States and only two natlonal specialty retallers PETsMART and PETCO These two

“pet superstores” have been growing raprdly, and pet products have also’ become a growmg category in mass
merchandisers, discounters and grocery outlets PETsMART and PETCO typlcally offer the broadest product
selection with competrtlve prices and a growmg array of pet. services. Mass merchandtsers supermarkets and
discounters have hrstoncally carrted a lmuted product assortment that featuré pnmanly pet food, but we believe
these retailers are devoting more shelf space to méet 1ncreased consumer demand for premium ‘pet supplies.
Independent pet stores typtcally have a relauvely broad product selectton and attempt to dlfferentlate themselves

by offering premier brands and knowledgeable service.

Proprietary Branded Pet Products '

Our principal pet supplies categones are aquattcs dog & cat, bird & small ammallspecralty pet food and
animal héalth and nutrition products.” -~ " me e ST

I IR T LS/ L S

Aquancs We are a leadmg supplier of aquanums and related fixturés and furniture, water conditioners and '
supplements, sophisticated lighting systems and accéssories featuring the brands All-Glass Aquanums Aqueon
RZilla, Oceani¢ Systéms Aquariuinst Kent Marine, Coralife, and Blagdony: ™ %~ Pk LT

Dog & Cat. We are a leading marketer and producer of premium healthy edible and non-edible chews, ultra-
premium-dog and cat food, toys, collars, leashes, grooming supplies, pet carriers and other accessories, and-
information and knowledge resources featuring the brands Nylabone,. Four Paws, TFH, Pet Select, Interpet,.Pet-
Love and Mikki. Nylabone has a strong history .of developmg innovative new products such as.the NutriDent
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Edible Dental Brush Chews, Toro and Lobo as well as numerous other award winning dog toys. Four Paws -
products-include grooming supphes and toys and TFH is a leading producer and publisher of pet books and
magazines.

Bird & Smal[ Animal/Specialty Per. We are a leadmg marketer and producer of specialty pet food for birds,
wild birds and small animals, vitamins and nutritional supplements, bird and small animal cages, hab:lats
transportation devices, toys and other accessories designed for'the small animal marketplace featunng the brands
Kaytee Super Pet and Canopy Sc1ent1ﬂc Kaytee is one of the largesl producers of specralty bird feed. - . .

[ 'S
Animal Health and Nurrmon We are a leadmg markcler and producer of flea, tick, mosquito and other

insect control products produced by Wellmark International and sold primarily under the Zodiac, Altosid, Pre
Strike and Extinguish brand names. Wellmark is the only domestic producer of (S)-Methoprene, which is an

active ingredient to control mosquitoes, fleas, ticks, ants and mites in many professional and consumer insect
control applications. We also sell (S)-Methoprene to manufacturers of other insect control products, including
Frontline Plus. In addition, through our subsidiary, Famam, we are a leading manufacturer and marketer of *
innovative health care products-for horses, household pets and livestock. Farnam’s portfolio of industry-leading
brands includes the Farnam-umbrella brand, Equicare (R), ComboCare (TM), IverCare (TM) and Repel-X (R) for
horses, D-Worm (TM), BioSpot (R) and Scratchex {R) for household pets, and Adams (TM) and Bite Free (TM)
insect controls for home and yard care. Breeder’s Choice, which we acquired in 2006,.is regarded by the industry
as one of the highest quality developers and manufacturers of ultra-premium natural pet foods. Breeder’s Choice
brands include Pmnacle Avoderm and Active Care. : . T

Salesand Logrstws Network =~ 7 o ‘ TS g

" Our domesuc sales and lOngllCS nelwork consmtrng of 11 fac111t1es exists pnmanly to promote our
proprietary brands and provides value-added service to ovér 6,000 independent spec:a]ty retail stores for our
branded products .This includes acqursluon and maintenance of premium shelf placement, prompt product
replemshment cuslomlzauon of retailer programs, quick responses to changmg customer and retailer’
preferences rapid deployment and feedback for new products and immediate exposure for acqurred brands. The
network also sells many other manufacturers brands of pet supplies and combmes these products with our
branded products into single shipments enablmg our independent customers to deal with us on a cost effecnve
basis to meet thelr pet supphes requnrements S S

-4 ' ' ,' ol

Sales and M&rkeu'ng

Our sales strategy is multi-tiered and designed to capture maximum market share with retailers. Our .
customers include retailers, such as regional and national specialty pet stores, independent pet retailers, mass
merchants and grocery stores, ‘and professmnals such as insect control manufact‘urers veterinarians
mummpalmes farmers and ‘other economic animal buyers. PETSMART accounted for approxrmately 10% of Pet
Products net sales in fiscal 2006 2005 and 2004 *

4 . ° ' .

To maximize our product placernent and VlSlb]llly in retall stores, we market our products through the

following complementary strategies:

» each of our categories | has a dedicated sales force that focuses on their specific products across all trade -
channels; . : A

* our sales and logistics network, which includes sales and marketing personnel, focuses on gaining’

+, product and program placement at thousands of independent retailers; s

* . dedicated account- managers and sales teams for several of our Iargest customers; and

L3 - . e - - ]

.. 1ndependent dlstnbutors who sell our brands.

Our markelmg stralegy is-brand, trade channel and customer specrﬁc Our focus is on innovation, product
quiality, prémium: packagmg, product positioning and leveraging our high quality brand name’s wnth line - -
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extensions. To execute this strategy, we partner closely with Jour,customers to identify their needs, jointly «
develop strategies to meet those needs, and deliver.programs that 1nclude newspaper, radio, trade journals, and *
direct consumer mailings.

[

Manufactunng ;

LA

Pet Products currently manufactures the majonty of its branded products in 17 manufactunng facrhues In .
geaddition, certain of toutﬁpropnetary branded, productsjpare ;manufactured- by contract, manufactrers have s
- sgenteredintotanic cxclisive rrangement wnth a'third party to manufacture (S)—Methoprene, the: acuvemgredtentm ;
our fiéa and" trck control’ productq We have not experienced supply interruptions from this manufacturer in the
past,-and we haintain an inventory of (S):Methoprene that we believe is sufficient to sustain our own productlon )

if substitute manufacturmg capability for'(S):Methoprene should become necessary . : : i

N [ o ‘,'."J'. . Lt PP 1 T

o el v [ i ' ! 1. e P W L.

Purchasmg

. - '
. e + L

Pet Products purchases most of its raw materials from a number of different suppliers. In addition, we- . -+,
Puichasconeofthelrawimaterials used o manufacture' (S)' Methoprene fromasingle- source of, supply_. Pet

possrbrlrty Of ahy interruption in the avallabrln)r of (8)- Methoprene but a prolonged delay in obtammg, -
(8)- Methoprene or this raw material could result in a temporary delay in product shipments and have an adverse

effect on Pet Products ﬁnanc1al results

. o producft%m volume Kaytee enterslintd cont cts-up to two,years n adv_a‘r;lceéo purchase a, portton of | 1ts expecte
grain and seed?requrrements’gf?luture dates by ﬁxrng the quanttty, andlbflemthefprlc €] t il 4 '

Cori'lﬁ-e'tition Py Ceod S ’ :

The pet supphes :ndustry is highly compettuve and has experrenced consrderable consohdauon ln the lasl
three years: Our branded pet products compete against national and reglonal branded products and prwate label :
products produced by various suppliers. Our largest competitors are Spectrum Brands and Hartz l'{st Lgrogucts ] T_. h
competes prlmarr]y on the basis of brand recognition, innovation, upscale packagmg, qualtty and'; service. 'Pet
Products’ sales and logistics operations compete with a number of smaller local and regional’ dlsmbutors with

competition based on product selection, price, value-added services and personal relationships. peliar

N P . ] A

Garden Products Business

Overview. . % oot

£317)

. Wearea ]eadmg company in' thé Constmer lan and gardén Hiarket i iri'the" Umted States and ‘Sifer both
~ premium and value-oriented branded products. We.market and produce a broad.array of premium brands,
mcludmg Pennington, The Rebels, AMDRO, Grant’s, Lilly Miller, Ironite, Sevin, Over’n Out, Norcal Pottery,
NewEngland Pottery, GKI/Bethleherm Lighting and Matthews Four Seasons. Wealso market and produce value
‘brands;that offer products comparable in quality to premium brands at lower prices, including Wal*Mart’s,
private label, brand. In addition; Garden Products operates a sales and logistics network that strategically supports
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its brands: InAﬁséal'2006, Garden. Products:accounted for $802 million of our consolidated net sales and $57
million of our-consolidated income from operations.before corporate expenses and eliminations.
e g AR .".." S il . ) '.’4' e "
IndustryBackground e . . R T e
We believe that gardening is one of the most popular leisure activities in the United States, with ) .

.approximately 80% of all U.S. households, or an estimated 85 million households, participating in one or more
lawn and garden activities in 2005. We estimate the retail sales of the lawn and garden supplies industry in the
categones in which we participate to be approximately $27 billion. We believe that the industry will continue to
grow over the-néxt several years due to favorable demographic trends. The key demographlc bolstering our-lawn

and garden market is the growth rate in the number of adults ovér age 55, who are more likely to be “empty -
nesters” and have more disposable incorne and leisure timie available for garden activities. As the baby boom - -

generation ages, this'segiment is expected to grow faster than the total population. According to U.Sicensus data,
the 55-64 age group is expected to grow at a compound annual growth rate of approximately 4% through 2010.
We believe thal thlS demographlc should increase the number of lawn and garden product users. -

. ’ .
P . - .t ' L + B !

LI |

- Lawn and garden products are sold to consumers through a number of distributién channels; including horme
centers, mass merchants, independent nurseries and hardware stores. Home and garden centers and mass
merchants often carry one or two premium products and one value brand. Due to the rapid expansion of mass
merchants and home and garden centers in the last 15 years, the concentration of purchasing power for the lawn
and garden category has mcreased dramatlcally We expect the' growth of home and garden centers; ‘such’ as
Home- Depot and Lowe 5, and mass rnerchants such as Wal*Mart to continue to concentrale mdustry <
dlStnbUllOl‘l ’

I R s
t : . .
I wE L . T e

Propnetary Branded Lawn and Garden Praducts e e ST e

Our pnnc1pal lawn and garden product lmes are grass seed, wild blrd feed lawn and garden care products,
decorative outdoor patio products,, Christmas products and llghtmg and ant control producls We have one of the
largest brands in grass seed under Pennmgton branded produets; the largest wild bll‘d feed producl through our,
Pennington brand; and the leading fire ant bait through our AMDRO brand. We are also a leading marketer of
indoor and outdoor pottery products through our Norcal Pottery and New England Pottery brands

Grass Seed We are a leadmg marketer and producer of numerous mlxtures and blends of cool and warm
season turf grass for both the residential and professional markets as well as forage and wild game seed
mixtures. We sell these products under the Pennington Seed, Pennington, Penkdted, Max-Q, ProSelect,
Tournament Quality, MasterTurf, The Rebels and Palmer’s Pride brand names. We also produce private label
brands of grass seed, including Wal*Mart’s private label grass seed. The Pennington grass seed manufacturing
facilities are some of the largest and most modern seed conditioning facilities in the industry. . .

Wild Bird Products. We are a leading marketer and producer of wild bird feed, bird feeders, bird houses and
‘other birding accessories in the United States. These products are sold primarily under the Pennington brand
name. Our wild bird feed is treated with Bird-Kote, a nutritious coating made up of vegetable oil fortlﬁed w1lh
oil-soluble vitamins and elemems needed by wild birds. S

et e VTR T A Lo ‘-"‘ Py,
~ Lawn and Garden Chemica!s. We are a leading marketer.of lawn and garden weed, moss and insect control
products. We sell these products under the Knockout, Strike, Lilly Miller, Maxide, Alaska Fish Fertilizer,
IMAGE, Sevin, Over’'n Qut! and RooTone brand names and the Eliminator private label for-Wal*Man. We are
also a leading marketer of fire ant bait, sold primarily in the southern United States, under the AMDRO brand
-name -in:addition, we market ant baits, animal repellents and garden aid products under the Grant’s brand name.
Finally,we manufacture several lines of lJawn and garden fertilizers and soil supplements m granular and llqmd

form, under.the. Pcnnmgton Pro Care; ironite and other private and-controlled. labels T
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Matthews Four Seasons brand name. - -, . S S

Decorative Patio and Gdrden Products. We are a leading marketer of decorative indoor and outdoor pottery

products in the United States. We sell these products under the Norcal Pottery and New England Pottery brand
names which include terra cotta, stoneware, ceramic and porcelain pots. We also market seasonal Christmas
products and lighting under the brand name GK1/Bethlehem Lighting and we manufacture a complete line of
wooden garden products, including planters, barrel fountains, arbors and trellises that are sold under thé

om0 L R R LR T PO A . : ‘ M
N i, ! T . . [IVR N

Sales and Logtsncs Network B :

Our sales and loglstlcs network consrstmg of 23 faCl]ltleS extsts pnma.nly to promote our proprtetary .
brands,and provides us with key access-to retail stores for,our branded products, acquisition and maintenance of
premium shelf placement, prompt product replenishment, customization of retailer programs, quick responses to
changing customer and retailer. preferences, rapid deployment and feedback for new products, immediate
exposure for acquired-brands.and comprehensive and strategic information. The network also sells other _
manufacturers’ brands of lawn and garden supplies and combines these products with our branded products into,

single shipments enabling our mdependent customers to deal with us on a cost-effective basis to meet their lawn

and garden, supplies, requrrements - L _ ‘ L

[ ARFLENN s [

Sales and Marketmg

The marketing strategy for our premlum products is focused on meeung consumer needs through
innovation, upscale packagmg quality and retail shelf placement. The marketmg strategy for our value products
is focused on promotion of the quality and efficacy of our value brands at a lower cost relative to premlum
brands. Our customers include retailers, such as mass merchants, home improvement centers, independent lawn ’
and garden nurseries and drug and grocery stores, and professional end users. Sales to Wal*Mart represented

"approximately 29%, 30% and'31% sales to Home Depot represented approximatelysl 5% and: salesito Lowe’s

represented approxtmately 15% of _Garden Products sales in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004 respectwely

To maxlmlze our product placement and VlSlblllty in retail stores we market oiir products through the
followmg four cornplementary strategles ; ' ;

. dedlcated sales forces foreach of our brand groups; .o T

* our sales and logistics network, which includes sales and merchandising personnel to service
.mdependent retarlers ona weekly ba51s espec1ally dunng the pnme sprmg and summer seasons;

K '

. dedrcated account-managers and sales tcams for several of our largest customers and S

’ SN Lo, )
e 1ndependent dlsmbutors who seilout brands Pet ' ' :

R L ISR IR S PRI - - P

QOur marketing dep'artm'ent de\'lelops our consurner and retailer support plans, including coopera'tive
advertising. We also promote our products to consumers and retallers through advertrsements in trade journals,
magazmes and seasonal radro and telev1snon commercials; ‘ S A T

f
. .. r ' . re .- .
") P . R B is . . R TN

Manufacfuring ) '
Garden Products currently operates 17 manufacturing facilities. In addition, certain of its propriétary

branded products are manufactured by contract manufacturers. o
4l R

Cor CATN R

-
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Purchasmg . o ) e g : "y R
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Most of the‘raw-materials purchased by Garden’ Products are acquired from a number of dlfferent suppliers.. -

The key ingredients in our fentilizer aid insect and weed control products are.various commodity and specialty .
chemicals including phosphates, urea potash, herbicides, insécticides and fungicides. Garden Products obtains -
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grass sced from various sources.. The principal raw materials required for Pennington’s wild bird feed
manufacturing operations are bulk commodity grains, including millet, milo and sunflower seeds, which are
generally purchased from large national commaodity companies and local grain cooperatives. Garden Products .
obtains its raw materials from various sources, which it presently considers to be adequate. No one source is
considered to be essential to Garden Products. In order to ensure an adequate supply of seed to satisfy expected
production volume, Pennington enters into contracts up to five years in advance to purchase a portion of its grass

seed requirements at future dates by fixing the quantity, and often the price, at the commitment date. Alt'hough' '

we have never experienced a severe interruption of supply, we are exposed to price risk with respect to the
portion of our supply-which is not covered by forward contracts with a fixed price: In 2006, crop yields for grass
seed and for the primary ¢omponents of wild bird feed were adversely impacted by drought conditions in key
growing regions of the Untied States. In addition, supply of these raw materials has been decreasing as farmers
shift to corn-based crops for the production of ethanol. The increase in costs caused by significantly reduced +
supply of these raw materials is expected to negatively impact our fiscal 2007 operating income by

$8-10 million. For more information, see “Item 7 — Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations™ and “Item 1A - Risk Factors.; S R

. : I v - v ' S : R ST "
Competition ; o . It Ca . .
The lawn'and garden products industry is highly competitive. Qur lawn and garden products compete
against national and regional products and private label products produced by various suppliers. Our turf and
forage grass seed products, fertilizers, pesticides and combination products compete principally against products ’
marketed by The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company. Scotts” dominant position in the lawn and garden industry is a '
significant competitive disadvantage for our similar garden preducts. In addition, the United Industries division
of Spectrum Brands'is a strong competitor with a broad product line. Garden Products competes primarily on the
basis of its premium and value brands, quality, sétvice, price, low cost manufacturing and strong brand names.
Garden Products’ sales and logistics operations also compete with a large number of smaller'local and regional” -

distributors, with competition based on price, service and personal relationships. R

Significant Customers

+

‘Wal*Mart, our largest customer, represented approximately 17% of our total company net sales in fiscal
2006, 19% in fiscal 2005 and 20% in fiscal 2004 and represented approximately 29% of Garden Products’ net
sales in-fiscal 2006, 30% in fiscal 2005 and 31% in fiscal 2004. Sales 1o Home Depot represented approximately”
15% of GardenProducts’ net sales in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004. Sales to Lowe’s represented approximately .
15% of Garden Products” net sales in fiscal 2006, 13% in‘fiscal 2005 and 12% in fiscal 2004, PETSMART . .
represented approximately 10% of Pet Products’ net sales in fiscal 2006, 2005 and 2004. PETCOis alsd a . -
significant customer. No customer other than Wal*Mart represented more than 10% of our consolidated net sales
in 2006, 2005 or 2004. © o ' S S '

o . L . ’ . . P .o N X

Patents and Other Pmpi‘igtary ngﬁts e o L "'J' " -
Our branded products companies hold numerous patents in the United States and in other.countries-and have
several patent applications pending in the United States and in other,countries. We consider the development of
patents through creative research and the maintenance of an active patent program 10 be advantageous in the -
conduct of our business, but we do not regard the holding of any particular patent as essential to our operations.
In addition to patents, we have numerous active ingredient registrations, end-use product registrations and -
trade secrets, including certain technology used in the Wellmark business for the production of (S)-Methoprene,
which has been licensed to us from Novartis. This license is perpetual but non-exclusive: In addition, we have -
developed certain improvements that are proprietary to us relating to the synthesis of (S)-Methoprene. The
success of certain portions of our business, especially our Welimark business, partly depends on our ability to
continue to maintain trade secret information which has been licensed to us, and to keep both licensed and owned

trade secret information confidential.
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Along with patents, active ingredient registrations end use product registrations and trade secrets, we own a
number of trademarks, service marks, trade names and logotypes. Many of our trademarks are registered-but -
some are not. We are not aware'of any reason we cannot continue to use our trademarks, service marks and trade
names in the way that we have been using them. - o ‘ AR St

EXI * L . - . I R o o .. Rt I oo ,

Employees N N

Asof September 30 2006 we had approxnmately 4 ,865 employees of whlch approxlmately 4, 670 were full-
time employees and 195 were temporary or part-time employees. \We also hire substamlal numbers of additional
‘temporary employees for:the peak lawn and garden shipping season of February through June to meet the-
increased demand experienced during the spring and summer months. The majority of qur temporary employees
are paid on an hourly basis. Except for certain employees at a Kaytee facility in Rialto, Cahfomla, none of our,_
employees is represented by, a labor,umon MOnsndcr,ougrelatlonshlps with our, employees tO be.good. -

oo b e P TS h A ?‘ ‘}F w.uormnmﬂﬂmx LT ™ A u'.

Environmental and Regulatory Consnderatlons' T S T W R L 1) “f‘ A "?“-'.;"

Many of the products that we manufacture or distribute are subject to local, state, federal and: foreign laws .
and regulations relating to environmental matters. Such regulations are often complex and are subject to change.
In the United States; all. products containing pesticides must be registered with the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (the “EPA™), and in many cases, similar state.and/or foreign agencies, before they can be sold.
: v oabeitilizern and'growmg,imedna,products are also sgbject to,state a and o lab regulations ,Grass seed is also )
et T subject to state; federdl dnd foreign labchng regulattons" T e L e
N L N T TS . ook LI . ) oo : “f"*ﬁ" *‘t‘,{)-'-m'r ».

The Food Quality Protection Act, enacted by the Us. Congress, in August 1996 establishes a standard for ..
food—use pest1c1des, which is that a reasonable certainty that no harm will result from the cumulatwe effect of |
pesticide exposures. Under this Act, the EPA is evaluating the cumulatwe risks from dlelary and non—dletary
exposures to pesticides. The pesticides in our products, which are, also used on foods w1|l be evaluated by the

EPA as part of this non-dietary exposure risk assessment.

In addition, the use of certain pesticide and fertilizer products is regulated by various local, state, federal and
foreign environmental and,public health agencies. These regulations may include requirements that only certified
or professional sers apply the product or that certain products be used only on certain types of locations {such as
“not for use on-sod farms or golf courses™), may require users to post notices on properties to which products:
have been or wili-be applied, may require notification of individuals in the vicinity that products will be applied
in the future or may ban the use of certain ingredients. We believe we are operating in substantial cornpllance
with, or takmg action aimed-at ensuring compliance with, these laws and regulations.” . -~ ..

L - T . 1 Lo e a T

Various local, state, federal and foreign environmental laws also impose obligations on various entities to
clean up contaminated properties or to pay for the cost of such remediation, often upon parties that did not actually
cause the contammauon Accordingly, we may become liable, either contractually or by operation of law, for
remediation costs even if the contaminated property is not presently owned or operated by us, or if the’
contamination was caused by third parties during or prior to our ownership or operation.of thé property. -‘With our
extensive acquisition history; we have.acquired a number of manufacturing and distribution facilities, and most of

these facilities have not been subjected to Phase II environmental tests to determme whether they are contaminated.
RN .y \ ' L L T .

Enwronmental regulations may affect us by restricting the manufacturmg or use of our products or
regulating their disposal. Regulatory or legislative changes may cause future increases in our operating ¢osts or
otherwise affect operations Although we believe we are and have been in substantial'’compliance with such
regulations ‘and have strict internal guidelines on the handling and disposal of our products, there is no assurance
that in the future we may not be adversely affected by such regulations or incur increased operating costs in
complying with such regulations. However, neither the compliance with regulatory requirements nor our
environmental procedures can ensure that we will not be subject to claims for personal injury, property damages
or governmental enforcement. . NS ’

+ o —
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Executive Officers

oow o

The following table sets forth the name, age and: posmon of our executive officers as of December 1, 2006.

.r;‘r . e - H B . ' t ¢

M.‘ T TS N S T P LS LR IR A._g.e. Posrtmn TP H O T T A T

WilllamE.Brown .............cciiuninnnnn. 65 Charrma.n of the Board . o

Glenn W.Novotny ........ooviiiiiiinneen.. 59 President, Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and Director

Stwart W.Booth ..................... ... 55 Executive Vice President, Chief Ftnancral Ofﬁcer ”
. S B T and Secrétary .. v o e 0

o e o

James VoHeim'.... S 52 :‘Pres'ident,‘l?et Prod.uc'l‘s Divisio_n:

BradleyP Johnson P PRITES .. M Presrdent Garden Products Drvrsron

. r gLt [ AT L ey .
' William E, Brown has been our Chairman since' 1980.-Until June 2003 Mr. Brown also served as our Chief -
Executive Officer. From 1977 to 1980, Mr. Brown was Senior Vice President of the Vivitar Corporation with -
responsibility for Finance, Operations, and'Research & Development: From '1972'to 1977, he was with -
McKesson Corporation where he was responsible for its 200-site data processing organization. Prior to joining - -

McKesson Corporation, Mr. Brown spent the first 10 years of his business career at McCormick, Inc in

manufacturmg, engineering and data processmg SR STt o Soiwe b

. B [ [ ? S | ,l'r. N P T

“GlenmW. Novotny has been our Chief Executive Officer since June 2003 and our Presudent since June 1990.
Mr. Novotily was President of-Weyerhaeuser Garden Supply from 1988 until June' 1990. Priof to joining Central,-
he was with Weyerhaeuser Corporation for 20 years with a wide range of managerial experience including
manufacturing, accounting, strategic planning, sales, general management and.business turnarounds,

Sruart W. Booth has been our Executivé Vice President since October' 2005 and Chief Financial Officer and
Secretary since January 2002, From January 2001 to October 2001, he was Chief Financial Officer of Réspond -
TV, an interaétive television infrastructure and services company. From June ‘1998 until January 2001, Mr. *Booth
was the Principal Vice President and ‘Treasurer of Bechtel Group, Inc., an international engiheering and
constmctronl company, wheré he was résponsible’ for global bank relationships and finan¢ial operatrons including
credit, cash managemént and foreign exchange operations. Prior to working ‘at Bechtél, Mr. Booth was the Senior

Vice President, Finance and Development with PG&E Entérprises, the first non-regulated business urit of Pacific
Gas and Elcctr‘rc Company

. - . LI
" I P . * . . . Lo T [

James V. Heim has beén our President, Pet Products Division since August 2004’ From Juneé 2002 to
February 2004, Mr. Herm was the Presrdent and Chref Executrve Ofﬁcer of The Color Factory, a leadrng
he was the chief executive officer of ExchangeBridge, Inc. a web-based system used by manufacturers and
retailers for ordering, cataloging and processing consumer packaged goods. Mr. Heim has also held positions at .
American Pa_d_' & Paper, Procter & Gam_ble. Polaroid. Maybelline and Arnerican Safety Razor.

o
i C .

Bradley P. Johnson jomed our company in November 2005 as Presrdent Garden Products Mr. Johnson
served as Presrdent of Elmer s Products Inc., a leadrng manufacturer of branded adhesrves ofﬁce products o
artists’ supplres and craft tools fromi September 2004 to October 2005 and as Chref Operatmg Officer from -
January 2004 to September 2004, From Jane 2002 uitil its merger ‘with Elmer’s Products in October 2003,
Mr. Johnson was the President and Chief Executive Officer of Hunt Corporation, a manufacturer of office -
products, and he held vanous other management posrtrons from May 1999 to June 2002, Prior to Hunt
Corporatron Mr Johnson held posrtrons at H g Hemz and Krmberly Clark Corporatron '

. N ' - . } . « . o . . -
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Available Information R S

Our web site is.http://www.central.com. We make.available free of charge, on or through our web site, our
annual, quarterly and current reports, and any amendments to those reports, as soon as reasonably pracucable
after electronically filing or furnishing such reports w1th the Securities and Exchange Commission. Informanon -

contained on our web site is not part of this report. ' . : : : ot T e
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ltem lA Rlslc Factors..

v
“.‘l"l"l, W

This Form IO-K contains forward-looking statements that mvolve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results
could differ matenally from those antrc1paled in these forward-looking statements as a result of factors both in
and out of our control, ll’lCll.ldJ.I‘lg the risks faced by ts described below and elsewhere in this Form '10-K.

R S TR, SRR . A

You should carefully consider the risks descnbed below. In addmon the risks described below are not the
only,ones facing us. We have only described the risksiwe consider to be the most material. However, there may

be additional risks that are viewed. by, us as not.material at the present time or-are.not presently known to.us, ... -
P‘Condm%could change,m thelfuture or new information may come to our attentior:that could impact-our,, . .

= 4l

assessment. ofithese Tisks: ae+- 1o mdsaro vy v piiiy oboa o o 23T s um.,,w.,,__u.,

[ o o ‘ e
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n;," i ." e e B ’
If any of the events described below were to oceur, our buemess prospects f‘mancml condtuon andfor results -
of operations could be matena]ly adversely affected. When we say below that something could or will have a
material adverse effect on.us, we mean that,it could or will have one or more of,these,effects. In.any;such, casegthe e

price-of our common stock could decline, and.you could lose all-or.part of your.investment in our. COMPANY;-.\s 1

' . e . . . "-'. P
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We may be adversely affected by‘trends in the retail industry. -~

. With the growing trend towards; retail irade consolidation, we are increasingly dependent, upontkey retailers
whose bargaining strength is growing. Our busrness may be negatively affected by:changes.in the pollcws of Loury
retailers, such as inventory destocking, llmltanons on access to shelf space, price demands and. other condmons i
In addition, as a result.of the desire of. retailers to more.closely manage inventory | levels there is-a, gr0wmg trend
among retailers to make purchases on a “just-in-time” basis. This requires us 1o shorten our lead ume for,, st 5
production in certain cases and to more closely anticipate demand, which could in the future require, the carrymg
of additional inventories and an increase in our working capital and related. financing requ1rements st Y

I Ny .'.'.Jﬁl}bﬂ...sfil/
A significant deterioration in the financial condition of one of our major customers could have a material adverse -+ -

effect on our sales, profitability and cash flow. We continually monitor and evaluate the credit status of our customers

and attempt to adjust sales terms as appropnate Desplte these efforts, a bankruptcy fiting by a key customer could,.
" have a material adverse effect on our busmess results of operauons and ﬁnanc:lal COHdlIlOl‘l in the future I

T - s o

We depend on'a few customers far a srgmﬁcant poman of our busmess : . o

Wal*Mart, our largest customer accounted for approx1matcly 17% of our net sales in ﬁsca] 2006 19% in
fiscal 2005 and 20% in fiscal 2004, In addmon Home Depot, Lowe’s, PETSMART and PETCO are also
significant customers although each accounted for less than 10% of our net Sales and qtogether Wlth Wal*Mart
accounted for appromrnately 40% of our net sales in ﬁscal 2006 42% in ﬁscal 2005 and 43% j m ﬁscal 2004. The
market share of each ‘of these key retallers has 1ncreased durmg recent years and may commue to 1ncrease m ;
future years. |

e . . O B - T f '

The loss of or s:gmﬁcant adverse change m our relatlonslup with any of these key retatlers could cause our
net sales, income from operattons and cash flow to decline. The loss of, or ‘reduction in, orders from any
significant customer, losses arising from customer disputes regarding shipments, fees, merchandise condition or
related matters, or our inability to collect accounts receivable from any major customer could reduce our income
from operations and cash flow.
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We cannot be certain that our product innovations and marketing successes will continue.

We believe that our past performance has been based on, and our future success will depend upon, in part,

our ability to continue to improve our existing products through product innovation and to develop, market and
produce new products. We cannot assure you that we will be successful in the introduction; marketing.and *
production of any new products or product innovations, or that we-will develop and introduce in‘a timely manner
innovations to our existing products which satisfy customer needs or achieve market acceptance. Our failure to
develop new products and introduce them successfully and in a timely manner could harm our ability to grow our
business and could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. . .

prices fof commodny soeds and grams av uctated ins responselto a' numbeér of factors mcludmg changes in
United Staies government farm Support programs changesﬂmﬁﬁmw‘?gncultural?énd rradmg-pohcres!and'
weather conditions during the growing and harvésting seascnis. In the evént Of any increases in raw materials =™
costs, we are required to increase sales prices to avoid margin deterioration. |, ‘1 ue o, L e

To mitigate our exposure to changes in market prices, we enter into purchasé contracts for grains, "bird feed
and grass seed to cover up to approximately one-third of the purchase requirements for a selling season. Since
these contracts cover only a pomon of our purchase. requrrements as market prlces for gralns mcrease our cost
of producuon increases as well. In'contrast, if market prices for grains decrease because of a lack of demand, we
may end up purchasing grains and seeds pursuant to the purchase contracts at prices above market.:In 2006, crop
yields for grass seed and for the primary components of wild bird feed, notably sunflower, milo and.millet, were
adversely impacted by drought conditions in key growing regions, of the United States. Supply has been further
limited as more and more farmers shift to com-based crops for the productlon of ethanol. Durmg the fourth
quarter of fiscal 2006 and the first quarter of fiscal 2007, prices for some of our key crops increased substantially.
We are currently negotiating price increases.with our. retailers; however, we cannot assure you as to the timing or
extent of.our ability to implement price adjustments in the current context of rising costs or in the event of
increased costs.in the future.-We also cannot predict to what extent price.increases may negatively, affect our
sales volume. The current increase in. gram costs is expected to have a negative impact on fiscal 2007 operatmg
income by $8-10 million. Coe TR I e - .-

- L. -
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Compemton in our indistries may hinder our abu‘:ty 16 exécuté our busmess strategy, achieve pmf tabdrty or
e y NP S

maintain relationships with existing customers. ' ' ' .

We operate in highly competmve mduslnes whrch have expenenced mcreased consolidation in recent
years. ‘We compete against numerous other compameq some of which are more ‘estabhshed m their 1ndustr1es )
and have substantially greater revenue or resources than we do. Our products compete agamsl ‘national and "
regional.products and private label products produced by various suppliers. Our-largest competitors in pet
supplies products are Spectrum Brands and Hartz Mountain,.and our largest competitors:in lawn and garden
products are The.Scotts Company -and Speclrurn Brands. ».v- oS e 00 0 R T e e

Lt e PR TR FROR S w7 vt tar,

To compete effectrvely, among olher lhmgs wermust: . , =1 gt e R

LS

. develop and grow brands w1th leadmg market posmons

v

+ .maintain our relanonshlps wnth key retallers Y T S P

. contmually develop mnovatrve new producls lhat appeal to consumers;

E TV [T A ' ves

. _‘rnamtam strict quality standards, B P g
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»  deliver products on a Teliable basis-at comipetitive prices; and « * BRI S

.. effectwely integrate acqtnred compames .o T D
i :s ) l L EE O i ! . . . .,
Competmon could cause lower sales volumes, price reductions, reduced profits or losses or.loss of market
share. Our inability to.compete effectively could have a material adverse effect on our-business, results of

_operations.and. ﬁnancnal condltlon B L O wp e

Vet o 2y -
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Our acquisition strategy involves a number of risks. ST Pormer

We have completed numerous acquisitions since 1997 and intend to grow through the acquisition of
additional companies. We completed six*acquisitions in fiscal 2004 and three in fiscal 2005. In fiscal 2006, we -
completed five acquisitions, including, the acquisition of Farnam Companies, Inc. for'an initial purchase price of
approx1mately $291 million. Farnam constituted a significant acqunsmon for us.

We are regularly engaged in acqulsmon dlSCUSSlOﬂS wnh a number of compames and antncnpate that one or,
more potentlal acquisition opportunities, mcludmg those that would be material, may become available in the

neat, future, If and -when appropriate acquisition opportumttes become avallable we intend to pursue them
actlvely Acqmsmons involve a number of special risks, including:

. . ] — 1,
N
1

« failure of the acquired business to achicve expected results; | " - -

- A . 1 H . . . .
T dlvcrsxon ofm.magcmcnt s.attention; ",?_mﬂ' D peAs e

mfallure TovrctaimAcy personnel of the acquired business;

. addmonal ﬁnancmg, 1f necessauy andAavallable, could mcre:cfse'levera‘ge, dilute equity, or both~

+ the potenual negatwe effect on our flnanc1al statements from the increase in goodwnll and other
intangibles; and -. = O Sy

»on P '

» the high cost and’ expenses of completlng acqmsntlons and risks assocxated w1th unantmpated events or
habllmes "

P These nsks Could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operauons and financial C()lldltiOl‘l

r FR [ e

We have faced, and expect to continue to face, increased competition for acquisition candidates, which may .
limit the number of opportunities and may lead to highér acquisition prices. We cannot assure you that we will be -
able to identify, acquire, or manage profitably additional businesses or to integrate successfully any acquired
businesses into our existing business without substantial costs, delays or other operational or financial difficulties.
In future acquisitions, we alse could incur additional indebtedness or pay consideration in excess of fair value,
which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. . . |

Our lawn and garden sales are hrghiy seasanal and sub]ect to adverse weather etther of which could lmpact
our cash ﬂow and operatmg results o \ .

! oot o, S e

Because our lawn and garden products are used pnmarlly in the spring and summer, Garden Products’.
business is seasonal. In fiscal 2006, approximately 61% of Garden Products’ net sales and-56% of our total net. -
sales occurred during our second and third fiscal quarters. Substantially all of Garden Products’ operating income
is generated in this period. Our working capital needs and our borrowings generally peak in our second fiscal
quarter because we are generating fewer revenues while incurring expenses in preparation for the spring selling
season. If cash on hand and borrowings under our credit facilities are ever insufficient to meet our seasonal needs
or if cash flow generated during the spring and summer is insufficient to repay our borrowmgs on a timely basis,

this seasonality could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Because demand for lawn and garden p;Mucts is signiﬁeantly influenced by weather, particularly weekend
weather during the peak gardening season, our results of operations and cash flow could also be adversely
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affected by certain weather paiterns such as unseasonably cool or warm temperatures; water shortages.or. floods.
During 2003 and 2004, our results of operations and cash flow were negatively. affected by severe weather ',
conditions in some parts of the United States. . A ‘ '
b '. ' + : T e T ol 4 '}";;l' T - - .
Our. aperatmg results and cash flow are suscepnble to ﬂuctuauons. R o L b
] Tt o Ny

We expect to contmue to expenence vanab1hty in our net sa]es net mcome and cash flow on a quarterly
bat‘.l‘; Fictors that may conmbute to this varlablllty 1nclude i - .

. ﬂuctuatlons in prices of commodity grains; . - . T '

+ weather cohditions during peak‘gaidening seasons and scosonalily';
+ » shifts in demand for lawn and garden productsl T AT .

e ' shlfts in demand for pet products

o ‘ o R P A I

+ changes in product mix, service levels and pricing’ by us and our competitors; RPN
» the effect of acquisitions, including the costs of acqu1s_mons that are not completed; and
. . ' ' ot : : . .t .. '

+ economic stability-of retailers. - - . - o e
. PN ’ e . : Lo L e R . . T e
These fluctuations could negatively impact our business and the market price of our common stock. - - AT

i - R - . S o - [ S . . .. oy
Our success is dependent upon retammg key persannel L A L L
‘ Our future performance is substantially dependent upon the continued services of William E Brown our
Chairman; Glenn W. Novotny; our President and Chief Executive Officer, and'our other senior officers. The loss
of the services of any of these persons could have a material adverse effect upon us. In addition, our future
performance depends on our ability to attract and retain skilled employees.. We cannot assure you that we will be
able to retain our exnstmg persannel or attract additional qualified employees in the future. :

Rising energy prices could adversely affect our operating results. - R

- In the last few years, energy prices have 1 fisen dramaucally, which has resulted in increased fuel costs for
our busmcsscs and raw materials costs for our brandéd producta"Rlsmg energy prices could adversely affect’
consumer spending and demand for our products and increase obr operatmg costs both of whlch would reduce -
our sales and operatmg income. &~ - v coac b N - - -

. ' L
. C v - - - : : P -t

We are implementing a new enterprise resource plannmg mformatwn technology system that w:ll resulr inan
increase in IT spending over the next several years. - ¥

In fiscal 2005, we bégan incurring costs associated with' de51gmng and |mplemennng a new company-wide
enterprise resource planning software sysiem with the ObJCC[lVC of gradually rmgratmg to the new system over g
the followmg four fiscal years, Upon completion, this new system will replace our numerous exlstmg accounting
and financial reporting systems, most of which we obtained through our various business acquisitions. We have’
invested approximately $15 mnillion in fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005 {on a combined basns) in this initiative and’
anticipate investing an additional $25 million as we.continue to implement thé System over the next three years.
If we do not complete the implementation of the project timely and successfully, we may experience, among
other things, additional costs associated with completing this project and a delay in-ealizing the projected
reduction in operating cosis.All of this may also result in.a distraction of management’s time; dtvertmg their - .
attention from our existing operations and strategy. -

L . L L o AR .




Some of the products that we manufacture -and distribute requtre governmental permits and also subjéct us o
. potential environmental Habilities.:* -+ . v v w50 vl Lt 4 bl T

_ Some of the products that we manufacture and distribute are subject to'regulation by fédéral, state and local”
authorities. Such regulations are often complex and are subjéct to change. Environmental regulations may affect’
us by restricting the manufacturing or use of ourproducts or regulating their disposal. Regulatory. or legislative °
changes Inay cause futore i mcreases in our operatmg costs or otherwise affect operations. Although we believe we
are and have beén in substantial comphance with such regulatlons and have mtemal gu1dehnes on the handhng
and disposal of our products, there is no assurance that in the future we may not be adverse]y affected by such
regu]anons or incur 1ncreased operatmg costs in complymg with such-regulations. However, nelther the

T
siibject to claims for personal injury, propeny damageq or govet‘nmental enforcement In addltlon while we do
not anticipate having to make, and historically have not had td.make, significant cdpital expenditures to comply

with applicable environmental laws and regulations, due to the nature of our operations and the frequently
changing nature of environmental compliance standards and technology, we cannot predict with any certamty
that future material capital expenditures-will not:be requ1red Y R R

In addition 0 opei’ationhl'st'andard_s, envirdhmental lzivffs also'itnpose obligatio'hs 'on various entitiés to clean
up contaminated properties or to pay for the cost of such remediation, often upon parties that did not actually
cause the contamination. Accordingly, we may become liable, either contractually or by operation of law, for
remediation costs-even if the contaminated property ‘is not-presently owned or operated by, us, or if the -
contamination was caused by third parties during or prior to our ownership or operation of the property. With our
extensive acquisition history, we have acquired a number of manufacturlng and distribution facﬂlttes Gnven the
nature of the past operations conducted by us and others at these propemes thefe can be'rio assufance thatall *
potential instances-of soil bt groundwater contamination have been identified;-even for those properties where an
environmental site assessment has been conducted:, While we are.not subject-to-any existing remediation’- -
obligations, future events, such as-changes in existing:laws or policies or-their enforcement, or the discovery of
currently unknown contamination, may give rise to future remediation liabilities. that may be-material. See
“Iiem 3 — Legal Proceedings,‘Phoéni.t Fire” om0 1 e s s S g

The products that we manufacture could expose us to product liability claims. ' vy, .o~ RRREE

Our business exposes us to potential product hablhty risks'in the manufacture and dlStI‘lbuthl‘l of certain of
our products. Although: we generally seck to insure agamst such nsks there,can be no assurance that such
coverage is adequate or that. we will be able to maintain such insurance, on acceptable terms, A successful product
liability claim in excess of our insurance coverage could have a matenal adverse effect on us and could prevent
us from obtammg adequate product hablhty insurance in the future on commerma]ly reasonable terms.

e Ry Tt ey P T L ot
We have pendmg lmgatwn whu:h could adversely tmpact our aperatmg results ER S o
. We are a party to certam legal proceedings, mcludmg ]1t1gatlon arlsmg from a fire that destroyed our Phoenix,
Arizona fac1hty We are current]y unable o determine the total. expense or possnble loss if any, that may, ultimately.
be mcurred in the: resolutnon of our legal proceedmgs Regardless of the ultimate outcome of our legal proceedings,
they could result An SIgmﬁcant diversion of time by our management The resu]ts of our pendmg legal proceedmgs '
mcludmg any potential settlements, are uncertain and we cannot assure you that the outcome of these dlsputes w1ll )

not adversely affect our, operatmg results or future cash ﬂows See “ltem 3 -Legal Proceedmgs e
A ” ' i‘,i 3 "'.'..t\,’ll.l o ' - EE S SR .
Our Chairman; through his holdmgs of our Class B stock, could greatly mﬂuence control of Centml wh:ch

may discourage potential dequisitions of our businéss and-could have an adverse e_ffect on the market prtce of
our common stock. aoth e i e ‘

Holders of Class B stock areentitled to the lesser of ten votes per share or 49% of the total votes cast and
each share of Class B stock is convertible at any time into one share of our common stock. Holders of our
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common stock are entitled to one. vote for each share.owned.. As of December 1, 2006, William E: Brown,. our
Chairman, had beneficial ownership of 1,600,459 shares of our Class B stock (out of a total of 1,652,262

‘outstandingshiaré$) and 83,983 shares of our common stick and thereby controiled approximately 42% of the
voting power of our capital stock. Accordingly, except to the extent that a class vote of the common.stock is
required by applicable law, he can effectively control all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the
election of our directors, and can exert substantial control ever our management.and policies. The . . .
disproportionate voting rights of our common stock and-Class B stock and Mr. Brown’s substantial holdings of
Class B stock could have an adverse effect on the market price of our common stock. Also, such disproportionate
voting rights and Mr. Brown's controlling interest:-may make us a less attractive target for a takeover,than we

otherwise might be, or render more difficult ot discourage a merger. proposal, tender offer;or proxy contest, even
if such actions were favored by our common stockholders, which could thereby deprive holders of common stock
of an opportunity. to'sell their shares for a “take-over” premium. . . L. :

r‘ - e, N f'";‘o-‘.-'.

- The Company has authonzed the issuance of up to 100,000, 000 shares of nonvoting ¢ eomman stock dnd
999,900 shares of preferred stock, which may d:scourage potennal acqmsmons of our busmess and could have

an adverse effect on the market price of our commen stock. . . ,
eoah 4 - EFEa] et o2y

Pursuant.to our.Fourth Amended and Restated Certificate of lncorporauon thc Board of Directors is
authorized to issue ip to 100,000,000 shares of our nonvoting Class A common stock and up to 999,900
additional shares of preferred stock (100 shares of preferred stock are currently outstanding) without seeking the
approval or consent of the Company’s shareholders, unless required by The Nasdaq Global Market (formerly
known as the Nasdaq National Market). Although the issuance of the nonvoting Class A-common stock would
not dilute the voting rights of the existing stockholders, it could have a dilutive effect on the 'economic interest of
currently outstanding shares of common stock and Class-B stock similar to the dilutive effect of subsequent
issuances of ordinary common stock. The issuance of the preferred stock could, dcpendmg on the rights and
privileges designated by the Board with respect to the issuance of any particular series, have a dilutive effect on
either or both the voting and economic interests of the common stock and Class B stock. In addition, the
disproportionate ,voting rights of our common stock; preferred stock, Class B stock and Class ‘A .common stock,
and the ability of the Board to issue the Class A common stock and the preferred stock to persons friendly to
current management, may make us a less attractive target for a takeover than we otherwise might be, or render
more difficult'or discourage a merger proposal, tender offer or proxy contest, even if such actions were favored
by our common stockholders, which could thereby deprive holders of-common stock of an opportunity to sell J
their shares for a “take-over” premium.

item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We currently operate 34 manufacturing facilities totaling approximately 4,037,889 square feet and 34 sales
and logistics facilities totaling approximately 4,127,482 square feet. Most sales and logistics centers consist of.
office and warchouse space, and several large bays for loading and unloading. Each sales and logistics center
. provides warehouse, distribution, sales and support functions for its geographic area. Our executive offices are

located in Wainut Creek, California. . '
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The table below lists Pet Products’ manufacturing and sales and logistics facilities:
Location ' _—— \ ‘ Type of Facility - . Owned or Leased .
- Phoenix{ AZ ....:...... ... SalesandLogistics - . - . Leased
Carson, CA ... ......... P + -Manufacturing . . Leased -
‘ Irwindale, CA ....... “..eoiteo. rManufacturing v ' - - +Leased . ‘
sttt 2 210 \C A il i g vomeepes Manufacturing . ... o - oo Ownedie oo v
. Sacramento, CA ......... e Sales and Logistics - v« ..+ Leased + . - .
Santa Fe Springs, CA -.... . ..-.. Sales and Logistics : <" 7 Leased -, i
Aurora, CO ‘... ... ... ... “ ...... " Sales and Logistics* ot * Leased S
Tampa, FL-. ... .. ....... -..s4n... Sales and Logistics - ~* -Leased.
Acworth, GA ................... .»Manufacturing - o . ' Leased -
Norcross, GA .................. Sales and Logistics Leased
. Elk Grove Village, IL ........... . . Manufacturing | . Leased
' Council Bluffs, 10............... Manufacturing o Owned '
‘ Onia.hzi,NE A ' Manufacturing ' Owned °
Asbury Park, NJ ................ Manufacturing ' ot Leased
Mahwah, NJ .......... e . Sales and Logistics - R 7 Leased
Neptune City, NJ ...... PO *.Manufacturing S Co " Leased -
‘Neptune City, NJ ....... L e Manufacturing T . Owned
Hauppauge, NY ... ... ....... Manufacturing s Leased . .
‘- Hauppauge, NY ................. Manufacturing e . Owned
- Cressona, PA ........ .. PR Manufacturing . “Owned
Dallas, TX ............. e Manufacturing - - . + Owned . v
Dallas, TX ........... e i Manufacturing . ‘ Leased
Houston, TX ................... Sales and Logistics -~ T Leased
Algona, WA, ool . Sales and Logistics - : * Leased
Chilton, WI ....... e e e i e Manufacturing - e Owned. . . ..
Franklin, WI .................. Manufacturing - + . Owned St
Dorking Surmrey, UK ... ..: e Sales and Logistics ' Leased Gt
© Somerset, UK . ....... S - Sales and Logistics © v, Leased.,
' T 4




The table below lists Garden Products’ manufacturing and sales and logistics facilities:

[

' Location "7 Typéof Facility * " Owned or Leased
‘ ) Cn]]man, AL-. O . feen . Snles and Logis:tics . R Owned .
“ROILAZ, ... ... Manufactunng,, e . . .. .Owned
Yuma AZ ............. ‘ .. Manufacturing, ~ , . a ‘Leased ;
ElCentro,CA .................. Manufacturing ’ ' Owned
Ontario, CA ... .. poe oo - o on- -, Sales and Logistics.. | i} Leased
+t . Richmond, CA ................. Sales and Long[lCS‘ ey s Leased .
: _Sacramento CA B T TR Sa]es and LOngthS, o B Leased ‘ .
»  San Leandro CA e b e Manufactunng Leased 1
San Leandro, CA . ...t .. ... Sales and Logistics ' Leased L
Santa Fe Springs, CA . .. o Sales and Logistics . Leased
is, .o Stockton, CA ... ¢ovoonone  Manufacwring o . ... -Leased
: 'Longmont,,CO s . Manufactilnng, S .. d.b Owned e
, . Clearwater, FL B U pees Manufacturing R C Leased -
; Orlando, FL . .............o0hse. Sales and Logistics, o . Leased
“ o ,C0vmgton GA........... e Sales and Logistics - - ) Leased ,
. Eatonton, GA_................." Manufacturing Owned .
Madison, GA(2) ................ Mannfactunng "Owned
Madison, GA . .....1......... ... , Manufacturing . Leased ,
. Madison,GA .. ,........... e ., Sales and Logistics . . 'Owned
‘ Madlson GAL.oL e Sales and Logistics .Leased
\ Munster IN ..., P Sales and Logtsucs:' Leased
. Foxboro,MA ................0., Sales and Logistics ¢ . . Leased ,
. Tauntan, MA.. e P . Sales and Logistics " ; ‘ Leased ., .
Laurel, MD ... ....o.ovnnn.. ... Salesand Lognstlcs o Leased .
, Bolivar, MO . Manufactunng - Leased
. Greenfield, MO et Sales and LOgIS[lCS Owned
' Greenﬁeld MO (2) e e, e Manufactunng . Owned
Winston-Salem, NC .............. ~ Sales and Logistics . Leased . ,
Sidney, NE .................... * Manufacturing Owned
-7 Saddle Brook,NJ ............... - Sales and Logistics Leased
- Peebles, OH ........:...covnn.. ‘Maiiiifacturing =~ ¢ to b LOwned: T T
Lebanon, OR .............. - ..., Manufacturing ~..» Owned
Portland, OR ................... Sates and Logistics “ " eased
Columbia, SC ................ .. Sales and Logistics Owned - ,
Columbia, SC .................. Sales and Logistics Leased
" ,-Grand Prairie, TX ., :...... seo..... Sales and Logistics ' 4.,  Leased .
Houston, TX ........... P Sales and LOngthS o ' ‘Lez._ls_ed
-Kenbridge, VA ................. Sales and Logistics Leased

e e T "._' T i T Wi ot L. ". .
We lease 14 of our manufacturing facilities and 30 of our sales and logistics facilities. These leases

generally expire between 2007 and 2020. Substantially all of the leases contain renewal provisions with
automatic rent escalation clauses. The facilities we own are subject to major encumbrances under our principal
credit facility. In addition to the facilities that are owned, our fixed assets are compnsed pnmanly of machinery
and equipment, trucks and warehousmg, transportation and computer equipment. : s
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Item 3. Legal Pr'ocee.dings . ‘e ;.' Fo e e eyt

v ' P R

Phoenix Fire — On August 2, 2000, a fire destroyed our leased warehouse space in Phoenix, Anzona and an
adjoining warehouse space leased by a third party “At the time of the fire, we maintained property msuranee
covering lossgs to'the leased premises, our 1nventory and equrpment, and Joss of business income: 'We also
maintained lrablhty insurance providing $52 mllllOl'l of ‘coverage (with no: deductlble) plus addrtronal coverage
for any amount of pre—_tudgment interest that we rmght be obllgated o pay. T \ : ,

- On July 31,2001, the adjommg warehouse tenant, Cardinal Health, and its insurers (the' ;‘Cardinéil
_ Plaintiffs™), filed a lawsuit against us and other parties in the Superior Court of Arizona, Mancopa County. The
Cardinal Plaintiffs sought to recover from us, Arch Chemical Company (“Arch”) and others approximately $60
million in compensatory damages, plus pre-judgment interest and punitive damages See Cara’mal Health Inc., et |

al. v. Central Garden & Pet Company, etal, ClVll Case No. CV2001- 013152
Wik . X “imr'& L3 oL mﬂﬂ .

On January 25, 2006 we and our insurers, along with’ Arch and its insurers, entered- mto a Strpulatlon for ‘
Settlement with the Cardinal Plaintiffs. On March 10, 2006, the parties executed the final settlement '
documentation. The terms of the settlement are confidential, and the amounts which we and ‘Arch* were each
required to contribute to the settlement were determined in an arbitration proceeding, which concluded on ‘
August 11, 2006. Our ultimate payment obllgatron towards the settlement with the Cardmal Plamttffs was paid
entirely by our 1nsurers . . ‘

Local residents also filed a purported class action lawsuit alleging claims for bodily injury and property
damages as a result of the fire. The residents’ lawsuit has now been-settled as to all parties, and has received
Court approva] As part of the settlement our habrhty insurers paid $7,825,000 on our behalf in"May 2004.

R N

The warehouse owner, B&L and its insurer (the “B&L Plamtlffs”) as well as several nearby busmesses
also filed lawsiits for property damage and business interruption, which were coordinated w1th the Cardinal
Plaintiffs’ lawsuit. The lawsuits by nearby businesses have been dismissed, or settled with payments from our
insurers. On October 16, 2006, an agreement in prmcnple was reached for the settlement of the B&L lawsuit. The
terms of the settiement are confidential and the pames are still preparing the final settlement documentation. Our
insurers have agreed to pay the entire amount of the settlement to the B&L Plamuffs 'We have not recogmzed
any liability i in thrs regard as of September 30, 2006 s ' ‘

v oL ' , T S
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders _ _ T '

(@A special rne'et'in‘g of our shareholders was held on September 28, 2006,

(b) Not applicable. .' : _ o ' _ ' RIS

s ) ) A o b

(c) At the meetirig, our stockholders approved the améndment of our Certlﬁcate of Incorporatlon to authorrze the
issuance of 100, 000 000 shares of non- votmg Class A common stock

; [ LT
Set forth below is the tabulation with respect to the matter voted on.at the meeting: - ' S
e " - -“ . . . t ) L ] ' .1.4-.-. e
' SA¥we . . 4+ % s 1 Common . ClassB -
L Bor... i o 12,159,931 - 1,570,459 -
Against or Withheld ............ peeetetaeeg oo, 8,696,197 . 0 0

CAbSEaIN L. P ' 3,922 0
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F PART II . TS
., " L ' ' .
Item 5., Market for the Reglstrant’s Common Eqmty, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer X
Purchases of Equlty Securities ., ;, - . . .

N e, - PR

'\ Our common stock has been traded’on the Nasdaq'Global-Market (formerly- known as the Nasdaq National™
Market) urider the symbol CENT sidice our initial public offering on’J uly 15, 1993. Thé: following table sets forth,
for the periods indicated, the highest and lowest closing sale prices for our comimon stock, ‘as repoited by the
Nasdaq National Market. .

—_— . ae -+

Ve I N Lt DAY S A

Fiscal 2005 T T e e . "

i First Quarter ......... g ey RETRERETIOp BT $40.95 182973
\ SecondQual'lel"...‘...l ..... e :' ......... e Sy 46.62 38.55
‘,*—-ThlrdQuarter..-.-..~....'.‘.'...‘-..-.._...._-...‘.k ....... . S Dol 49200 4026
; ',.FounhQu:mer.'...'....'...'..'......'....' ......... B . ' 54.'32' - 43:50

‘Fiscal 2006 .- L N SR |
First Quarter, .......-. e e e e e 54706 $41.05
) s Second QUAarer™. ... i T e, - 5467, 4598
. Ag %ﬁhlrdQuaner--. ------- R e e e e 54:60. 39.88
Fourth Quartef ..................... PR e T .. 49.84. 3741

Loer " o
" As.of December 1, 2006, there were apprommately 176 holders of record of our. common stock and seven
holders of record'of our Class B stock. As of December 1, 2006 none of our Class A nonvoting common. stock

had been issued. . e : P oo i

e PR ;:, .

We have not paid any cash dividends on our. common stock in the past. We currently intend to retain any -
carnings for use in our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the .
foreseeable future: Tn addition, our credit facilities and senior subordinated notes restrict our ability to pay ‘-
dividends. See Note 7 of the notes.to our. consolidated ﬁnancxal statements '

‘ ot ” ¢ . “ . ‘!

- Except as set forth in the tablé below we did not repurchase any of our equity securities during Lhe fourth
quarter of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006. Cre i

T .. hor t i
Maximum Number
. .+ '(or'Approximate
. “Total Number of:  Dollar Value) of
Shares (or Units) .- Shares (or Units)

] + .ot

- A - Total Nﬂu‘m‘ber Average Purchased as that May Yet Be
of Shares Price Paid | Part of Publicly ..  Purchased Under
. . . - (or Units) per Share  Announced Plans , .- the Plans or
Perlod - - Purchased . -(or Units) or Programs Programs
June 25 -July 29,2006 ..................... . " 241,593 $41.45 241;593 - g $89,’9|86;000
July 30 — August 26,2006 .................... — — . — . $89,986,000
August 27 - September 30, 2006 ......... e == e " — . $89,986,000
Total ...... ... ... i . 241.25;3 $41.45 - 241,593 - 389,986,000
- ' " 1
v A oo "
v I} {|
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

: The following selected statement of operations and balance sheet data as of and for the fiscal years ended
September 28, 2002, September 27, 2003, September 25, 2004, September 24,2005 and September 30, 2006 -
have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The financial data set forth bélow should
be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes Lhereto in “Item 8 — Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” and “Item 7- ~ Management’s Dlscussmn and Analysns of Fmancnal

Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere herein,

L

oA,

it Rt T : '

Fiscal Year Ended -+ *.- " & A if a0 o
September 28, September 27, September 25, September 24, September 30,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 (4)
= e I i g e P % LTSNS, €Xcept per share amounts) .

Statement of Operations Data:
Netsales (1) .. ......oiiininnnnns $1,077,780 31,145,001 $l,266.526 " $1,380, 644 $l 62! 531 o
Cost of goods sold and occupancy . 757,437 .~ 811,562 882,227 937989 ) 1,086,219 __~
Gross proﬁt ...................... 320,343 333439 ° 384299 . 442,655|,l- c 535,312 o
Selling, general and administrative ' -

EAPENSES ..ottt et 267,579 261,098 302,227 342,526 c-:'."398;5 10--
Income from operations . .........:.. £ 52,764 72,341 82,072 100,129 > 1136,802
Intérest expense, net ............... .(14,608) (19,202) (17,753) (20,660) "1 “3‘(311'63&)
Other inCome . ... ..........c.c...... 5,548 2,522 . 2023 4,576 . 3,083
Income before income taxes, . MR

cumulative effect of accounting

change and minority interest .- :n+ % 243704 . 55,661 . 66,342 84,045 .- 102,215
Income daxesymu.s g % R S T o1 REN 21,020 - . 24,992 30,258 . - 35791 e
lncome ‘before cumulatwe effect of ' LTE

accountmg change and mmomy

interest «.uvovuo i, oo, .28545 34:641 ‘41350 . . 53,787 . 66424
Cumulative effect of accountmg . ot P T R Coy e . '

change,netof tax (2) oo v oo S(112,237), . — , — ey ey L —
Minority interest .................. L e — i = .. ... 890
Netincome (1088) . ... ...ovnnnn. .. $ (83692) $ 34641 $ 41,350 $ 53,787 $ 65,534
Basic income (105s) per'common ' v et T o :

equivalent share: e '
Before cumulative effect of
," . accounting change ........... $ 154 § 179§ 206 % 258 § 2.90
Cumitlative effect of accounting :
~ + change, netof tax (2) ......... (6-04)‘ — — — —
+Basic income (Ioss) per common e v
equivalent share".' .......... VIS S 50) $ 1.79 $ 206 $ 258 % 2.90
Diluted income (loss) per common .~ Jt _' C . '
equivalent share: - -
Befofe cumulative effect of o - !
" accounting change ........... 3 l 44 $ 73 % 1199 8. 250 % 2.85
-Cumulative effect of accounting . , - _
change, netoftax (2) ......... (4 88) —_ — — —
Diluted income (loss) per common
equivalentshare . ............ b (B344) % 1.73 % 199 § 250 § 2.85
_Weighted average shares used in the
computation of income (loss) per
common equivalent share; i
Basic ......... ... .. 0. - 18,581 19,327 20,036 20,813 22,611
....................... 23,009 20,081 20,801 21,526 23,018

Diluted
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RS oo : Fiscal Year Ended; = -, . -

r

September 28 September 27, September 25, September 24 September 30

Nl - oo ’ 2002 . - -2003 - 2004 ., 2005 2006
e T i - - -+, (in thousands) ot

Other Data: Y T o C e o - G . L
Depreciation and amortization ......:.. $:17,616. - $ 17878 $ 18516 § 19,600 $ . 23,957
Capital expenditures ................. $ 10,907 $17958 $ 18264 §$ 18676 § 47589
Cash from operating activities .......... 3 72,813 $51202 $ 64414 $ 57659 § 95166
Cash used in investing activities ........ $(10,907) - $(22,572) $(192,147) $ (65,808) $ (427,721)
Cash from (used in) financing activities .. _$(59,314). +$ 38,090 . $ 62214 $ 25085 . % 332,239
Ratio-of earnings to fixed charges (3) .... ., . 3.8l 359 . 436, .. 424 331
) l.‘ , ' ‘ September 28, September 21 September 25, September 24, 'September 30,
-1 7 e . oL 2002 . 2003 T - 2005 - 2006 '

el PR P T . oo - (in'thousands)- -

Balance Sheet-Data: © + -+ ¥ B A S T oL v
Cash .. .o e e $ 10,884 $ 77, 604 $ 12221 §$ 28792 3 28,406
Working capital . ... .0 ) 154,017+ - 302,865 292,954 . 343,460 427,398
Total assets ........ L AP TR 731,957 829,098 . 960,197 .- 1,056,349 -.1.533,823
Total debi . . ... e DN SN < 212,899 250,253 305,800 323,064 - ¢ 568,449
Shareholders’ equuy T S . 377,508 425, 096 479, 796 547, 178 727, 359

n See Management 5 Dlscussmn and Analysns of Financial Condmon and Results of Operatmns herein for a
discussion of fluctuations in operating results related to internal growth and business acqmsmons for fiscal
years 20035 and 2006. .. . ..

) The cumulanve effect of accounting change in fiscal year 2002 related to the adoptlon of SFAS No 142
“Goodwnll and Other [Intangible Assets,” as described in Note 5 of the notes to the consohdated ﬁnanc1a1

, Statements

3 For the purposes of delermmmg the ratio of earnings, to ﬁxed charges earmngs consmt of income (loss)
before income taxes and cumulative effect of accounting change, excluding income and losses assocmted
wnh equity 1 method investees, and before ﬁxed charges.. Fixed charges consist of i mterest expense the
_portion of rental expense under operating leases deemed by managemem to be representanve of the interest
factor and.amortization of deferred financing costs.

(4) Fiscal year 2006 included 53 weeks fiscal years 2002-2005 1ncluded 52 weeks

s
H

25




Item 7. Management’s Dlscussmn and*Analysrs of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
ol D Ll Blwe o, 4 oA N LN
.. 'The followmg dlSClISSlOIl should be read in conjunction w1th our consolidated financial statements and the
related notes and other financial information appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K. This Form 10-K contains
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially from*.~

those indicated in forward-looking statements. Sce “Forward-Lookmg Statements” and “ltemx 1A - Risk Factors

e e :_;.:wam.vwﬂn W1 o e }fy# @ . o L P PR S LTI S
ey Lo ity - NS S Lo .. AT T E S 1 o ’
Overwew . : ¢ .-

eadr, L e 1.' PP Y . AT roo- Lo K
Central-Garden & Pet is - ledding’ mnovator marketer and producer of quality branded products We are’ one

of the largest suppliers in the lawn and garden and pet supplies industries. The total lawn and garden industry-is
estimated to be approxrmately $95 b1llron in retall sales. We estimate the retail sales of the lawn and garden
supphes mdustry in the' categones in which we partlcrpate tobe approxlmately $27 billion. The total pet industry
is estimated to be approximately $36 billion in retail sales. We estimate the retail sales of the pet supplies and
ultra-premium dog and cat food market in the categorres in which we participate to be approximately. $13 billion.

" A . o hid ‘
“+ & Qur lawn and garden supplies products mclude proprletary and non- proprletary grass seed; wild bird feed
bird feeders, bird-houses and other birding accessories; weed, grass, ant and other herbicide, insecticide and
pesticide preducts; and decorative outdoor lifestyle and lighting products including pettery, trellises and other
wood products and holiday lighting. These products are sold under a number of brand names including
Pennington, The Rebels, AMDRO Grant’s, Lilly Miller, Ironite, Sevin, Over n Out Norcal Pottery, New
England Pottery, GKI/Beth]ehem Lrghtmg and Matthews Four Seasons K

PR N O T
i N .

Our pet supplies products 1nolude products for dogs and cats, including edible bones, premlum healthy
edlble “and non- ‘edible chews iiltra-premium dog and cat fdod, leashes, collars, toys pet carriers, groommg
supphes and other accessories; products’ for birds, small animals'and specialty pets, inclading food, cages and
habitats, toys, chews and related accessories; animal and household health and insect control products; products
for-fish, repules and’ other aquanum—based pets r1ncludmg aquariums, furniture ‘and hghtmg fixtures, purnps,
filters, watér conditionérs and supplements and mformatron and knowledge resources; and products for horses
and hvestock These products are sold under 2 number of brand names 1ncludmg All-Glass Aquarium, Aqueon
RZilla, Oceanic, Coral Lifé, Kent Matite, 'Triterpet, TFH, Nylabone ‘Four Paws, Pet Seleet Kaytee Super Pet
Zodiac, Pre Strike, Altosid, Breeder s Choice, Famam Adams and B1oSpot

M
's

S

In fiscal 2006, our consolidated net sales were $1.6 billion, of which our [awn and garden segment, or
Garden Products, accounted for $802 million and our pet segment, or Pet Products, accounted for $819 million,
In fiscal 2006, our income from operations was $136.8 million of which Garden Products accounted for $57.5
million and Pet Products accounted for $104.5 million, before corporate expenses and eliminations of $25.2
million. ‘ '

Background

We have transitioned our company to a leading marketer and producer of branded products from a
traditional pet and lawn and garden supplies distributor. We made this transition because we recognized the
opportunity to build a portfolio of leading brands and improve profitability by capitalizing on our knowledge of
the pet and lawn and garden supplies sectors, strong relationships with retailers and nationwide sales and
logistics network, Our goal was to diversify our business and improve operating margins by establishing a
portfolio of leading brands. Since 1997, we have acquired numerous branded product companies and product
lines, including Wellmark and Four Paws in fiscal 1997; Kaytee Products, TFH and Pennington Seed in fiscal
1998; Norcal Pottery in fiscal 1999; AMDRO and All-Glass Aquarium in fiscal 2000; Lilly Miller in fiscal 2001,
Alaska Fish Fertilizer in fiscal 2002; Kent Marine, New England Pottery, Interpet, KRB Seed Company, (dba
Budd’s Seed), and Energy Savers Unlimited in fiscal 2004; Peis International and Guifstream Home & Garden in
fiscal 2005; and Farnam, Breeder’'s Choice, Tech Pac, Ironite and Shirlo in fiscal 2006.'
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While expanding our branded products business, we experienced adverse events in our distribution business.
From 1995 to 1999, we were the master distributor of Round Up and Ortho. In January 1999, The Scotts
Company, one of our largest distribution suppliers at the time, acqutred Ortho and became the marketmg agent
for Round Up. In July 2000, Scotts terminated its relationship with us. Subsequently, we downsized our
" distribution operations and integrated these sales and logistics networks into our pet ; and lawn and garden
products businesses to allow us to focus resources and provide strategic sales support for our brands.

Virtually all of our sales before fiscal 1997 were derived from dlstnbutmg other manufacturers products
Since then, our branded product sales have grown to approximately $1.3 billion, or approximately. 82%:of total
sales; in fiscal 2006. During this same period, our sales of other manufacturers products have declined to
- approximately 18% of total sales, and our gross profit margins have improved from 13. 6% in fiscal 1996 to
33.0% in fiscal 2006.

Recent Developments
TFH Settlement

On March 24, 2006, the trial ‘court entered a final judgment in the TFH Publtcattons Tnc. ltttgatton awardmg
us $26.6 million. On May 23, 2006 the parties agreed to a settlemént of all outstandmg clatms pttrsuant 1o'which
the Axelrods paid us $26 million. We recorded a gain as a reduction of selling, general and adrinistrative
expenses, where the related legal amounts previously expensed were reported, in the amount of $9.9 million after
applying approximately $16.1 million to the balance of the promissory note evidencing a prior loan by us t6 the'
Axelrods and other related amounts previously accrued, and recognized interest income of $1.0 million. . ,

LA

Entry into Senior Secured Credit F. acilities

" On February 28, 2006, we entered into $650 million in senior secured credit facilities to finance the Farnam
acquisition and to refinance our existing $125 million revolving credit facility maturing in May 2008 and our
existing $175 million term loan maturing in May 2009. The new credit facilities consist of a $350 million :: -
revolving credit facility maturing in February 2011 and a $300 million term loan maturing in-September 2012..
These facilities are secured by substantially all of our assets and contain certain financial covenants that require
us to maintain minimum levels of interest coverage and maximum levels of total .debt to EBITDA, and that L
restrict our ability to repurchase our stock, make investments in or acqmsmons of other busmcsses and pay

dtv:dends above certam levels over the life of the fac1]mes -
; ) .o . . [ S

G ' ' x PP RN . LI
ul

.I_’et Products Reorganization- _ ] o e .

T
‘ f

"' Throughout fiscal 2005 and-fiscal 2006, we have been streamlining our operating structure into five
strategic operating-units within our pet products segment: Aquatics; Dog & Cat; Avian & Small Animal; Life
Sciences; and Sales & Logistics. The creation of these strategic operating units, we believe, will create scalable
efficient operating platforms, more effective research and development and brand building initiatives, facilitate
interaction with retailers and enable us to more seamlessly integrate potential future acquisitions: ' We incurred
$6.4 miilion in costs in fiscal 2006 related to these reorganization activities.

In vestments in Informatmn Technology

We are in the process of implementing a scalable enterpme-mde information technology p]atform to
improve existing operations, to supportifuture growth and to enable us to take advantage of new applications and
technologies. This initiative will combine our numerous information systems into one SAP-based enterprise
system that employs best practices from across our operating units and creates both a common business model
and a system for the collection of common data. We invested approximately $15 million in fiscal 2006 and fiscal
2005 (on a combined basis) in this initiative and anticipate investing an additional $25 million in 1mplcmentat10n

-

over the next three years. - RS oot v o "o :
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/
Recent Acquisitions . . T et o R L N T ‘
We completed five acqmsmons dunng the fiscal year ended September 30 2006 ) for a tota] purchase prlce '
of $380.7 mtl]lon B ‘ oo C -
- e .g;“‘ A . " '!'.:,!.i:j 'f--'/i‘.‘
These’ acqursntronsaresummarlzed as follows (m thousands) Il e A Attt
! LI ETTR T T L P R I i A .
' Net tangible assets acquired ...................... e PR $104 016
* * Other intangible ‘assets acquired.’.. . .. . R I A SUNMUINE I V-7 L
Goodwﬂl.....'.'............;.-..'..—..’-...L'.'.;.'.'.'..‘.' ........ b o ton, 0 189,225 0
e T T
. Total consrderatlon pard (1nc1ud1ng transaction COStS) . ...l Ceiene $3SO,69_0| A
The consolidated financial statements include the effects of these acquired businesses from the dates of ~ —
acquisition. In the aggregate, in fiscal 2006 these acquisitions contributed $160 mrlhon in t;%venue and $25. . "
million in operatmg income. HRIgeq s -
x . ! R , [T .3;1;1!’
. Pro forma results of operations have ot been presented for any of the acqulsmons except for Farnam .

because the effects of all of the other acqu151tlons were not materlal to Central 5. operatmg results elther o
1nd1v1dually, or m the aggregate

LN PR A s AR R I EET LA T
e L T ' R 1 - AR At T st Tt e S
ResultsofOperatmns T S T T B R

The following tablé sets forth, for the penods indicated, the relativé petcentagés’ that certam income and ~“*
expense ilems bear to net sales:

. Y Rl VearERde
R d L, et -t September 25, September 24,, September 30,
L | 1Y ~ [ A £ ' ' L o, . g - 2004 . L 005 1 " ‘2006
Netsales .o oot on et leaa i, ER TR R SR PP 100:0% « - 100.0% ~ 100.0%.
Cost of goods sold and - occupancy e e e i, oo 69T i a0 679, 670 .
Grossprofit . >......0 0 ....... “ 303 32 330 1
Selling, general and adrmmstratlve Co Nl 1238 ‘_ 248 [ER ‘24 6
Income from operatlons ......... DR . o » ‘ 6'5 .: ‘_; . 7 3 \ :‘ 84 1
Interest eXpense, NEL ... ...t iinnne e r e S (1.4) (i 5) (2 3)
Otherincome . ........iiii et ieaaans 0.2 03 02
INCOMIE LAKES -« o o e e ettt ettt et e ettt 2.0 Y 22y TR
Minority interest ......... N R PR ry v 0 00, - 00 . @1
Netiricome ... oiin e, DU S S 33% 0 39% e 40%:-
Fiscal 2006 Compared to Fiscal 2005 - - w1« .4 . o vl he e et A
P o O I I N TCN LTI S

Net Sales

Net sales for fiscal 2006 increased $240.9 million, or 17.4%, to $1 621 5 rm]hon from $1 380.6 million in
fiscal 2005. This was due to a $244.4 million, or 22.6%, increase in obr branded product sales partially offset by
a $3.5 million decrease-in the sates of other manufacturers’ products. Incremental netisales in 2006 related to
acquisitions-made in fiscal- 2005 and 2006 were-$174.4 million-and $66.5 million were related to organic sales; .
growth. Sales of our 6wn branded products represented 82% of our total sales in fiscal 2006. In addition, fiscal .
2006 included anextra week as compared to fiscal 2005. Tl R e e
L ' I o

Garden Products sales for ﬁscal 2006 1ncreased $60 9 mnlhon or 8.2%, to $802 4. mrlhon from $74l 5
million in fiscal 2005. In fiscal 2006, our garden branded product sales increased $73.0 million, partially offset

1 ) ' !'.f
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by a $12.1 million decrease in the sales of other manufacturers’ products. The largest factors contributing to'the

sales increase of our garden branded products were incremental net sales from acquisitions made in fiscal 2005
and 2006 of $28: 6 mllhon and increased-grass ‘seed. sales of $]7 3 mllllon

Pet Products’ sal_es for ﬁscal 2006 increased $180.0 million. or 28.2%, t0'$819.1'million from $639.1 -
million in fiscal 2005. Pet branded product sales increased to $664.6 million in fiscal 2006 from $493.2 million
in fiscal 2005, and sales of other manufacturers’ products increased to $154.5 million in fiscat 2006 from $145.9
million in fiscal-2005. The mcreased sales of our pet branded products were due primarily to $145.8 milion of
mcremcnlal net sales from acquxsﬂnons madc in ﬁscal 2005 and 2006. ey

1 . ¥ Vv
. . .o Ve .
Hoeoon i s oL s, v . .-:"”'"' RO O . iles

GrossProfl‘ e Wers omEL e O AN U R R Seaa ot

Gross proﬁt mcreaﬁed $92, 7 mﬂhon or 20 9% from $442 & million in ‘fiscal 2005 0 $535 3 rmlhon in.
fiscal 2006. Gross profit increased $75.0 million in Pet Products and $17.7 million in Garden Products. Gross
profit as a percentage of net sales increased to 33.0% in fiscal 2006 from 32.1% in fiscal 2005, The, majority of
the margin lmprovement was in Pet Products The margm 1mprovement in both Pet Products and Garden
Products was due to the higher, margins earned from businesses acquired in fiscal 2006. We anticipate continued
margin improvement in fiscal 2007 due primarily to the contribution from acquisitions and higher margin
branded products, pamally offset by rising commodity grain costs in our wild bird feed operations. " .

o <ol oM IR : - . L. )
- Selling, General and Adm!nlsﬁaﬁve ' S Y o s

O S I
Scllmg, general and admlnlslratlve e,xpenses mcreased $56 0,miltjon, or 16. 4% from $342 5 mllllon in

fiscal 2005 to $398.5 million in. fiscal 2006 The increase was due pnmanly to increased selhng and delwery
expenses and 1ncrca€ed admlmstranve costs. As a percentage of net sales, selhng genera] and admlmstrauve )
expenses decreased from 24.8% durmg fiscal 2005 to 24.6% during fiscal 2006 Included in sellmg, general and
administrative expenses for fiscal year 2006 is a gain of $9.9 million from the TFH Seulement (see “Recent
Developments”). Selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2006 also included $9.9 million of
additional expenses resulting from our investment in brand building and strdtegic work. Over half of the funds
were expended. on brand building initiatives largely to accelerate the roltout of several of our brands and to create
greater consumer awareness. The balance of the proceeds was invested in new growth initiatives and human
- capital‘initiatives. Wé also incurred $6.8 million of restructuring expenses rétatéd to our profit acceleration
program o reallgn our business unit operatmg structure and rationaiize' cosls We expect to incur furthér *
restructiring expenses in fiscal 2007 R A LI
..\”.‘, . , 'il)‘ .. 1J :’: - . ',‘_ AR : 3 e
Selling and delivery experises mcreased by $39 1 million, or 22.1%, from $176.9 mllllon in fiscal 2005 to ’
$216.0 million in fiscal 2006. The increase was due pnmanly to increased sales in fiscal 2006, increased
expenditures on marketmg programs and increased fuel cost. Selting'and: delwery expenses as a percentage of net
sales. 1ncreased from 12. 8% [n‘fiscal 2005 to 13.3%-in ﬁscal 2006. ¢
o R Ry N Yo, S R ‘..‘u 57-
Fac1lmes expenses increased $1.7-million’ from $11.0 million in fiscal 2005 t0°$12.7 million in fiscal 2006.
* The increase was'due primarily to facility relocation-costs-incurred as part of our previously announced
restructuring program within Garden Products and new leases with additional square footage in Pet Products.. « -

.

' Warehouse and administrative expenses increased $15.2 million, or 9.8%, from $154.6 million in fiscal
2005 to $169.8 million in fiscal 2006.-The i incredse' was due primarily to $14.5 million related to-recent
acquisitions primarily in the Pet Products group, $6.0 million in restructuring charges related to our profit -
accelération program and $3.8-million for stock option' compensation as a result of adopting adopted Statement *
of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.” These increases were partially
offset by approx1mately $11.2 million of reduced professional fees, related-primarily to legal and litigation + :
expenses and Sarbanes-Oxley compliance costs. :
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Otherlncome SRS S Co e T A LTI

- KRR

" OtHer'income decréased $1.5 rhillion from $4 6 mllhon in fiscal 2005 fo'$3.1 rmllron in ﬁsca] 2006 The
decrease was due primarily to the acqulsltton of two compames prev1ously hccountéd for as "equity method

‘mvesnnents Thetr operatmg results are now fully consolrdated in our financial statements

H N g e bt B
T A P T N A P At

InterestExpense e I MR S ot E ,.‘I" :

* Net interest expense increased $17.1 million, or 83. 0%, from $20.6 million in fiscal 2005 to $37. 7 mrlhon in
fiscal 2006, Of this increase, $1.6 million represented & wiite-off of defefred financing fees ‘and expenses et
associated with the early retirement of our $125 million revolving credit facility and $175 million term loan. The
remainder of the increase was due primarily to the higher average debt balance resulting from acquisitions, ,
financed through our $650 million senior secured credit facilities in the current year and hlgher interest rates on

11 BN . A

PR T ¥ . * - ! e

etits ﬂoatrng rate debt ' o ""“"“‘“‘? ""‘*%W-"“ Lig -,

."}* B

Average borrowmgs for fiscal 2006 were $499 ‘million compared to $333 mtllron in ﬁscal 2005 The
average 1merest rates for ﬁscal 2006 and 2005 were 7.5% and 6.4%, respectrvely

[ B /l

1 "e e N T O e 2o

IucomeTaxes - N o e At e

Our effective tax rate in fiscal 2006 was 35.3% compared with 36.0% in fiscal 2005, The difference
between the combined statutory rate of 38.3% and the effective tax rate was due primarilydo the impact of lower
non-U.S. tax rates at our U.K.-based subsidiary, the use of federal and state tax credlts and a reversat of $2.6
million of taX reserves as a result of favorable developments ‘associated with Certain tax-audits. These reductrons
were partrally offset by addmonal prior year staté tax accruals and addmonal résérves. In fiscal 2005, the rate o
differenice was due pnmanly to the impact of non U.S. tax rates at our U.K. based sub51d1ary, a reductlon to"
certain tax reserves and the utlhzanon of state mcome tax crecltts N
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Fiscal 2005 Compared to Fiscal 2004 . st - o e e
NetSales I r el e T o
Net sales for ﬁscal 2005 mcreased $1 14 ! mt[lton or 9 0% to 81, 380 6 million from $1 266 5 Il‘lllllOﬂ in..
fiscal 2004. This was due to 2 $119.6 million, or 12.5%, increase in our branded product sales partially. offset _by
a $5.5 million decrease in the sales of other manufacturers’ products. Incremental net sales in 2005 related to .
acquisitions made in fiscal 2004 and 2005 were $83.1 million and $31.0 million related to organic sales growth

Sales of our own branded products represented 78% of our total sales in fiscal 2005.., . ., . _;r -

4

.
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Garden Products sales for fiscal 2005 mcreased $43 9 million, or 6. 3% to,$741.5 mrllron from $697 6
million in fiscal 2004, In fiscal 2005, our garden branded product sales-increased $57.8 million, partially offset
by a $13.9 million decrease in the sales of other manufacturers’ products. The largest factors contributing to the
sales increase of our- garden'branded. products were incremental net-sales from-acquisitions made in fiscal 2004
and 2005 of $36.6 million and increased sales of our wild bird feed of approx;mately $4.6 million and ant control
products of approximately, $3.7 mrllron oo e L ; I TP

Pet Products’ sales for-fiscal 2005 increased $70.2 million, or.12:3%, to $639.1 million from $568.9.million
in fiscal 2004. Pet branded product sales increased to $493.2 million in fiscal 2005 from.$43 1.4 million in.fiscal ._
2004, and sales of other manufacturers’ products increased-to $145.9 million in fiscal 2005 from-$137.5 million, ,
in fiscal 2004 The:increased sales of our pet branded products were due to incremental net sales in 2005 from ,
acquisitions made in. fiscal 2004 and 2005 of $46: 5 million and approximately $lS 3 million related to increased
organic brand sales, including $4.8 million of insect control products. | - A T VPRI
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Gross Profit

Gross profit increased $58.3 million, or 15. 2%, from $384.3 million in ﬁscal 2004 to $442.6 million in!
fiscal 2005. Gross profit increased $40.8 million, or 20.6%; in Pet Products and $17.5 million, or 9.4%, in '
Garden Products. Gross profit as a-percentage of-net sales increased to 32. 1% in fiscal 2005 from 30.3% in fiscal
2004;-as both Pet Products’ and Garden Products’ margins improved. Pet Products margins 1mproved from _
34.8% to37.3% and Garden Products from 26.7% 10 27.5% in fiscal 2005. The margin 1mprovements were due -

primarily to the incremental contributions from our acquisitions in fiscal 2004 and'2005 of approximately: '$33
million, increased grass seed margins of approximately $7 million resulting from focusing on hlgher profit

product, increased insect control products of approximately $8 million and $4.5 million in improved gross
margins and plant efficiencies in our blrd feed operatlons '

. . , .
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Sellmg, General aud Admtmstratwe ' : . B ', .

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased $40.3 million, or 13.3%, from $302.2 million in
fiscal 2004 to $342.5 million in fiscal 2005. The increase was due primarily to increased administrative costs and
selling and delivery expenses. As a percentage of net sales, selling, general and adlmmstratlve expenses
mcreased from 23.8% duiring fiscal 2004 to 24.8% dunng ﬁscal 2005 " el T ERRTN

P e s : : : S ..

" Selling and delivery expenses mcreased by $20.4 million, or'13. 0%, from $156.5 million'in fiscal 200410 °
$176.9 miltion'in fiscal 2005. The'i increase was due primarily to the 9% increase in sales and approximately -
$5 million increase in'commén carrier and fuel charges. Selling and delivery expenses’as a percentage of net -
sales increased from 12.4% in fiscal 2004 to 12.8% in fiscal 2003.

M |

Facilities expenses decreased $0.3 million from $11.3 million in fiscal 2004 to $l 1 0 million in ﬁscal 20{)5

The decrease was' due pnmarlly to facility shutdown costs within Pet Products recogmzed in ﬁscal 2004

+ [

Warehouse and administrative expenses increased $20.2 million, or 15.0%, from $134.4 million in ﬁscal
2004 to $154.6 million in fiscal 2005. Garden Products increased $5.1 million’and Pet Products increased
$6.6 million due primarily to approximately $11 million of such costs from recent acquisitions. Corporale
expenses increased $8.5 million due primarily to increased professional fees related to Sarbanes-Oxley " *
compliance of $5.6 million and legal and litigation expenses of $4.4 million, partially offset by $1.5 nnlllon B
collected on a note previously considered uncollectible. In order to achieve Sarbanes-Oxley section 404 - .
compllance at fiscal year end 2005 we mcurred approx1mately $6 mlll1on in ﬁscal 2005 T o

vl S
Othcr-lr;cor}sc . o - a . o ) ‘ l ‘ ’ '" ,
Other income increased $2.6 million from $2.0 million in fiscal 2004 to $4.6 million in fiscal 2005. While
our equity method investments performed better in fiscal 2005, $0.5 million was related to one of our equity
method investments being posmvely impacted by sales in fiscal 2005, originally expected in fiscal 2006, due toa
change in the buymg pattern‘of a clistomer:Additionally, $0.8 million of the increase was due to an equity -

method mvestment made in ﬁscal 2005 acqulred in connecuon wnth one of our acquisitions. X

Interest Expense

]

Net inierest expense increased $2.8 million, or 15.7%, from $17.8 rmlhon in ﬁscal 2004 to $20.6 million in
fiscal 2005. The increase was due primarily to increased average borrowings during fiscal 2005 compared to
fiscal 2004 and slightly h:gher interest rates on our ﬂoatmg rate debt pamally offset by 1nteresl accrued on a third
: pany rote. - a .- :

' - P
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Average borrowmgs for'fiscal 2005 were $333 million compared to $283 million in ﬁscal 2004. The
average interest rates for fiscal 2005 and 2004 were 6.4% and 5.7%, respectively. ' '

+
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Income Taxes " .

LI

Our effective tax rate in fiscal 2005 was 36.0% compared with 37.7% in fiscal 2004, The combined federal
and state tax rate was approximately 38.4% before a benefit of $1.5 million (1.7%) related to an adjuslmcnt of
prior.year tax accruals recognized in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005. In addition, the difference between the
combined statutory rate of 35% and the effective tax rate was due primarily to.the impact of non-US tax rates at
our UK based subsidiary and the utilization of state income tax credits. In fiscal 2004, the difference was due
primarily to-the impact of non-1JS tax rates and the-utilization of state income tax credits. - . r
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Inflation” “ Col .

The results of operations and financial condition are presented based upon historical cost. While it is
difficult to accurately measure the impact of inflation, we believe that the effects of inflation on our operauons
have not been material. . -

Weatheér and Seasonallty .

Historically, our sales of lawn and garden products have:been mﬂuenced by weather and chmate condltlons
in the different markets we serve. Additionally, Garden Products’ business has historically been highly ‘scasonal.
In fiscal 2006, approximately 61% of Garden Products® net sales and 56% of our total net sales occurred in the
second and third fiscal quarters. Substantially all of Garden Products’ operating income is typlcally generated in -
this period, which has historically offset the operating loss incurred during the first fiscal quarter of the year.,

Liquidity and Capltal Resources

We have financed our growth through a combmatnon of bank borrowings, suppher credit, mtemally

generated funds and sales of equity and debt securities to the pubhc
v ;;-"r v L ot . T

Historically, our busmess has been: seasonal and our workmg capital requnrements and capltal resources -
tracked closely. to this seasonal pattern. During the first fiscal quarter, accounts receivable reach their lowest level
while inventory, accounts payable and short-term borrowings begin to increase. During the second fiscal quarter,
receivables, accounts payable and short-term borrowings begin to increase, reflecting the build-up of inventory
and related-payables in anticipation of the peak Jawn and garden selling season. During the third fiscal quarter, . .
inventory levels remain relatively constant while accounts receivable peak and short-term borrowings start to
decline as cash collections are received during the peak selling season. During the fourth fiscal quarter, inventory
levels are at their lowest; and accounts receivable and payables are substantially reduced through converswn of

receivables to cash. _ C
. e -

We service two broad markets: pet supplies and lawn and garden supphes Our pet supplies busmesscs
involve products that.have a year round selling cycle with a slight degree of seasonality.’ As a result, it is not,
necessary to maintain Jarge quantities,of inventory to.meet peak demands. Additionally, this level sales cycle .. .
eliminates the need for manufacturers to give extended credit terms to either distributors or retailers, On the other
hand, our lawn and garden businesses are highly seasonal with approximately 61% of Garden Products’ net salés
occurring during the second and third fiscal quarters. For many manufacturers of garden products, this
seasonality requires them to ship large quantities of their product well ahead of the peak consumer buying
periods: To encourage distributors to stock large quantities of inventory, industry practice has been for
manufacturers to give extended credif terms and/or promotional discounts. .- . . .. .

Coar

Cash prowded by operaung activities mcreased $37.5 million from $57 7 rmlhon in ﬁscal 2005 to $95.2
million in fiscal 2006. The increase was attributable primarily to an increase in earings from operations and
non-cash charges included therein, partially offset by increased working Capl[al requirements to support, ,

increased revenue levels. o R L . K v e
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.+ Net cash used in investing activities increased $361.9 million from fiscal 2005. The increase was due
primarily to the acquisition of businesses (see Note 2 of the notes to our consolidated financial statements) and - .
increased capital expenditures. Higher capital spending during fiscal 2006 was driven by the Company’s .. .
implementation of an enterprise resource planning system. Investing cash outflows were partially offset by the
collection of a $16.1 million note in connection with the TFH settlement. The remaining $9.9 million of cash

recewed in the settlement is included in operating activities (see “Recent Developments above).

PR
-

- Net cash provrded by financing activities increased $307.1 million from ﬁscal 2005. The increase was due
pnmanly to the issuance of $650 million i in senior secured facilities and the issuance of 1,975,000 shares of our
- common stock, the proceeds of which were used to refinance our existing credit facilities and to finance the :
acqursmon of Farnam Companies, Inc. Additionally, we repurchased approximately 240,000 shares of our -
common stock to partially offset the impact of share dilution related to share-based awards.’ Tt

Ort February 28, 2006 we ananged $650 million in senior secured credit facilities to finance the Famam

acqulsttmn and to refinance the existing $125 million revolving credit facility maturing in May 2008 and the
existing $175 million térm loan maturing in May 2009. The new credit facilities corisist of a $350 million’
revolving credit facility maturing in February 2011 and a $300 million term loan maturing in September 2012,
Interest on the revolving credit facility is based on a rate equal to prime plus a margin, which fluctuates from 0%
t0.0.25%, or LIBOR plus a margin, which fluctuates from 0.75% to 1.375%, determined quarterly based on .
consolidated total debt to consolidated EBITDA for the most recent trailing 12-month period. lnterest on the term
loanis based on a rate equal to.LIBOR + 1.50% or the prime rate plus 0.50%, at our option. The term loan is .-
payable in quarterly installments of $750,000 with the balance payable in September 2012. These facilities are
secured by substantially all of our assets and contain certain financial covenants which require us to maintain
minimum levels of interest coverage and maximum levels of total debt to EB[TDA and that restricts our abtllty w
repurchase our stock, make investments 1n or acquisitions of other businesses and pay dividends above certam
levels over thetlife of the facilities. We were in compliance with all financial covenants as of Sepiernber 30,
2006, There was $119 million outstanding at September 30, 2006 under the $350 million revolvmg credit facdtty,
and the remaining available borrowmg capacity was $220 million, with $11 mlllton outstandmg under certam )
letters of credit’ : ' “ ' A - s
* In connéction with our purchase of an additional 60% équity interest in Tech Pac L'L.C! in'March 2006, we-
deposrted approximately $16 million into an escrow account for possrble contingent performance based ..
; payments over the next ﬁve years R P :
In March 2006, we. 1ssued 1,975,000 shares of common stock at an offermg price per share of $53.50. The

offermg raised apprommately $105 mtllton in net proceeds .

, In July 2006 we repurchased apprloxtmately 240 000 shares of our common stock for an aggregate pnce of
approxnmately $10 million, Our Board of Directors has authorized the repurchase ‘of up.to a total of $100 million
of our common stock, and we may continue our repurchases from time o ttme dependmg on market condmons ,

ca e
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At September 30;2006, out total debt was $568:4 million versus $323.1 million at September 24, 2005 Net
debt; or totat debt less cash and cash equivalentsincreased 6 $540 0 million vérsus $294.3:million at 1 -+,

September 24, 2005 summanzed as. follows O T T VRN IR A
L v . TR A '-:‘-:‘ Toame f‘ S ‘31‘ LN Sy ,‘."‘-.’;, Loy M
f gt e DT e st s me o e s s, s, Fiscal Year Ended
. B T L T ' « oty * . September 30, {September 24,
' . ' i t ! T 006 - S 2005 -
_ .o o o (in thousands) .
Current portion of]ong term debt R U P PR I DA T 303970 2 210
. Long-cermdebx....‘...'...,. L e T ; L 565,410 320854‘ :
ok ffrf;, PRI S t:,n--f' oo e oy
. Total debt R T L - R R P TR 568,449 .. 323 064
- Less cash and cash equlvalents g g e e e gt e s, (28,406) 1 (28 792)
TNetdebt ... el S e SN _ $540,043 _$294,272
ot St "5.“.”‘- T T T T S SO
The table below presents the 51gn1ﬁeant commerc1al credlt fac111ty avallable to us and its explrattoh ddfem -
. (in thousands) ' T T = AR !
. v LRI B T R A PR S S A .u..u'v'u-;t S
L ,‘:w',"i PR ;: 'l"'_T;"'.' . RS ‘_',";".:'-1 "‘._i, uy(_\ ot R 2 ?E:".'..‘-a‘ et
» . TntalAmount
'_ Maxxmum;CommemaLCommnentsel;L wqd B el St eLessthan erear.; v1-3ﬁ’ears,#k.‘-!ﬁg_m_'_skfmComm;uedm_»_ .
Revolvmg hne ‘Sf’&fl'edlt under Credtt Agreement Jatedhtts srivrawet .~ s fnle ‘ R RE SN T AT
February 28,2006 .57, . L A ST ST $__ St "$;* it ,$350000 $SSOOOOf
LR [T SRR R . oy, [ T '_-_. ) ':,; ¥
The table below presents our 51gn1ﬁcant contractual ‘cash obhgatlons by fiscal year {(in' mllhons) Lo
T S Bt P P - Lo ,‘Flscal Fl_s_ca_l‘ Flscal lFlscal, Flsc;l- ,... L
Contractual Obligations e e et .., _2007  2008° 2009 ° 2010 2011 . Thereafter * Total
Long-term debt, mcludmg current - ., . - . ! . Gt S r L ¥
maturities (1} .. . sone . Srea e ..., 5308 3.0 $30 $.30 $1220  .34344. § 5684
Interest payment obllgatlons (2) ........... 419 417 415 413 36.6 390, . 2420
Operating feases . ....................... 25.5 22.0 18.1 143 8.0 16.3 104.2
Purchase commitments (3} ............. Loon1127 0 548, 322, 240 -89 . 29 2355
Performance-based payments (4) ... +..c..... — . _.—. — — —_— = =
Total ........ ... .. ...l e $183.1 $121.5 $948 3$82.6 $175.5+--$4926 -$1,150.1 ¢

3] Excludes $11.0 niillion outstandmg under certain letters of credit related 16 normal busineis’ transactmns
See Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for furtlier discussion.’ " T

(2) Estimated mterest payments to be made on our long -term debt. Interest rates used to determine interest
payments on vanable rdte ‘debt are based on our estimates of future 1nterest rates as ‘of thé end of fiscal 2006.

See Note 7 of the Notes to Consohdated financial Statements for further dlSCUSSlOﬂ o

(3) Contracts for purchases of g;ams grass seed dnd pet food’ ingredients; ‘used pnmanly to mitigate nsk
- associated with increases in market prices and commodity availability.

(4) Possible performance-based payments associated with prior acquisitions of businesses are not included in
the above table because they are based on future performance of the businesses acqmred which is not yet
known. Performance~based payments made in 2006 were approximately $8 million and in 2005 were not

matenal

We believe that cash flows from operating activities, funds available under our revolving credit facility, and
arrangements with suppliers will be adequate to fund our presently anticipated working capital requirements for
the foreseeable future. We anticipate that our capital expenditures will not exceed $40 million for the next 12
months. The increase in expected capital expenditures, compared to our historical rate, is due to our
implementation of a scalable enterprise-wide information technology platform to improve existing operations, to
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support future growth and to enable-us to take advantage of new applications and technologies. We invested. -
approximately $15 million in fiscal 2006-and-2005 (on a combined basis) in this,initiative and anticipate , -
investing an.additional $25 million to.implement our new information technology strategy over the next three .
years. This initiative, when complete, will combine our numerous information systems-.into one enterprise system
and create a common business model and common data, which should create greater efficiency and effectiveness.

As part of our growth strategy, we have acquired a ‘umber of compames in the past and we antmpate that

we will contirive to evaludte potential acquisition candidates in the-fuiture: If on€ of moré potential acquisition

opportunities, inchiding those that would be material, become’ available‘in the near future, we may require
additional extemal capital: In addition, such acquisitions would'subject us ‘to the genieral risks assocrated with -

[

acqumng compames particularly if the' acqmsttlons are relatwely large e
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Off. Balance Sheet Arrangements ' '
" We have not entered into any transactions wnh unconsolldated .entities whereby we have financial . .0
guarantees subordinated retained interests, derivative mstruments or other contingent arrangements that expose
us tomaterial contmumg risks, contmgent liabilities, or any other obhganon ‘under a variable mterest in-an--

unconsolidated ennty that prov1des financmg, l1qu1d1ty, market risk or credit risk support to gs, T e 5 '
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RecentAccountmg Pronouncements . . : .

¢ .

AccounungforStock-BasedCompensanont I ':‘.-i B TP S

Through 2005, we accounled for our stock plans using the mtrmsm value méthod. Effectwe the beginmng of
ﬁscal 2006, we adopted the F1nanc1a1 Accountmg Standards Board (“FASB") Statement of F1nanc1al Accountmg
Standards {“SFAS”) No. 123(R) “Share Based Payment " and elected the modlﬁed proSpectwe apphcatlon '
method upon adoption. SFAS No. 123(R) requires us to use a fair-valuie-based method in determining stock-"
based compensatlon ,Accordingly, stock- based compensanon cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair
value of the award, ‘and expensed over the employees serv1ce penod Total compensation cost for our share—
based compensanon plans in fiscal 2006 was $5.1 million.

e

Accountmg Changes and Error Correcuons N
. ln Mayl2005 the FASB 1ssued SFAS No 154 “Accountmg Changes and Error Cerrectlons - a rep]acement
of APB, .Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3. SFAS No. 154 requires retrospectwe appllcatlon to prior-
period financial statements of changes in accountmg pnncnples unless itis lmpracucable to determine erther the |
period- spec1ﬁc effects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS No. 154 also redefines * restatement ,as the
revising of préviously issued financial statements to reflect the correction of an error. “This statement is effecnve

for accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after December l_SJ 2005.
T T
S : "
ln June 2006 the FASB tssued Interpretanon (“FIN™) 48, “Accountmg for Uncertamty in lncome Taxes =t
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109,” which clarifies the accounting for uncertajnty in income taxes B

Accountmg for Uncermmty in Income Taxes

recognized in an enterprise’s financial statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income . |

Taxes.” FIN 48 prescribes.a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial statement ,

~ recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 is effective.
for-fiscal years beginning after December 15; 2006. We are currently evaluating t the impact of FIN 48 on our
financial statements. , . . - . . e L

Fair Value Measurements . e

2, In September 2006, the FASB issued SFASNo..157, “Fair Value Measurements.”, SFAS No. 157 defines
fair value as.the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly-transaction
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between market participants at the measurement.date: The standard also establishes a framework for.measuring -
fair value and provides for expanded disclosurés about fair value measurements. SEAS No. 157 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 We are currently evaluatmg the lmpact of SFAS No 157 on-our
consolidated financial statements. « " - - "o ' T
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Consrdenng lhe Effects of Prior. Year Mrsstatements . .
Tn September 2006 the Secunues and Exchange Commtssron issued Staff Accountmg Bulletm (“SAB”)
No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Y.ear Misstatements when Quantlfymg Misstatements in Current Year
Financial Statements.” SAB No. 108 provides interpretive guidance on the consideration of the effects of prior
.year misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements when evaluating materiality. SAB No. 108is . , |
effective for fiscal years ending after November 15, 2006. We believe that the adoptlon of SAB No. 108 wrll not

have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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Crrttcal Accountmg Pol:cres, Estlmates and Judgments ) "' T .

Our dtscussron and ana]_vsrs of our, ﬁnancral condttton and results of operatwns are' based upon our consolrdated
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting pnncrples general]y accepted in the
United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts and related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Estimates and .
assumptions are required for, but are not limited to, accounts receivable and inventory realizable values, fixed asset
lives, long-lived asset valuation and impairments, deferred and current income taxes, self-insurance accruals and the
impact of contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other'
assumptlons that are belteved to be reasonable under the crrcumstances, the result of which forms the basis. for
making judgments about the carrymg va]ue of assets and habtlmes that are not readtly apparent. from other sources
Actual results may, dlffer from those estlmates under dtfferent assumpttons or conditions. , '

AIthough not “all inclusive, we ‘believe, that the followmg represent the more critical accounting policies,
which are subject to estimates ‘and assumptions ‘used in the preparatron of our consolidated ﬁnancral statements.

A A

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We record an allowance for credit losses and disputed balances resultmg from custorers’ mabtltty to make
required payments: We' esumate our allowance based on both specific identification and historical experience. If
the finanicial condition of our customers was o deferiorate, or we were not able to demonstrate the valldrty of’
amounts due, additional allowances may be requtred For more’ 1nformatton see Note 4 of the: notes 1o our-
consoltdated ﬁnancral statements g '
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Inve’ntory-

Inventory, which primarily consists of lawn and garden products and pet supplies finished goods, is stated at
the lower of first-in first-out (“FIFO”) cost or market. Cost includes certain indirect purchasmg, merchandise
handling and- storage costs including certain salary and data processing costs incurred td acquire or manufacture
inventory, costs to unload, process and put away shipments received to prepare them to be picked for orders, and
certain overhead costs. We compute the'amount of such costs capitalized to inventory based onan estimate of

costs related to theé procurement'and processing of inventory to prepare it for sale compared to total prodict
purchases. When necessary; we have reduced the carrying value-of our inventory if market conditions indicate
that we will not recover the carrying cost upoh sale. Future adverse changes'in market conditions related 10 our
products would result in an additional charge to income in the period in which such conditions occur.”* .
Goodwill ' ' :
We test the carrying value of our goodwill for impairment on an annual’ basis on the first day of our fourth

quarter. We use projected future operating results and cash flows of our reportmg uruts to establish the fair. value:

36




used in evaluating the carrying value of the associated goodwill. If estimated future results of operations differ.
from those projections used by management, or if alternative valuation methodologies had been used.in

determining the reporting units’ fair value, additional impairment charges may have to,be recogmzed as chargcs
to income in the year in which.such conditions occur.. .+ -« 0 v v 1 Ve S

We performed our annual goodwill impairment analyses as of June 25, 2006, June 26, 2005 and June 27,
2004. Based on the results of those analyses no 1mpa1rrnent of goodwill was indicated.
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Lang-Lwed Assets L X . j L
+ We téview our long-lived assets for potentlal impdirmient based on'a review of prOJected undlscounted cash’

flows associated with these assets. Long-lived assets are included in impairment evaluations when events and

circumstances exist that indicate the carrying amount of those assets may not be recoverable, Measurement of
impairment losses for long-lived assets that we expect to hold and use is based.on the,estimated fair value of the

assets. We have recorded asset impairment charges when the carrymg value of an asset was in excess of its fair
value. Should markét condmons or the assumptlons used by us ini deterrnmmg the fair va]ue of assets change or
management change p]ans for usage of cenam assets, "additional charges to’ operatlons may be requrred in the at
perlod in whlch such condmons oecur R R R . RRE R
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Stock-BasedCompensanon T S TR T T N 1 F 17 G

*'In fiscal 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R) usmg the modified prospectwe transition method and began
accounting for our stock-based compensation using a fair-valued-based recognition method. Under the provisions
of SFAS No. 123(R), stock-based compensation cost is estimated at the grant date based on the fair value of the
award and is expensed ratably over the service period of the award::Détermining the appropriate fair.value model
and calculatmg the fa1r Yvalue of stock- based awards at the grant date requnres considerable Judgment 1nclud|ng
estimating stock pnce vo]anhty, expected optlon life and forfelture rates We develop our esumates based on

historical data and market information whrch can change sngmﬁcant]y over t1me e

L2

We use the Black-Scholes option valuation model-to value employee stock awards. We estimate stock price
volanhty based on.an average historical volauluy of our stock Estimated opuon life and forfenure rate
assumptions are also derived from hrstonca] data. ‘We recognize compensauon expense usmg the stralght lme
amortization method for stock- based compensation awards with graded vesting. Had we used altemauve o
valuanon methodologres the amount we expense | for stock- based _payments could be si gmﬁcantly d:fferent .

]

IucomeTaxes o ) ‘
L e r L a * lJa( 1] - .«:"l ot Haa ' '

s We account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109,,“Accountmg for Income Taxes ” Deferred,
income taxes result primarily, from bad debt allowances, inventory, write-downs, deprecrapon and nondeductible
Teserves. We have considered future taxable income and ongoing prudent and feasible tax planning strategies in
part of our net deferred‘tax assets,m the future an adjustm_ent_ would ,be recognrzed in the p_enod such
determination was made.' We have determined that certain deferred tax assets associated with the potentialitax .,
benefit of state income tax net operating losses are not likely to be realized in the future and-have provided a .
valuation allowance on those assets. For more information, see Note.9 of the notes to our consolidated financial .
statements. ’ e

'i»i'»‘i' e Lt P, Wi .'..‘: . " v

- . . ‘.‘ . - N .I . . o '. . .r . ) . o :' "‘l’ . b .

Accruals for Self Insurance o o ' L , '

. M A e, 7 I o - ot LR

We maintain insurance for certain risks, including workers’, compensanon general hablhty and vehlcle
liability, and are self-insured for employee related health care benefits. Our workers’ compensation; general

liability and vehicle liability insurance policies include deductibles of $250,000 to $350,000 per.occurrence. We .
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maintain excess loss insurance that covers any health ¢are costs in excess of-$150,000 per person-per year. We
establish reserves for losses based on our claims experience and industry actuarial estimates of the ultimate loss
amount inherent in the claims, including losses for claims incurred but not reported. Any differences'in estimates
and assumptions could result in accrual requirements materially different from the calculated accruals. . & -

.
L . . . f o L [

Acquisitions _ _ _ L _
R I T L T R g T TE T (T B 111 o A NG S i
In connection with businesses we acquire, management must determine the fair values of assets acquired

and liabilities assumed. Considerable judgment and estimates are required to determine such amounts,
particularly as they relate to identifiable intangible assets, and the applicable useful lives rélated thereto, Under
different assumptions, the resulting valuations could be materially dlfferent which could materially i 1mpacl the
operating results we report R T L T e ”
vty S T ER AT R [ R SR
"Comrnim'zems and Contingencies - S - : : “ o
As dlscussed in Note 8 of the notes to our consolldated financial statements we are mvolvecl in certain legal

matters as well as other matters ln01dental ‘to our business, the dnpot;ltlon of which are not expected fo have a
material effect on our financial position or results of operations. We use our best estimates to determine the
probable outcome and costs associated with the resolution of such matters. These estimates are developed in
consultation with outside counsel handling these matters and are based upon a combination of potential lmgatlon
and sestlement strategies. It is possible, however, that future results of operations for any particular quarter or
annual period could be materially affected by adverse developments or changes in management's strategy related

to lhese proceedmgs

Item"IA Quantitative and Qealitative Disclesure About Market Risk )

We are exposed to market risks, which mclude changes in U.S. interest rates and commodity prices and toa
lesser extént, foreignexchange raies We do not engage in ﬁnancml transactions for trading or speculauve e
purposes. ‘

Interest Rute Risk. The interest payable on our credit facilities and $75 million of our senior subordinated
notes is based on variable interest rates and therefore affected by changes in market interest rates. If interest rates
on our variable rate débt had changed by 10% compared to actual rates, interest- expense would have increased or
decreased by dpproximately $3.0 million in fiscal 2006. In addition, we have investments con51st1ng of cash
equivalents and shori-térm investments in tdrketable debt securities; which are also affected by changes in -
market interest rates.

Commodity Prices. We are exposed to fluctuations in market prices for grains, grass seed and pet food
ingredients. To’mitigate risk associated with increases in market pricés arid commodity availability, we enter into
contracts for purchases, primarily to ensure comimodity availability to us in the future. As of September 30, 2006,
we had entéred into fixed purchase comritments for fiscal 2007 totaling approximately $113 million, A 10%
change in the market price for these commodities would have resulied in an additional pretax gain or loss of
$1.3 million related to the contracts outstanding as of September 30, 2006. As of September 24, 2003, we had
entered into fixed purchase commitments for fiscal 2006 totaling approximately: $95 million. A-10% change in
the market price for these commodities' would have resulied in an additional pretax gain or loss of $9.5 million.
related to the contracts outstanding as of September 24, 2005.. coe A T

Foreign Currency Risks. Our market risk associated with foreign currency rates is not considered to be
material. To date, we have had minimal sales outside of the United States. Purchases made by our U.S.
subsidiaries from foreign vendors are primarily made in U.S. dollars. Our international subs:dlary transacts most
of its business in British pounds. Therefore, we have-only minimal exposure to foreign currency exchange risk.
We do not hedge- agamst foreign currency risks.and believe that forelgn currency exchange risk.is immaterial to :

[ ,

our current business. * o i PRI g \ n R . ,
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL.OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING -

Central Garden & Pet Company’s management, under the supervision of Central’s Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, is tesponsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act). Management evaluated
the effectiveness of Central’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in fnternal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (*COSO”) of the
Treadway Commission..The evaluation did not-include-consideration of internal control over financial reporting
associated with the businesses we acquired during ﬁscal year 2006, because it was not possible to assess the
acquired businesses’ internal ¢ontrol over financial reporting in the penod ‘between the acquisition dates and
September 30, 2006, the assessment date for purposes of this report. Some.-of the acquired businesses are
mgmﬁcant to.our consolidated ﬁnzmcml statements. The acqulred businesses constltute approx1mately 25 percent
of total assefs and 20 percent of income from opeérations of the consolidated financial statemeénts of the Company
as of and for the year ended September 30, 2006. We will assess the internal control over financial reporting of
these acquired businesses in fiscal-year 2007 and will repoit any matenal change in our 1ntemal control over.
financial reporting in our future periodic reports. I A L L R

Based on eva]uatlon of the cmena set ‘forth by COSO'in Intema! Control = Integrated Framework
management codcluded that the Company s internal control over financial rcpomng was éffective as of
September 30,2006: .-+ - v L ca e Do DL g . Co

. . . L R '

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become ineffective
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

., . ! - AL e
. . - A J, 1, AT TN L . N . ,'

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders.of . ...7 ,: S L T A

Central Garden & Pet Company

Walnut Creek, California

. We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Central Garden & Pet Company and
subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of Septemiber 30, 2006 and September-24, 2003, and the related consolidated
statements of operations,.shareholders’ equity-and'cash flows for.each of the fiscal years in the three-year period

- ended September:30, 2006. We also have audited management’s:assessment, included in the accompanying

“Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting,” that the Company maintained.effective
internal control over financial reporting as of September.30,-2006 based on the criteria established in Intérnal
Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway '
Commission.. As described in Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, management
excluded from their assessment the internal control over financial reporting. businesses acquired during fiscal- *
year 2006 (the “Acquired Businesses”), because it was not possible to assess the acquired business’s internal
control over financial reporting in the periods between the acquisition dates and September 30, 2006. The
Acquired Businesses constitute approximately 25 percent of total assets and 20 percent of income from
operations of the consolidated financial statéients of the Companyas of and-for the year ended September 30, .
2006. Accordingly, our audit did not include the internal control over financial reporting at the Acquired
Businesses. The Company’s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for
maintaining internal control over financial reporting and for management’s assessment of the effectiveness of «
internal control over financial reporting. Our respionsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements, an opinion on management’s assessment, and an opinion on the éffectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. T T

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal

- control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the ¢ircumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions. :

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of,
the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of vnauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
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prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of thié effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may.
deteriorate. - . . :

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position.of Centrali@arden.&: Pet Company and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2006 and
September 24, 2005, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the fiscal ycars in the
three-year period ended September 30, 2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. Also, in our opinion, management’s-assessment that the Company maintained-
effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material - , -
respects, based on the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company

maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2006,

based on the criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. \
As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of

Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share Based Payment,” effective September 25, 2005. SR

+

fs/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
San Francisco, California
December 12, 2006




CENTRAL GARDEN & PET. COMPANY
- 7" CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS". . _,

. September 30, September 24,
e ‘ : 2006 2005
Lo ) . ’ (in thousands)
o T L “ ASSETS
Current assets: e .
Cashandcashcquwalcnts.......................................,..: ‘§ 28406 § 28792
. Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $12,798 - . i ol
_ and $11L,712 oo 239,172¢ -, 184,896
..Inventories ..... e T ST S Lo 332,214 v+ 270,736
Prepaid eiﬁeuses_deferréd méome taxes and othcr R, -1 34,910 . 25,853
" Total CUITENE ASSEIS ... v o v & et e e e e e e e e et e e . 634,702+ ... 510,277,
Land buildings, improvements and equipment: . - . e Lty
CLland L .. 9018 .+ 5,880
- Buildings and improvements .. ................ e 89400 69,946
- Transportation eqUIPMENt ... = ...ooiuiuin i i 5,187 4 658
Machmery and warehouse equipment e e 122,101, 89 783
Office furniture and EQUIDIMENE - -\ttt 43,474 35,549
L Total et i 269,180 205,816
Less accumulated deprccumon and amortization ............ st - (106,576) 0 - 1 (95,221)
Land, bu1ldmgs, lmprovement§ and equipment —net ... .. ...l 162,604 l 10,595
Goodwill .. ... i e e . 557,820 364847
Other intangible assets, net ......... P Ll P L ©U110,548 "' 24,835
Qther assets ............... e 68149 45,795
¥ T K $1,533,823 1$1,056,349
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable .. ... .. e $ 122960 $ 96,455
ACCTUEd EXPENSES . . . oL 81,305 " 68,152
Current portion of long-termdebt . ...... ... ... .. .. .. .o il 3,039 2,210
Total current liabilities . . ......... ... .. ... ... . .. .., 207,304 166,817
Long-termdebt ... ... ... 565,410 320,854
Deferred income taxes and other long:term obligations ....................... 29,583 18,500
Convertible redeemable preferred stock ... ... ..o i i 3,000 3,000
MINOILY IIETESL . . . oot vttt et e e e et e e ae e ettt aaee et e e 1,167 -
Commitments and contingencies .. ....... ..o rin i i i .
Shareholders eqmty :
Class B stock 16 16
Common stock - 218 334
Additional paid-i m capltal ........................................... 540,604 577073
Retained earmngs ................................................. 185,031 119,497
Deferred compensation .. ..............c.iiiieriniiitiiaas — 4,377
Treasury StOck . ... ... e e e — (145,581)
Accumulated other comprehensive income ......... . ... i 1,490 216
Total shareholders’ equity ........ ..o i 727,359 ) 547,178
Total ....... P $1,533,823  $1,056,349

‘See notes'to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL GARDEN & PET COMPANY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

' Fiscal Year Ended
i ‘_u - B ' September 30, September 24, September 25,
. 2006 2005 2004
(in thousands, except per share amounts) .
Netsales ........oooooennn e $1,621,531 . $1,380,644  $1,266,526
Cost of goods sold and occupancy .. T R SRRy l,086,_219_ 937,989 882,227
O GOSS PIOTIL . e v v e e ettt e e e e e e e B 535312 442,655 384,299
Selling, general and administrative €Xpenses . ................... 398,510 342,526.... 302,227
_Income from. uperatmns B 0 faac o oy e oo 3078 - S'Z,O@W
Interest BEPEISE v o o\ i ettt e et e (40, 677) (23,125) (18,282)
INErESt INCOMIE . .. v it it it s et e e et in e e e ieee e anas . 3,007 . ~2,465 - 529
Other.income .:% . ............ e 3,083 . 4,576 . 2,023
lncorfle before income taxes and minority interest . . ......... ... 102,215~ + 84,045 66,342
INCOME tAXES - . ..% s e eee e ranns e 35,791 + 30,258 24,992
Mmontymterest..........:....‘.......:..' ................. 890 ' - =
Netincome .......oooorvmviinn. e $ 65,534 § 53,787 $ 41,350
Net income per common equwalem share: * S S . . )
Basic ......... .o e P $ 290,,$ 258 % 2.06
Diluted ...... O D PO '$ 285 § 250§ 199
Wenghted average shares used in the computatlon of net mcome per o
conimon equivalent share: ' ' .
TBASIC .. 22,611 © 20813 20,036
Diluted ' .......... ' 23,018 . 21,526 20,801
v ot

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CENTRAL GARDEN & PET COMPANY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

y (dollars in thousands)
" o ' ] ) . * Accumulated
. Class B Stock, . ' Common Stock Agﬁ};‘f’i:nl E::.i;‘g C_R:’"“",’, Treasury Stock Cum:u)r'::: sive
Shares Amount , Shares Amount Capital  (Deficit) Expense Shares Amount Income Total ;
Balance, September 27, -t b e U
2003 L. i 1,654,462 516 .+31,909.919 $319.$545228 § 24360 § -— (13,742,250).5(144,827) % — $425,096
Tax benefit from exercise . ) oo D I AR :
of stock options ....... 49120 ’ i ' o 4,972
Issuance of common - . ' e :
Lostock S 605,301 6 5,236 ' Pt T ) 5,242
Comprehensive income  + T I ,
Net change in foreign ' . L ' . .
- currency translation. . . .. . ’ w4 ' o 136 136
Met income , ... .. A - 41,350 ERYEEI 41,350 .
Total comprehensive L the M e[ '
income .............. . .o e . 41,486
Balance, September 25, FH , ) \ T
2004 ... .. e 1654462 16 32515220 325 555436 65710 To(13,742,250) (144,827) 136~ 476,796
Tax benefit from exercise : : , sttt '
_of stock options . .... .. 9,801 S R 9,801
Issuance of common ' ’ P
stock .. 762,916 8 6,624 IR AR 6,632
Repurchase of common - L A Tl U DU '
stock ..oy . R Vo ©, s W(17.615) . L (T754) (754)
Issuance of restricted vy . ' , . :
stock .. .. 141,420 1 5212 (5213) - T ¥ -
Amortization of deferred ' B ‘ oy . (A
compensation_ .. ....... 836 . 836 ..
Comprehensive income A R A S :
Net change in foreign o e ‘
currency translation. . .. . feorietTget- 0 80
Net income,.,........ PRI N 53,787 ' et whi, o 53,787
Total comprehensive ’ CT e ' R R '
income .............., -~ yt T . a : 53,867
Balance, September 24, . T . _ or e
2005 ..., 1,654.462 16 33,419,556 334 577,073 119497 4377y (13,759,865) (145,581) 216 547,178 .
Reclassification of deferred . : T SR PR b : '
compensation upon ' -
adoption of SFAS . ) - ' ‘ poe AR
No.123(R) .......... T Iy (4,376) 4377 -y e, s , -
Stock-based . " S N 1 ,
compensation ......... t ) 109,403 5,064 R L - 5.064
Tax benefit from exercise A TR o
of stock options ....... Vaa 4,026 ‘ . . . 4,026
Conversion of Class B . : ! T " y
stock into common A o Yede ST o
Stock Lo (2,200) o 2,200 ‘ ‘ . s vt T L —_
Issuance of common . . . Co
stock ... £t 503,730 5 9737 c ot ' T 9,742
Secondary public . - . DL N . . - i
offering .............. © 1,975,000 20 104,535 . . , 104,555
Repurchase of common . - .
stock .. ..l \ 241,593y () (10012) - , -1, e Ve (10,014)
Retirement of wreasury - - ) '
1107 (13,759,865) (138) (145,443}, woo,or ot 13759865 145581 ., - . ¢ —
Comprehensive income ) . :
Net change in foreign Ao, - Pis o v .
currency translation. . . .. o L et e, . 1274 1,274
Netincome ............. 65,534 ' i 65,534
Total comprehensive . e . T
income .............. . 66,808
Balance, September 30, . ' .
2006 ....... ... e 1,652,262 §16 22,008,431 $218 3540604 5185031 § —- 3§ -~ 8 4 US1490  $727.359
- . - = i :
e, oa ) Lo e ey

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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‘ CENTRAL-GARDEN & PET COMPANY
'+ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF-CASHFLOWS .. -

. . b s , Fiscal Year Ended
. T September 30, September 24, September 25,
S e ... 2006 .. 2005 2004
CLT T ki ,q_'. PP e (0 thousands}_ v o e ,
e ot S SR DY oheratiig aciiVillé?f“"“L‘ SRR e R R M St
T Net income- . . . ... e e e $.65534 $ 53787 $ 41350 7
.. Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provndcd by . S
) operating activities: . S L
e " Depreciation and amortization ............. el .. 23957 19,600 18,516 . .~
: Stock-based compensation . . .. ... ST 5064 836. —
- Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards ......... .. {4,026) — g
Minority interest ........... O S P 890 — Toa— T
‘ Deferred income taxes ...........viiirnrerrinarnnns 5,288 4,057 1165 -
‘ . Loss (gain) on disposal of property ........... e 19 (716) (302) -
. Changes in assets and Liabilities (excluding businesses o o
' acquired); | _ ' et t
Receivables . .......... .. inan e (8.033) 6,356 (16,543) ‘
. INVENIOTIES ...\ e et iiiinnnn P . (10,704) . {21,515) 9421 -
SR K . Prepaid expenses and other assets ................ 12,179 2,642y - (3,322) .
S o Accounts payable ................ ... ... P 7,517 (12,460) {5,990)
ACCrued eXpenses . ... ...y . - (5,167 9,964 13,326
Other long-term obligations ..................... 2,648 392 .- 193
Net cash provided by operating activities . ...... 095,166 57,659 64,414 -
Cash flows from investing activities: B oo
K Additions to Property ................. b (47,589)  (18,676) (18,264)
Businesses acquired, net of cash acquired .................. (380,690) (62,194) (158,947) -
Collection of note related to litigation settlement ............ 16,058 . — —
Restricted mvestmems ......................... P e (15,500) 15,062 " (14,936) ¢
Nel cash used by investing activities .......... (427,721) {65,308)- -. (192,147) .-
Cash flows from financing activities: ‘
Repayments on revolving line of credit .................... (878,678) (291,000) (87 823)
Borrowings on revolving line of credit . ........ .. e .. 982,530 236,000 |, 142, 823
Repayments of long-termdebt . ......... ... ... o (473,322) (1,554) - (1,028)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt . ... .. PP e 600,000 75000 . ="' "
Proceeds from issuance of common stock . ... ... ... 1114297 7926 . 8242
Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards . ......... s 4026 0 0 — — A
Repurchase of common stock . ... .. e e e (10,014) — =
Treasury stock purchases .............oveiiinineenion, = (754) e
Payment of financing costs .. ..........oovvieiiiinn., oo (6,600) (333 —
Net cash provided by financing acnvmes ....... < 332,239 25,085 . 62,214 ' -\,
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and equivalents ........ S €10 365) . . 136 ‘
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............. ' (386) 16,571 ~ . 1(65383)::+
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ................ . 28,792 12,221 - ~77604 -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ... .... PO $ 28406 . $ 28792 $. 12221 .
Supplemental information: - - — DT - . v
. Cash.paid forinterest ............coovvenn.. Cieeaaan . .% 38842, $ ,22 780  § 17,350
= . - Cash paid for income taxes — net of refunds . . ... T 27711 - 15,179 12,078
Liabilities assurned in connection with acquisitions .......... © 52,215 4,833 16,353

See notés'to consolidated financial statéments.
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CENTRAL GARDEN & PET-COMPANY
"«. . NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .

Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2006,

Gy 8 T Se‘pcember' 24, 2005 and Septémber 25,2004 - -t - :
& :rﬁ'h M’S{é‘ l‘f ;.‘.: L . . ,oie e, - T .. I N
1. Orgamzatlon ind: Slgmﬁcant Accountin Pohcnes ' SR I I T e
AR igsird LIIIQEW e AR L TR .,n%ss Aoree ) D A )

Orgamzanon Central Garden &~PelsCompany (“Centml") a Delaware corporanon and. SUbSIdlElI'lBS (thel
“Company™), is a leading marketer and producer of quallty branded products for the pet and lawn and garden -
supplies markets.

L I L v Yool w B K

Baszs of Consohdanon and Presemanon The consohdated financial statements mc]ude the accounts of
Central and all majority- “owned subsidiaries. Minority interests in consolidated entities are recognized for the
share of assets, liabilities and operating results not owned by Central. Earnings from equity method investments -
are included in other income. All significant intercompany balances and transactions-have be'en eliminated. . .. ~.

N T AR . -~ PN

Minority Interest — Minority interest in the Company's consolidated financial staternents represemc; the 20%
interest not owned by Central in a consolidated subsidiary. Since the Company-controlsthis subsidiary (effective
as of March 2006), its financial staiements are fully consolidated with those of the Company, and the minority

owner’s 20% sharc of the subsndlary 5 net assets and results of opcrauons isireported as.minority interest. »

. o o e ) LR ' tom i ‘,“ o,

Varaab!e Imeresr — The Company has.identified.a potential variable interest in the primary suppller .
Contract Packaging, Inc. (CPI"), to one of its subsidiaries, Tech Pac, L.L.C. (“Tech Pac”")-A contractual -
arrangement between the two parties, originally entered into on February 20,-1998, provides for a portion.of - .:
CPI's costs to be-passed onto Tech Pac based on Tech Pac’s relative percentage.of total'sales made by -« -
CPL However, Tech Pac has no ownership interest in CPLiand has no access to, and no right-to access, CPI's
financial statements. The Company is therefore not able to‘perform the-financial analysis necessary. to concludet
whether Tech Pac’s relationship with CPI would require consolidation of CPI into the Company’s financial
staternents under Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation (“FIN") No. 46 (Revised), )
“Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” The relationships between the entities are discussed in Note 14 - 1"
Transaclions with Related Parties.

r " . ' .
PR - by 'L .' ot I R B 1. T ,.' L ]

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting pnncnples T
generally accepted in the United- Statés of Amenca'reqmres that managemerit maké estimates'and assumptlons t:
that affect the reported amounts of ‘assétstand’ liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities asof
the date of the/financial statements and the: reponed amounts ‘of'revenues’ and expenses during the reporting:
period including realiZation of accounts receivable and’ inventory and vahiétion" Gfigoodwill. Actual results could !
differ from those estlmates
[ O N, . o A .

' Revenue Recognition — Sales aré recogmzed when merchandise is shipped, titie passes to the customer and -
the Coinpany has no further obligations to prov1de seivices related to'such'merchandise. Discounts, volume-
based rebate incentives and most cooperative advemsmg amounts'are recorded as &' reduction of sales. The'!  ~ -
Company’s current practice on product returns generally is to accept and credit the retufn of unopered cases of -
products from customers where the quantity is small, where the product has been misshipped or the product is
defective. ‘Accruals for estimated returns are deducted from net sales at thc time of shlpment Sales also nclude
shlppmg and handlmg costs billed dlrectly to customers. ’

4 . ‘ e P . . e B - ' '
+ I - " . L i h o ~

+ PPN

Cosr of goods sold and occupancy consists of cost of product ‘inbsund frelght charges, purchasing and *
receiving costs, certain indirect purchasing, merchandise handling and storage costs, internal transfer costs as
well as allocanons of overhead costs including deprcr:latlon relatéd to the Company s facﬂmes Cost of goods

s ! r i R IR B £ BT . F A Y
L - .
v, +

T P ' PR EO R N M T T EE
A
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- 1 BT - S
sold excludes substantially all shlppmg and handlmg and out bound frelght costs to customers, whlch are
included in selling, general and administrative expenses as deltvery expenses.  The cost of shipping and handling,
including internal costs and payments to third parties, included in delivery expenses within selling, general and

. administrative expenses for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2006, September 24, 2005 and September 25,
2004 were-$69.2 million, $60.3 million and $55.9 million, respectwely Amounts bllled to customers for .

shipping and handling costs are in¢luded'in net sales.  « T
‘Advertising Costs — The Company expenses the costs of advertising as incurred. Advertising expenses were
$35.2 million, $18 9 mllllon and $18 6 mllllon in ﬁscaI 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectlvely‘ Mo e

. . ‘.
. i ‘.ll N G e

" .401{k) Plans - The Company SpONSOrS several 401(1() plans which cover substantlally all employees. The -

Company s matching contributions expensed under these plans were $1,173,000, $992,000 and $871,000 for*
B R SR
ﬂSC&] y ears 2006 ?ngj al,l_d 2(?0‘: respetheg[W ot -»ji G o i dm?kq}‘t‘ [P o AEl g~ -
,,,;& O:her;u;tcom‘:éfé'fﬁfg?;t‘s#pnnmpally of earnings from equtty method investments.’
-‘.|_'~',. T . AT N , v

Income taxes are accounted for.under:the- asget. and habthty method in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Deferred income taxes
result primarily from bad debt allowances, inventory and goodwill write-downs, depreciation and-nondeductible
reserves. The Company establishes a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets when management believes. itis:
more likely than not a deferred tax asset will not be realized:. As-of fiscal 2006.and 2003, the Company had - -
valuation allowances related-to state net operating losses of $5.5 million.and $4.4 million, respectively. United*
States income taxes have not been provided on undistributed earnings of the Company’s forelgn subsidiary since
all such earnings are considered indefinitely reinvested overseas.. - - RETER o

o [ 1 (LA b . ra-"-k'

Cash and cash equivalents mclude all hlghly llqutd debt mstruments w1th a maturity of three months or less;
at the date of purchase.. © -« i L . T .

Inventories, which primarily consist of garden products and pet supplies ﬁmshed goods, are stated at the
lower of FIFO cost.or market. Cost includes certain indirect purchasing, merchandise handling and storage costs
including certain salary and data processing costs incurred to acquire.or manufacture inventory, costs to unload,,
process and put away shipments received in order to prepare them to be picked for orders, and certain other
overhead costs, The amount of such costs capitalized to inventory is computed based on an estimate of costs* ..
related to the procurement and.processing of inventory to prepare it for sale.compared to,total product purchases

Long -Lived Assets — The Company reviews its long-lived assets for potenual 1mpa1nnent based on pI‘O_]eCled
undiscounted cash flows associated with these assets. Long-lived assets are included in impairment evaluations
when events and c1rcumstances exist. that indicate the carrying amount of those assets may not be recoverable. -
Measurement of impairment losses_for long-lived assets that the Company expects to hold and Juise is based on the
estimated fair-value of those assets. - ... = ... ., - = - . P b o

" Land bmldmgs, zmprovements and eqmpment are stated at cost Depr601atlon 18 computed by thc stratght-
line method over thirty years for bu1ld1ngs Improvements are, amortlzed ona stralght lme basis over the shorter of

_ the useful life of the asset or the terms of the related leases. Deprec1atlon on equipment and capltahzed software is

computed by the stralght -line and accelerated methods over the estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.

PR A | ] Wil ! R :
Goodw:ll is the excess of the. purchase pnce patd over the fa1r value of net assets acqulred in business
combinations accounted for under the purchase method. The Company performs an annual assessment for
potential impairment applying a fair-value-based test (see Note 5 — Goodwill}.
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«Investments — The Company, owns membership interests (from 33% to 49%) in three unconsolidated
companies. The Company accounts for its.interest-in these entities using the equity-method. Equity income o, 31
million in fiscal 2006, $4.6 million in fiscal 2005 and $2.0 million in fiscal 2004 is, mcluded in other income; The
Company’s investment in these entities is. $11.4’ mlIlton at September 30, 2006 and $23 4 million at September 24,
2003, which is greater than the Company’s share of the underlying equity in net assets by approximately $! million
and $12-million, respectively, which was attributable to goodwill when the investments were made. On a combined
basis, the asSets liabilities, revenues and expenses of these entities are not signiﬁcant e R :
I LA Rt

Accrua!s For lnsurance The Company maintains insurance for certam nsks mcludmg workers

compensation, general liability and vehicle liability, and is self-insured for employee related health care benefits.
The Company s workers’ compensation, general liability and vehicle liability insurance policies include
deductibles of $250, 000 to $350,000 per occurrence. The Company maintains excess loss insurance that covers’
any health'care costs in excess of $150,000 per person per year. The Company accrues for the expected costs
associated with these risks by considering historical ctaims experience, demographic factors, severity factors and
other relevant information. Costs are recognized in the period the claim is incurred, and the ﬁnanmal statement , -
accruals include an estimate of claims in¢urred but not yet reported KRR PR R :

Fatr Value of Fmanc:al Instruments — At September 30, 2006 and September 24 2005 the carrylng amount,
of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and floating rate debt approximates’its fair
value. The fair value, determined by comparison to quoted market prices, of the Company’s $150 million senior
subordmated notes was-$155.6 million at September 30, 2006 and $160.5 million at September 24, 2005

.

3 -

! 4 oL . P .
Derrvarrve Financial In.strumems - The Company accounts for denvauve instruments in accordance with :
SFAS No 133, “*Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity,” Wthh reqmres among "other
things, that all derivatives be reported on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in
eamnings, or are deferred, depending on the nature of the underlying exposure, bemg hedged and how effective the _
derivative is at.offsetting a change in the underlymg exposure. The Company does not enter mto denvanves for !
trading or speculative purposes. .. .- e e . G e '
In October 2003, lhe'Com'pany entered into a $75 million’ pay-fioating interest rate swap effectively’ ~ X
converting 50% of its $150 million fixed rate 9-1/8% senior subordinated notes to a floating rate of LIBOR +
4.04%. When it was entered into, the swap was de51gnated as a hedge of the underlymg specific interest rate
exposure on the senlor subordmated debt. The differential pard or recetved on the swap is recogmzed in mterest .
expense over the ]1fe of the swap, thereby adjustmg the effective 1nterest rat¢ on the underlying obhgauon The '
unrealized loss was approx1mately $1.2 million for fiscal year 2006 and the unrealized gain was approximately
$0.3 mtlhon for fiscal year 2005 with correspondmg adjustments made 1o, the Tfair value of the related debt.

- Stock-Based Compensation — Beginning in fiscal 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. r123(R),“‘Share-B'ased
Payment,” and began recording compensation expense associated with stock options and other forms of equity ‘
compensation in accordance, with the accounting standard. The Company elected to adopt the, standard using the i
modified prospective Lransmon ‘method. Under this transmon rnethod, compensation cost associated with stock. '
options recognized in ﬁscal 2006 mcludes (D); amomzatton related to the remaining unvested portion of all. share-
based payments granted prior to, but not vested as of Seplember 24, 2005, based on the grant date fair value”. .
estimated in accordance with the original pro fonnasfootnote disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accountmg
for Stock-Based Compensatron and (2) amortization related to all share-based payments granted subsequent to
Seplember 24, 2005, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance. with the provisions of SFAS |,

No. 123(R). Accordingly, stock compensation expense is recognized over the service period of.the employees using
-the straight-line attribution method. Previously reported amounts have notbéen restated. Total compensation cost .
for the Company’s share;based, compensation plan in fiscal 2006 was $5.1, miilion ($3.1 mijilion after tax).
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Pnor to ﬁscal 2006, the Company accounted for stock- based compensation using the intrinsic value method
prescribed in’ Accounting Prmc:ples Board Opinion'Na. 25, “Accountmg for Stock Issued to* Employees “and
related Interpretations and provnded the required pro forma dlsclosures of-SFAS No'-123: *Accordmgly, no related
eompensatton expense was recorded for'awards granted forzawards, with no mtrmsm value' '

AR ) Lo - " T PV A > TRy ‘“"m e s
) Had compensation expense for the-Company’s variousstock option plans been determmed.based upon the
projected fair values at the grant dates for.awards under those plans in-accordance with SFAS No. 123, the . .
Company’s pro-forma net earnings, basic and diluted eammgs per common share for fiscal 2005 and 2004 would
have been as follows: S SRR N o A
N o e T Tt el L . !"i 3 ' -t k r Lo - L i
e T .' o Fiscal Year Ended
R L FERSRT . September 24, September 25,
' e . 2005 2004
(] ' [ * ' !
! (in thousands,
.;_‘;;sg‘,f, b ey i Wl Lt - . : except per share amounts)
- Netiincome, asreported .. 0. .o . i el S $53,787 - $41,350
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under . - . o .
fair value based method for awards, net of related tax effects . ... ......... (1,862) (1,690}
Proformanetmcome ....... ;.'f:...'. ............... LT 851,925 7 $39,660
. o ' REE P TR . s ) Em——
Net income per common equivalent share S : - .. R .
Basic —.as reported ... .. TP P P $ 258 $ 206 .
Basic = Pro forma . .. ... ouitit e $ 250 $ 198
; <A akaehY aue B (T I BT AR L . S T e :
b . ”7 _slgllured ;;srep"orted. ,, ..................... ceevenee, 30250 $ 199
L D1luled ~ IO FOIMA . oeveev e i i 8 24] $ 191

il . T F—

Pr:or to fiscal 2006, the Company presented all tax benefits resulting from deductions relatmg to the
exéreise of stofk options 4s operating cash 'Hows in the consolidated statement of cash flows SFAS No. 123(R)
requires, on a prospective basis, the benefits of tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized for '
those opttons to be classified as ﬁnancmg cash inflows rather than operatmg cash mflows

Total Comprehemtve Income — Total comprehensive income consists of two components net income and
other comprehenswe income. Other comprehenswe income refers to revenue, expenses, gains and losses that
under, generally accepted accounting pnncnples are fecorded directly as an ‘element of shareholders’ ‘equity, but
are exclided from net income. Other comprehenswe income is comprised of foreign currency translatton
adjustments relatmg toa forelgn subsndlary whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar. Deferred taxes are

not provided’on franslation gains and losses because the Company expects €arings of its foreign subsidiary to
be permanently remvested

o CL | ¢ .

Recent Accoummg Pmnouncemems —In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No.'157, “Fair Value
Measurements.” .SFAS No. 157 definies fair value'as the price that would be received to Sell an asset or paid to
transfer a llablhty in an orderly transactton between market participants at the'measuremient date. The standard -
also establishes a framework for measuring fair value and provides for expanded disclosures about fair valae
measurements SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years ‘beginning after November 15,2007. The Company i is

eurremly evaluatmg the lmpact of SFAS No 157 on its consohdated ﬁnancml statements
. 1 . I 4

In September 2006 the Securities and Exchange Commtssnon issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB™)
No:108, “Consideririg the Effects of Prior Year'Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year
Financial Statements.” SAB No. 108 provndes interpretive gu1dance on'the consideration of the effects of prior
year misstatements in quantifying curfént year imisstateménts when evaluatmg materiality. SAB No. 108-is
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effective for ﬁscal years ending after November 15, 2006. The Company believes that the adopuon of SAB
No. 108 wnll not have.a mgmﬁcant impact on its consoltdated financial statements ‘

T a Lis
K . l

In June 2006 the FASB lssued FIN 48, “Accountmg for Uncertamty in Income Taxes an mterpretatlon of

FASB,Statement No. 109 » whtch Cla.rtfies the accounting for uncertatn’ly in income taxes recogmzed in an
enterprise’s financial statemerits in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accountmg for, Income Taxes FIN 48
prescribes a recognition threshold and measuremem attribute for the ﬁnat}ctal statement recogmtton and
measurement of a tax posmon taken of expected to be take]n ina tax return, FIN 48 is effectwe for ﬁscal years .
begmmng after December 15, 2006 The Company is curremly evaluatmg the 1mpact of FIN 48 on its '

consolidated ﬁnancml statements.

[

2-Acquisitions et Coe it [ S L O A Ao .o
Ftsca12006 B A

The Company completed five acqurstttons during the fiscal year ended September 30 2006 With the K
exception of Farnam, pro forma results of.operations have not been presented for-any, of the acquisitions because
the effects of these acquisitions were not material to Central's operating results either.individually or in the -
aggregate. The consolidated financial statements include the effects of these acquired businesses from the dates
of acquisition. Purchase accounting for some of these acquisitions has not yet been completed but preliminary
purchase prtce ‘allocations are surnmarized as follows {(in thousands)

' Net tanglble assels’ acqu1red ettt $104,016

' Other intangible’ assets acqu1red S D S 87,449
Goodwrll ...... e I, S T 189,225
Total conmderalnon patd (including transaction costs) . ... .. S PP S $380 690 .

Bnef descnptrons of the busmesses acqu1red are as follows: TR A

In Apnl 2006, the Company acqutrecl the nghts to the lromte® Products (“Ironite™) brand of natural soil -
supplements and the associated intellectual property for approximately $6 million in cash. Ironite, a registered
tradémark since 1956, isa Ieadmg brand of envircnmentally-friendly soil.supplements that promote healthy plant
color and deeper root structures. The purchase price.exceeded the fair value of net'assets acquired by . .
approxtmately $3.3 million, whrch was recorded:as goodwnll - L Con -

In March 2006, the Company mcreased 1ts eqtnty mterest in Tech Pae from 20% to'80%. The Company paid
approxnmately $21.million in cash and.deposited.cash of approximately $16 million in an escrow account for
possible contingent performance based payments over the next five years (included in other assets in the
consolidated balance sheet). The Company previously acquired its 20% interest in Tech Pac when it acquired’
Gulfstream Home & Garden, Inc. which had a 20% interest in Tech Pac at the time of the acquisition in February
2005: Tech Pac:is a leading supplier-of i insect control branded products.in the lawn and garden market place.
Tech Pac's leading brands include. Sevin®, a broad-based insecticide; Over’n Qut!® for fire ant control and ...
RooTone®, a leading root stimulant for the gardening enthusiast. The purchase price exceeded the fair vatue of |
the net tangible assets acquired by approxtmately $15 million. The Company- has not-yet finalized its allot_:atton.
of the purchase price to the fair value of intangible assets acquired. When final purchase accounting is

completed, any adjustments to the allocation will be recognized at that time.

In.February 2006, the Company acquired Famam Companices, Inc. (“Farnam?”) for an initial payment of
approximately. $287. miilion in cash .plus $4 mtlllon in cash for the purchase of related real property In addttton
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the Company anticipates making a payment of approximately $9 million upon final determination of Farnam’s
net assets at closing. Farnam is a leading marketer and manufacturer of innovative health care pfo’ducts primarily
for horses, household pets and livestock sold through over-the-counter and veterinary channels. In addition to the
.internationally recognized Farnam umbrella brand, Famam’s portfolio of industry leading brands includés
. Equicare®, ComboCare™, IverCare™, and Repel-X® for horses; D-Worm™, BioSpot® and Scrafchex® for
houséhold pets: and Adams™ and Bite Free™ insect controls for home'and yard care. The purchase price o
exceeded the fair value of net tangible and intangible assets acquired by approximately $155.6 million, which
was récorded.as goodwill. The Company has not yé! finalized its allocation of the purchase price to the fair value
of intangible assets acquired. When ﬁnal’pur&:haéeggcounting 15 Completed any adjusimiénts t6-itie-allocation= -
will be recognized at that time. ‘ : o

The following table summarizes on a pro forma basis the unaudited consolidated results of operations of the
Company as if the Famnam acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the periods presented. The pro forma
consolidated results of operations include adjustments to give effect to interest expense on acquisition-related
debt and certain other purclidse accounting adjustments. The pro forma information is not necessarily indicative
of the results of operations that would have occurred had the purchase been made at the beginning of the periods
. presented, nor of the futire results of the combined operations. . S ' e

‘e

'

Fiscal Year Ended

. . .. September30, September 24,
2006 2005 ’

) {in thousands except per share amounts)
NELSAlES ...t eveeneeeeareaennnns R S 51675278 81,544,846
Grossproﬁt.........................L' ........... e ) 562,144 " 525,053
Income from operations . ............... R, 140,746 116,986
Income before income taxes .............. oLMoons) 97441 © 83,234
INELIMCOME - o o e e e et e e e e e e e e ettt an v nnenns 62,177 52,829
Net income per common equivalent share: . : . . . -
Basic . ....viiii S 3 2.75 $ 2.54

Diluted . ... 0. i SO R e 8 270 0§ 245

. C. N

In February 2006, the Company acquired the assets of Breeder’s Choice Pet Foods Inc. for approximately .
$25 million in cash. Breeder’s Choice is a leading branded marketer and-manufacturer of premium all natural,
healthy dog and cat food and treats sold exclusively in the pet specialty channel under the brands AvoDerm®,
Pinnacle®, Active Care® and Advanced Pet Diets®. The purchase price exceeded the fair value of net assets
acquired by approximately-$18.5 million, which was recorded as goodwill. The Company has not yet finalized its
atlocation of the purchase price to the fair value of intangible assets acquired. When final purchase accounting is
completed,-any adjustments to the allocation will be recognized at that time. :

B fl L :

In December 2005, the Company acquired certain intellectual property assets from Shirlo, Inc. for
approximately'$10 million in cash. The assets acquired from Shirlo, Inc. include the company’s exclusive marketing
rights to etofenprox, an insect adulticide approved for on-animal use. The acquired assets were integrated into the

business of Wellmark Intérnational, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. The purchase price exceeded the
fair value of net ‘assets acquired'by approximately $2.2 million, which was recorded as goodwill, oo
. ot .

4

ot ' . . L B M

Fiscal 2005

_ The Company completed three acquisitions during the fiscal year endéd September 24, 2005. Pro forma
resulis of operdtidris have not been presented for any of the acquisitions because the effects of these acquisitions *
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were not matenal to Central’s operating results either 1nd1v1dually, orin the aggregate The consohdated

financial statements include the effects of these acqulred busmesses from the dates of- vaUISIUOI‘l Each of these '
i A . '

acquisitions was accounted for as a purchase. :

I

The acquisitions are summarized as follows (in thousands): R LTI I Lt
Net tangible asséts acquired ... ... LT 143
.+ . Other intangible assets acqulred ........ e 21,783
© Goodwill . .. R T e e e e .. 26,040 .
. Total consnderauon paid (mcludmg tra.nsacuon COSIS) v venmmeeeenie .. ... 362,194
. i Le . 1 s
K - . ot . . ) . ‘ 7{_ . . .“ ‘. - i

Brief descriptions of the businesses acquired are as follows:

In May 2005, ihe.Conipany acquired Pets International, Ltd., for approximatety $36 million in cash, with
possible contingent performance based payments over the next seven months. Pets [nternational is a leading™
supplier of innovative small"animal and specialty.pet suppliesiincluding homes, habitats, exercise toys, feedmg
devices, chews and other care and maintenance products marketed under the proprietary brand name “Super -
Pet®” The purchase price exceeded the fair value of the net assets acquired by approximately $22 million, wiuch
was recorded as goodwill.'The Company paid an additional $7.9 million in contingent performance-based
payments in ﬁscai 2006 Wthh was recorded as additional goodwill. .

L L '_.’-‘4" . T

' In April 2005, the Comparly acquired the remaining 60% interest in Cedar Works, LL.C (“Cedar Works™),
for approximately $4 miilion in cash. The Company previously acquired its 40% interest in November 1999, and
had accounted for the investment on the equity method. Cedar Works is engaged primarily in the manufacture ;
and sale of bird feeders and bird homes. The fair value of the net assets acquired exceeded the purchase price by
approximately $2 million, which was recorded as a reduction of the long-term assets acquired. .. - - .

In February 2005 the Cornpany acquired Gulfstrearn Home & Garden, Inc. (“Glilfstreani"j. including its

. 20% equ1ty interest in Tech Pac, for approxlmately $22 million in cash, with possible contingent performance
o = " L%
based payments over,the‘inext ten‘fyears«Gulfstrcam istherexclusive marketer of the garden product brands -

Sevin®, Over’n‘Out!®, and RooToie® through'is relauonshlp wwith TechPac. The. ;purchase price exceeded the- ..

fair-value of the net assets acquired by approx:mately 54 mllllon which-was recorded as goodwill. A

e ' A v X - e T

3. Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Customers and Suppliers

Customer Concentration — Approximately 40%, 42% and 43% of the Company’s net sales for fiscal years
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, were derived from sales to the Company’s top five customers. The
Company’s largest customer accounted for approximately 17%, 19% and 20% of the Company’s net sales for
fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The Company’s second largest customer accounted for
approximately 8% of the Company’s net sales in each of the fiscal years 2006, 2005 and 2004. The Company’s
third largest customer accounted for approximately 7% of the Company’s net sales in each of the fiscal years
2006, 2005 and 2004. The loss of, or significant adverse change in, the relationship between the Company and
any of these three customers could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business and financial
results. The loss of or reduction in orders from any significant customer, losses arising from customer disputes
regarding shipments, fees, merchandise condition or related matters, or the Company’s inability to collect
accounts receivable from any major customer could also have a material adverse impact on the Company’s
business and financial results. As of September 30, 2006 and September 24, 2005, accounts receivable from the
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" Company’s top ten customers com'pi'ised 45%.and 51% of the Company’s total accounts receivable, including
10% and 13%, from the Company § largestlcustomer. . '

A, ' o L

. Supplier ConcemmnonI Whlle the  Company purchases products from over 1 ,000 different manufacturers
and supphers approxunatcly 8%, 6% and 7% of the Company s net sales i m ﬁscal years. 2006 2005 and 2004
respecnvely, were derived from products purchased from the Company s five largest suppllers .

4, Allowance for Doubtful Accounts ) P L L I

The changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts are summanzed below (1n thousands)

AT o “ , _.', S

) o . Balances at- ‘Charged W - © " Balances
TR DL C , Beginning = Costsand | Asset ... atEndof
Description .. : ] o of Period Expenses Wnte-Ofl‘s Period
Year ended September 25,2004 ... ... .. ..o e $ 6575  $6479 s (706) $12.348
Year ended September 24,2005 . ... ... Lo 12,348 4,508 (5,144 11,712
Year ended September 30,2006 . ............ PR L E o w1782 4,438 (3,352) 12,798
5. Goodw:ll ; ‘.' et . t. jl ' T ‘. ‘. : m..'.- : cpel .
Changes in‘the carrying amount of goodwﬂl for the years ended Scptember 30 2006 and September 24,0
2005 are-as follows (in'thousands): -7 ' « P L B R T A I A ST
o . ". FLL I AT PR P . Te : . asino ’ Pty -
L . - GardenProduct; _PetProducts, . .,
L oL - T ) ‘Segrnent Segment ,' Total
Balance as of September 25,2004 ... ... e $165506  $172,878  $338,384
Additions ~ acquisitions .. .., i... ... R o 3,950 022222 . 26,172
Currency translation -, . ... ....... e R T R st A TR 291 .29
Balance as of September 24, 2005 AP e 2 s 1694560 e 195,391, 364,847
Additions - acquisitions % .a..sLTol LTS IR SR IR 3,3700 188,594 191,964
Currency translation: ~. . .. .. S P S S N A Do e . 1,009 -7 1,009
Balance as of Septernber 3_(), 2_006‘ e REFERE ..... . $172,826 ] $384,994 $557.820

B T -':‘.,.,“; ' . ..',l . . St
Goodwill is- mcluded h Corporate for segment reporting purposes, as dlscussccl in Note 15 Business -
Segment Data. Uponjadoption of SFAS No. 142, $Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” in 2002, goodwill -
- impairment charges were recognized for:theiGarden Products segment for $51.9 million (%42.1 mrlhon after tax)

and the Pet Products segment for $94 8 million ($70.1 million after tax).

B T L U S LD AR I
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CENTRAL GARDEN & PET.COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

6. Otherlntanglble Assets . e A R P A
The followmg tab]e summanzes the components of gross and et acqunred mtangnble assets, other than goodwﬂl
N i i . . t [ L . : oy ' H ; Net

T : _-Accumulated Carrying
Gross  Amortization Value

. (in millions)

September 30,2006 ' , L o '
Markehng-related intangible assets - ‘amortizable FSRTT Ce S0 S8 $ 6

., Marketing related intarigible asseis -nonzfmortlzablc ’ ...... - o 21,00 _32 7
.,To_tal.....;.-..,._ ....... e et e e 567 . . (14), ... 55.3
Customer-related intangible assets — amortizable . . b .. ... P & B (¢ ) I
Customer-related mtang1ble assets -nonamortlzable AT Llesvne w300 0 0 00 300
CTotal e LT T3 ) 33
Other ac;quired intangible assets - amonizz'tbl;:',. Cr e s 110 {0.5). . 105
Other acquired intangible assets — nonamortizable .. ...........0....... 1.5 0.0 . 11.5-
Total ...t [T .. 225 0.5) 22,0

Total other intangibleassets ...................... Ll N L. 81129 324 S1I05

September 24, 2005

Marketing-related intangible assets —amortizable .................... $ 37 $(0.4) $ 33

Customer-related intangible assets —amortizable ... -............ ", 133 - 01 v 32
Other acquired intangible assets — amortizable .. .. .. .. e E 7.0 - (0.2) - 6.8
Other acquired intangible assets — nonamortizable~........ .. % 2. .- 11§ 0.0 IL5
Total other intangible assets . .......o............ LT 82550 s0T) 8 248

Other intangible assets acquired include non-contractual customer related intangibles ($3,283,000) related to
the acquisition of Pets International, Ltd. and an 80% equity interest (20% as of September 24, 2005) in Tech
Pac, acquired as part of Gulfsiream Home & Garden, Inc. Tech Pac’s assets include a licensing agreement
granted in perpetuity and a marketing contract. The fair values and the useful lives of these two intangibie assets,
along with the fair value of equity interest in Tech Pac, are being re-evatuated due to the Company’s acquisition
. of an additional 60% equity interest in-Tech Pac in 2006. The purchase price of this equity interest exceeded the
underlylng book value by approximately $28 million. .. ‘o

The Company is currently amortizing its acquired intangible assets with definite hves over periods ranging
from 1 10 30 years. Estimated annual amortization expense related to acquired intangible assets in each of the
succcedmg five ycars will be in the range of $2.1 to 52.5 million per year from fiscal 2007 to fiscal 2011. When
final purchase accounting for acquisitions is completed, adjustments to these estimates may result; -

7. Long-Term Debt

In January 2003, the Company issued $150 million of 9-1/8% senior subordinated notes due 2013. In
October 2003, the Company entered into a $75 million pay-fleating interest rate swap effectively converting half
of its $150 million fixed rate 9-1/8 % senior subordinated notes to a floating rate of LIBOR + 4.04%.
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On February 28, 2006, the Company arranged $650 million in senior secured credit facilities to finance the -
acqmsmon of Farnam Compames Inc. and to reﬁnance the exrstmg $125 mllhon revo{vmg credit facility ,
matunng in May 2008 and the existing $175'million ferm [oan maturing in May 2009. The new'credit facilities

consist of a $350 million revolving credit facility maturing in February 2011 and a $300 million term loan .
maturing in Septgmber 2012. Interest on the revolving credit facility is based on a rate equal to prime plus a
margin; Wthh ﬂuctuates from 0% to 0.25%, or LIBOR plus a margin which fluctuates from 0.75% to 1. 375%,
determined quanerly based on consolidated total debt to consolidated EBITDA for the most recent trailing
12-month penod Interest on the term loan is based on a rate equal to LIBOR + 1 50% or the pnme rate plus
0.50%; at the Company s option. The term loan is payable in quarterly mstallments of $750 000 with the balance
payable in September 2012. These facilities are secured by substantially all of the Company s assets and contain
certain ﬁnanmal covenants that require the Company to maintain minimum levels of interest coverage and

maximum levels of total debt to EBITDA and that restrict the Company’s ability to repurchase the Company’s

stock. make investments in or acquisitions of other businesses and pay dividends above certain levels over the
life of the facilities. The Company was in compliance with all financial covenants as of September 30, 2006.
There was $119.0 million outstanding at September 30, 2006 under the $350 million revolving credit facility, and
the remaining available borrowing capacrty was $220.0 mllhon, w1th $11:0 million outstandmg under certain
letters of credit. . 3 P I .
P | "
" Long-term debt consists of the following: P T .

September 30, September 24,

2006 .- 2005
. ) ) . o -, * (i thousands) .
Senior subordinated notes, interest at 9-1/8% payable semi-annually, principal due s L
s FebIUary 2013 ..o furt et S $150 000 . $150,000
Term loan, interest at LIBOR + 1.50% or the prime rate plus 0.50%, quarterly e
principal payments of $750,000 remaining balance due September 2012 ... ... , 29_?,250' =
Revolving credit facility, interest at prime plus 0% 16 0.25% or LIBOR + 0.75% to’ oo '
1.375%, final maturity February 2011 ... .. e e e 119,000 _
Term loan, interest at LIBOR + 1.75% or the prime rate +.0.25%, quarterly Co o
. principal payments$ of $437,500 remaining balance due'May 2009. v, .20 o ARG L 172,625

Revolving credit facility, interest at LIBOR +'1:25% to + 2. 25% or the pnme rate:. - . vaote R
-0.25% to +1.25%, final maturity May-2008 .. .... PO P O SO P . — | —
Fair market value of $75 million interest rate swap of $150 million fixed rate
9-1/8% senior subordinated notes, principal due February 2013 to ﬂoatmg rate of

LIBOR +4.04% ........... STV P R verents o — 293

“ Qther notes payable e e e e e 199 146
Towdl ... 70 T N s 568,449 T 323,064

Less’ current portlon St o Ll cl S N ‘.!’ (3039 1 (2.210)
Long—term POMION '+ o gy gsane oo Ceeeio.. $565410 $320,854
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! The scheduled pnnclpa] repayments on'longiterm debt as of September:30, 2006 are as follows:

o

R L T T T I N e L I L RIS ST AR B
(in thousands)
Fiscal year: . . R RN S IV U A N I PN R G

2007500 L PO L N N IR N T U LU ST SRUILE SR SO UL R Y $ 3,039
2008 o ol Rl T Sl e s e renaat e s et Ly 3,094
2009 ....: T T A L o SN/ DO R LI T I S T T L LML, S S ..?3,038‘
2000 . . e 3015
1] T T P N N ST N T PP R T AT .'.‘.'.".'.. Vol e T 122,013
Thereafter -+, - oo .o, 3 M i Lo 2 WAL o s b e S Al ...‘. S e 434,250\

! 3 3 i e Ty T ML AT o [ W ST PR ‘ R .

Towal ©T. . oo ool Lot SUrvenoaRrhes endae s h  $568,449

B T L I 1 1 T T L A T I T R ST RS 7 1277 SV B TR (S =
T L T ILT SO B TPS 1 A PN IE T AR M

" 8. Commltments and Contmgenetes . ) .
B e R T YLtV RO g E A PSS
Commttmentst T T P T N I 1 S L FOO s BT U0 (TR O Y . !

Purchase commitments' Production and purchase agreements (pnmanly for-grass seed and grains) entered’
into in the ordmary course of buqmess obhgate the Company to make future purchases based on estimated yields.
The lerms ‘of these contracts vary and have fixed prices or quanutles At September 30, 2006, estlmated annual

- purchase’ commnments weére "$112.7 million for fiscal 2007, $54.8 mllllon for fiscal 12008, $32 2 mllllon for ﬁscal

2009, $23.9 million for fiscal 2010 shd $8.9 millidn for fiscal 2011, "¢+ T ¥ o Irt
e 4, L T B S N BT RIS SR TR T LA T A 1.‘:'.\ [P IFLERA LI SR CHL Y A

R

Leases The Company has operatmg lease agreements prmcnpally for ofﬁce and warehouse facn]mes and

and $19.9 million for fiscal years 2006, 2005, and 2004, respecttvely' et SRR PR

Certain facility leases have renewal options and include escalation clauses. Minimum lease payments ..

include scheduled rent increases pursuant to these escalatlon prov151ons '
: R Yoo # .
: Aggregatehnnmmum annua] payments on non—cancelable operating leases at September 30, 2006 are as
follows p 'T,.,., R
. f ]
Tty R {in thousands)
Fiscal year: e
2007 L. B e E .t 1251514
2008 ... o T A e e e e e S » 22:039
£2009 ..... Vo R R e e e e e e 1 18144
£ 2010 ..... e e e e e e 14,307
1 e RS e . 1983
Thereafter ............. e e e e LR LR R T . 16,258
W Total ... l..... e e e © $104,245
Cantmgenc;es . . o ' N ' ) ' '

-

' Phoemx Fire — On August 2 2000 a fire destroyed Central’s leased warehouse space in Phoemx Arizona,
and an adjoining warehouse space leased by a third party. At the time of the fire, Central maintained property
insurance covering losses to the leased premises, Central's inventory and equipment, and loss of business
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income. Central also maintained liability insurance providing $52 million of coverage (with no deductible), plus
additional coverage for any amount of pre-judgment interest that Central might be obligated to pay.

.

bty S Wy -y - 1 ..

On July 31, 2001, the adjoining warehouse tenant; Cardinal*Healthand-itssinsurers, (the “Cardinal.., ¢ .. 0% . .
Plaintiffs™), filed a lawsuit against Central and other. parties in the Superior Court of Arizona,—f\/lar_icopla County. T
The.Cardinal Plaintiffs sought 10 recover from Central, Arch Chemical Company (“Arch”}.and others .
approximately $60 million in compensatory damages, plus pre-judgment interest and punitive damages. ' ¢
On January 25, 2006, Central and its insurers, along with Arch and its insurers, entered into a Stipulation for
Settlement with the Cardinal Plaintiffs. On March 10, 2006, the parties executed the final settlement documentation.
The terms of the settlement are confidential, and the amounts which Central and Arch each were required to
contribute to the settlement were determined in an arbitration proceeding, which concluded on August 11, 2006.

Central’s settlement obligation with the Cardinal Plaintiffs was paid entirely by Central's insurers.

Local residents also filéd a purported class action lawsuit alleging claims for bedily injury and propeﬁsr ’
damages as a result of the fire. The residents’ lawsuit has now been seitled as to all parties, and has’ received Court
approval. As part of the settlement, Central’s ligbility insurers paid $7 825,000 on behalf of Central in May 2004.
The warehouse owner, B&L, and its insurer (the “B&L Plamuffs”) as well as several nearby busmesses . '
also filed lawsuits for property damage and business interruption, which were coordmated wnth the Cardmal
Plaintiffs’ lawsuit. The lawsuits by nearby busmesses have been dismissed, or settled wnh payments ‘from o
Central’s insurers. On October 16, 2006, an agreement in principle was reached for the settlement of the B&L
lawsult ‘The terms of the settlement are, confidential and the parties are still preparmg the ﬁnal seitlement
documentatlon Central’s insurers have agreed to pay the entire amount of the sett!ement {o the B&L. Plamtlffs
Central has not recognized any liability in this regard as of September 30, 2006. =~ L

9, Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

e T T DO ' " ‘Fiseal Year Ended
‘ September 30, September 24, September 25,
- 2006 2005 ’ 2004
P _ (in thousands)

Current: : - ’
‘Federal ................. P $23,932 $22,840 $15,802
CGEALE L.t h e e «5968 .. 2445 .t 17450

Foreigh .......c.uvovnoue R S .. 611 916 24575
Tt Total L.......... ST e SR .iee..t30511 26,201 17,827

Deferred . .....ouvunnniieinss ST IR N : : :
‘Federal ......... S e ... 5,000 3281 - 6945
SLAE .+ vttt et e e 176 . 686 ;.0 220
FOBIZN ..\t tee e et am e iaaas 104 90 —

Total .......ccvvievinnaatn e s 5,280 4,057 7,165

Total .......... U UUUPRRPRY §35791  $30258°  $24992
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A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective income tax rate is as
follows: =~ . B Ll ' : e - '

' ' - ' T T et DTS L

oo 'riscalv'ea:Ehﬂed '

r b ' e * "7 September 30, September 24, September 25,

VI 7 P ' b 2006 <7 - 2005 2004 ' -
Statutory federal iIncometaxrate .............civiiiniiaanannn 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit . .. .. ....... ... ... ... 48 . ... - 27 .. . 24
Permanem differences ............. R R RRREE - 0.5y 02 - 0.5
Forergn income taxes ............ ..., Yo T (13D I (1 ) B
Adjustment of prior year acervals ......... 0.0 U L ey "r O ) R
Reversal of tax reserves .' ................. 2y o — =
ome’li..‘.'...' ................ PP L = T 02
Effectwe TNCOMIE TAX FALE % s v e ettt et et ee e e e e an e eannes ", :.’éé% . 36.0% o 37 7%

U . . .o T 1t ot P L : ¢ i '

Stale income-tax expense in 2006 inctudes the effect of a $1-8 million increase in pnor year state tax
accruals. The tax rate benefit of the reversal of tax reserves of 2.5% in 2006 reflécts the reduction of $2.6 million
in estimated tax reserves asa result of favorable developmems associated with certam [ax audrts ’

¥

Deferred income taxes reﬂect the |mpacl of * temporary differences™ between asset and hablhty amoums for
financial reporting purposes and $uch amounts as determined based on existing tax laws. The tax effect of :; ;
tcmporaryi differences and carryforwards which grve rise’to deferred tax assets and Ilabllltres are as follows: -

Ci S " oo September 30, 2006 " Septeiiber 24, 2005
a I " Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Lo “Tax Tax- - Tax' © 'Tax "
Assets Llablllties Assets Liabilities
(in thousands)
Current: S Pt
Allowance for doubtful accounts.. . ..4 ., hee ... .- 34346 5. —, $.3003- % —
., Inventory write-downs . ... ... ... i ey BOL2 0 —, L6y 068 . =
_Prepaid expenses ...... T S WY | 3 — .. 1304
Nondeductible TeSETVES .. ......ooverenn... e 3,792 — 3 619 —
oS WAXES., Ll e e e, U313 — 0 262 ., —
Other ..o ool R I PR TR eewie. 3819 L, — ., 3074 —
Total ... ... .. ... .. .. LT T B N oo 192820 01,413, 16,026 . 1,304
Noncurrent: ‘ L .
Deprecrauon and amomzatron P P SR ST 27{,384_' o= 17 979
Equ1tymcome L..:' ........ A A U I b2510- LT 1,180
" State net operatmg loss carryforward Sl 5488 — 0 4438
Other .70, L, et s LT 3428 —
Valuation allowance "> .0 . ... T L5463 — 0 (4438) | —
Total . e 5728 29,894 3,428 19,159
¢ Total .ot S RN N ST $25,0]0 $31,307 $19,454 $20,463

'I'he Company s ‘state tax net operaung fosses of $8 4 millién explre at various times between 2007 dnd
2027. In evaluating the Company’s ability to fecover its deferred tax assets, the Company considers all available
positive and negative evidence including past operating results, future taxable i income, and ongoing prudent and

59




CENTRAL GARDEN.& PET.COMPANY-
NOTES TO-CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS-—{(Continued)

feasible tax planning strategies.in assessing the need for-a.valuation allowance.against any deferred:tax.assets.
The Company has determined there will be insufficient future separate state taxable income to absorb the .-
deferred tax assetsT assocrated with separate company state net operating losses. Therefore, valuation allowances
have been provrded t0 reduce state, tax net operating loss carryforwards to amounts considered recoverable. The
Company also has state ‘income tax credits of $2.8 million, most of which may be carried forward indefinitely.

- mrem sma s A p e s

& . \. TR * .
iy f! bl JLL i -J.'-'Ih RL f':’f"l‘.‘

10, Stock Based Compensat:on: - U R N P A TR C S R

In February 2003 the Company adopted the 2003 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan (the “2003 Plan”) whrch
provrdes for the grant of options 2 ‘and restricted stock to key employees, direciors and consultants of the’ Company
up to an aggregate of 3.5 million’ shares of common stack of the Company. The 2003 Plan’is adm1n1sterhd’by the
Compensatlon Comm1ttee of the Board of D1rectors Wthh Is compnsed only of 1ndependent drreetors whrch
the'1993 Omnibus’ eqnty Incentive Plan (the- “1993 Plan™) which, through January 2003 provided for the grant
of options to key employees and consultants of the Company for the purchase of up to an aggregate of 4.8 million
shares of:common stock:of the Company::Upon:adoption of the 2003 jplan, the Company,terminated the 1993
Plan subject to the remaining outstanding'option grants. In February 2003, the: Company’s shareholders . -,
approved an amendment.to the:2003 Plan to increase:the number, of shares:authorized for issuance thereunder by
3.3 million shares, resulting in a total of 5.8 rmlhon shares authonzed for issuance under the 2003 Plan.

KT B T A TYRN TP PR I B B S O R TS % 4 PO R T T T O L VLV (RTINS Y S

The Company addpted the 'Nonemployee Director.‘Stock Option:Plan*(the ¥Director Plan™) which provides-

for the grant of-optionsto' noneinployee directors:of the Company..The Director Plan, as:amended in'2001:and +.

'2006 provrdes for the grantmg of options equal to $140,000 divided by the fair market value of the Company’s

common stock on the date of each annual meeting of stockholders and a number of shares of restricted stock
equal © $15 000 divided by such fa1r-market value. : :

o i Tt uu b
Mg ‘tnt
Stock Optzon Awards : . P

The Company recogmzed share—based compensation expense of $5.1 milliori for the year endedi +
September 30,2006, as a component of selling; general and-administrative expenses: Sharé:based: compensatlon .
expense in ﬁscal 2006 ¢onsisted of $3.8 million for stock optlons and $1 3-million for restricted stock awards.

LSy RS - LTI . S S ST AP A N

WL "-"J‘.L‘ G

Stock optrons granted are generally exercisable with a 30 month cliff vesting and 42 month exp1rat10n :but

are also granted with vesting increments of 20%; 25% or33%: per year beginning two, three or four years from
the date of grant and expmng one year‘after the last increment has vested. L . . R T

e

o The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholesﬁoptron
valuatlon model. Expected stock price volatilities are estimated based on the Company s 1mpl1ed hlstor}(:ﬂl’
volatlhty The expected term of optlons granted is based on analyses of hrstoncal employee tennmauon rates and'

option exercrses The rlsk free rafte‘s are based on U.S. Treasury yields, for nofes wnth comparab]e tenns as ‘the
option grants in effect at the trme of the grant. For purposes of [hlS valuatron mode] no d1v1dends have been

assumed - R -
. 'i‘_;r L o0 ﬁr - . ST woT

The Company 5 calculatrons were made using the Black-Scholes option pricing mode] with the following
welghted average assumptions: expected life of 4.3 years from date of grant; stock price volatility, 28.4% in (
fiscal 2006, 31.0% in fiscal 2005 and 34 6% in fiscal 2004; nsk t'ree 1nterest rates, 4. 4% 1n ﬁscal 2006 3 3% in
ﬁscal 2005 and 2. 2% in ﬂscal 2004 and no dmdends dunng the expected terrn . , "

. .
oyt "--.t] RN

T T LA EC B BT SR '-‘.’? O T S R S LT Y ALY BT E S I S
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The following table suminarizes option activity for the three fiscal years ended September 30, 2006: -

Number of Weighted Weighted Average Aggreg‘ate
e Ve Shares Average Exercise Remaining Intrinsic Value
T Co (in thousands)  Price per Share  Contractual Life  (in thousands)
Outstanding at September 27,2003 .......... 2,109 $12.48
Granted ............. . ... ... .. ... 548 27.25 . - ‘
Exercised ............... i (600) 9.29 - . oot
Cancelledorexpired...................... (76) - 1140 Lo
Outstanding at September 25, 2004 .......... 1,981 - 1755 2years ° ) '$35‘;309 .
Granted . '\ oo 499 < 039030 - . ' '
Exercised . P P ITI (790 10.84 e
Cancelled or expired . .. .. .. e e - (50 .+ 2760 . v
Outstanding at September 24, 2005 ... 1,640 27.0t 3years ~ 44,641
Granted . ..~......... .. ... il 611 - . 450687 . . e et
Exercrsed..."'.........................;. (545) 22.19 : :
Cancelled or'expired . ....:................ ) 37.28 ‘ et
Outstanding at September 30, 2006 . ...... .. 1,631 3509  d4yeais " 57 239
Exercisable at September 25,2004 .......... ‘ 660 $ 849 1 ye’ar' b $ 5 600
Exercisable at September 24,2005 .......... 321 $20.54 .. 1 year . % 6,587 -
Exercisable at September 30, 2006 R 273" %2607 0 S l'year a '$‘ 7, 121
“.1--'. . . ' e Lotk P . T,

The wetghted average grant date fair value of opuons granted durmg the fiscal years ended September 30,
2006, September 24, 2005 ‘and September 25, 2004 was $13. 65 $8.92 and $6.79, respectively. The total mtrms:c
value of options exercrsed durmg the fiscal years énded September 30, 2006 and September 24, 2005 was ~ *
$12.7 million and $25.7 million, respectively.

'.‘ . M s T

The following table summarizes the changes inthe Company’s nonvested options dunng the year ended

September 30, 2006: . | .o . v, - L .
e Y e ER o e " Nuiber of ' Weighted Average
LR i . T e .; : Shares ~* 'Grant Date's. .
. . (in thousands} Fair Value per Share
Non vested at September 24, 2005 ......................... 1,319 . $ 7.94
Granted 1Ll ol ltta 6N T 13657
- Vested':.‘f:.’..’..:....5..."."..' ........... R S 0 - ! 6.75'
"Cancelled .........~..7% O T PR TN ¢ B ) o 09.94 v -
ﬁdn vested,at September 30, 2006 DR , ....... 1,358 . $10.86 r,."

" " : 1 et ' [
As of September 30 2006 thcre was. $6 9 million of total unrecogmzed compensation- cost related to:’
nonvested'stock options, which is, expected to be recognized over-a remaining welghted average vesting.period of
twoyears : i ' . R G B T

L 4 A . - L . . . . -
Sde e P P AR i P o *

Restricted Stock Awards

As of September 30, 2006, there-were 244,000 shares of restricted stock awards outstanding. "The awards
generally vest in:20% or 25% increments, after a two or three year waiting period; over a $ix or seven year perrod
of employment after the grant date. ° . Ca A AT :
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Restricted stock award activity for the three fiscal years ended September 30, 2006 is- summarlzed as
follows

-.'. o s T R . Number of Weighted Average
: . . 3 et - H ' Shares Grant Date

{in thousands}  Fair Value per Share
Nonvested at September 27, 2003

GRANEd ... vv s ieeieiien e S ST . - 25 $3122
Vested .......ovviivnnnnnn e e e - e
Forfeited 7o ... e — ,
Nonvested at September 25,2004 .5 ..o iii i 25 : - 31.2'2\
Granted ................ ... L P 117 . 38.08 «
Vested ... e e e e (1) 43.58 .
Forfeited ...ty P . T
Nonvested at September 24,2005 ... .. il PO 141 . 3687 .
Granted ... oI L 129 47.81 ..
Vested .. ..ooooeii... e N - T . 3406
Forfetted AT L Ry o a9 e _‘36.98
Nonvested at September 30, 2006 e T e 44 42.72

The weighted aylerage grant-date falr value of restricted stock awards granted.du_ring the ﬁs‘cal years ended
September 30, 2006 and September 24, 2005 was $47.81 and $38.08, respectively.

As of September 30, 2006 there was $8 6 rmlhon of unrecogmzcd compensatlon cost related to nonvested
restricied stock; awards Wl‘llCh is expected to be recogruzed overa wc1ghted average penod of three years.
11. Shareholders Equity . '

At ‘September 30, 2006, there were 80,000,000 shares of common stock ($0 01 par value) authorized, of
which 22,008,431 were outstanding, and 100,000,000 shares of non-voting Class A common stock ($0.01 pat
value) authorized, none of which were outstanding. The preferences and relative rights of the Class A common
stock are identical to common stocK in all respects except that the Class A common stock generally will have no
voting right§-nless otherwise reduiréd by Delaware law

Tt . #

¥ -

At September 30, 2006 and September 24, 2003, there were 3 000,000 shares of C]ass B stock ($0 01 par
value) authorized, of which 1,652,262 were outstanding at September 30, 2006 and 1 654,462 were outstanding i
at September 24, 2005. The voting powers, preferences and relative rights of the Class B stock are identical to
common stock in all respects except that (i) the holders of common stock are entitled to one vote per.share and
the holders of Class B stock are entitled to the lesser of ten votes per share or 49% of the total votes cast,

(ii) stock dividends on common stock may be paid only in shares of common stock and stock dividends on
Class B stock-hay be paid only in shares of Class B stock-and (iii) shares of Class B stock have certain

. conversion rights and are subjectito certain restrictions on ownership and transfer. Each share of Class B stock is
convertible into one share of common stock, at the option of the holder. Additional shares of Class B stock may
only be issued w1th majority approval of the holders of the common stock and Class B stock, voting as separate
classes

. At September. 30, 2006 and September 24, 2005, there were 1,000,000 shares of preférred stock ($0.01 par
value) authorized, of which.100 shares of Series B preferred stock were outstanding. The Series B preferred stock
is entitled to receive dividends when and as declared by the Board of Directors, subject to the prior rights of - -
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holders of all classes of stock at the time outstanding having prior rights as to.dividends. The Series B.preferred -
stock is convertible-into approximately 86,406 shares of our.common stock at anytime: Each share of Series B,
preferred stock is entitled to a liquidation preference equal to the greater of: (i) $30,000 per share plus,all declared
but unpaid dividends;on the-Series B preferred stock ori(ii) such amount per share as would have been payable.; i’

with respect to such shares of Series'B preferred stock had each share of the then;outstanding-Series B preferred -
stock been converted to'common-stock immediately.prior.to such eventywhether or not the Series B preferred: - . -
-stock is then so convertible. Except as otherwise required by-law, the holders of SeriestB preferred stock shall not
be entitled-to vote: The Series B.preferred stock:is redeemable at the option of the holder. starting-on,February 26,
2005 for a period extending until February 26, 2009 at a price equal:to $30,000 per share. As a result, the Series .
B preferred stock has been excluded from shareholders” equity. The Series B preferred stock is.not redeemable at
the option of the Company ,

In December 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the réphrchase of i t $100 millicn of its
common stock, in part, to minimize the dilutive impact of our equity compensation programs over time. As of
September 30, 2006, the Company had repurchased approximately 240,000 shares of its common stock for an
aggregate pnce of approxrmately $10 million” under this repurchase program,

. Effectlve December 14; 2005 the Company retired all of its treasury stock, whlch consisted of 13 759 865
common shares. Upon retrrement the excess of the aggregate Lreasury stock purehase price over par value was i

-reclassified to additional pard in capital. .
: ¥ SV e, Lo : ) .
' In March- 2006, the Company issued' 1,975,000 shares of common stock at an offering price per share of
$53:50. The offering raised approxlmalely $105 million in net proceeds. . S

KALLRIPRIL [ Ty L DI

12. Earmngs per Share . .

‘The fo]lowmg isa reconcrlrauon of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earmngs per
share (“EPS”) computations: :

L * " .~ Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended Fiscal Year Ended

- e 4 - el September30 2006 . September 24, 2005 September 25, 2004
R e e T -~ Per - - -+ - Per ’ : < Pér”
o . - . . .Income ., Shares. Share Income Shares Share  Income Shares-,. Share
v oo oo LT . (in thousands, except per share amounts) )
Basic EPS: i o
 Netincome available to, R AR
' common shareho]ders $65 534 22, 611 $ 2, 90 $53 787 20; 8!3 $ 2 58 $41, 350 20,0367 $ 2. 06
Effect of dilutive securities: B |
Options to purchase - TNV PO e -7.. T T A B L LA S TR L
;- commonstock . . ... 2 L. 320 (004 . 517 (0.06) . © 715 £ (0.07)
Restricted shaves® . ... ;. ...r o+ — — 110 (o1 50 .. —
"Convertible preferred S : . . . P
TstockiSon L YLt T T B (001)“‘ EUWA 86 001y R o N T e
Drluted EPS: e E R R R PO L v T L LN S T R
Net i jncome availableto . o . . . Eoeow s L

- common sharehoidérs . ."'$'6'5,5§2 :'2'3,'0"1'8" §°585" §$53,787" 21,526 '$2.50 .$41,350" 20,801 '$ 199

Optrons to purchase 1,631,361 shares of common stock at prices ranging from $12.80 to $53.71 per share
were outstanding at September 30, 2006, Of these shares, 87, 584 were not included i in the computatron of diluted
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earnings per'share because the option exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common
shares and; therefore, the effect of including these options would be anti-dilutive. Options to purchase 1,639,701 -
shares of common stock at prices ranging from $7.64 to $48.14 per share were outstanding.at September. 24;
2005. Of these shares, 35,730 were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share.because the °
option exercise-prices were greaier than the average market price of the common shares and, therefore, the effect:
of including these opticns would be anti-dilutive. Options to-purchase 1,980,940 shares of common stock at - =
prices ranging from-$1.30 to $38.41 per share were outstanding at September 25, 2004. Of these shares, 52,310 .
were not included.in the computation-of diluted.carnings per share because the option exercise prices were = .

greafer thidn the average market price of the common shares and therefore the effect of mc!udmg these,options paeee -
would be anti: dllutlve i REx 0k vk 'ﬁ“’ AT IR ia y R BANSIE Lo

13. Quarterly Financial Data — Unaudited .

i T T LR S .t [ B Fiscal2006 . o E
T I - b T e Quarter 2™ Quarter 3% Quarter 4% Quarter!
' C T (in thousands, except per share amounts)

Netsales . ......oovniniii i $292,731 $401,332 $506,694  $420,774
Gross profit ....... 1 1..... el e 91,998 T 136,752 (171,711 134,858
Netincome .....% ... .. 0. o s 2560 . 26,225 30,730 6,019
Net income per common equivalent share

Basic ......... ..., e e feeeewe %012 05 02108, 1318 026

Diluted .............cc i T L8 .0120% 117 0% 128 8 025
Weighted average commeoen equivalent shares outstanding:

BasiC ..t e 21,335 21,694 23,377 23,582

Diluted .............. Penieaes e 21,826 22415 24,066 23,911

Fiscal 2005
. 1#Quarter 2% Quarter 3 Quarter 4" Quarter?

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Nétsales ... ...... e e OO " $265,576 $378,854 $413,193  $323,021

Grossprofit .. ........... H ety Toie. o B6041 T126,874 130,252 99,488
Netincome .......... A T L RATOR 2,516 22,372 22,183 6,716
Net income per common equivalent share . -
CBAsIC L RO ;... %012 8 108 .8 106 .$ 032
Diluted ..........c0 i $ 012 $ 104.% L 03 $ 031
Weighted average common cquwa]em shares outstandmg coaom co
"BASIC L. ei e A T e 20,539 20,760 - 20,890 © 21,062
Diluted .......... FUACERAN e 21,264 21,515 21,603 - 21,787 .

(1) Fiscal 2006 contains 53 weeks, with the extra week included in the fourth quarter. Fiscal 2005 contains 52
“weeks. The fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 includes an income tax benefit of $1.5 million to adjust prior year
tax accruals.
(2) The fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 includes an income tax beneﬁt of $1.5 million to adjust prior year tax h
-accruals. ... S _—
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14, Transactmns w1th Related Partres

Tl e S TGl et
Dunng fiscal 2006 2005 and 2004, subsrdranes of the Compary purchased approxrmately $1.5 miillion,

* $1.7 million and $2.1 million, respectively, of products from Bio Plus, Inc., a company that produces granu]ar
peanut hulls- “As;of September 30, 2006 and September 24, 2005, the Company owed Bio Plus, Inc. _
approxrmately '$52,000'and $13,000; respectwely, for such purchases. Such amounts were included in accounts
payable as of that date. A director of the Company is a minority shareholder and a director of Bio Plus, Inc.

" . During fiscal 2006, Tech Pac; a.subsidiary of the Company, made purchases from Contract:Packaging; Inc,
(“CPI'), Tech Pac’s principal supplier. The relationship between Tech Pac and CPl is discussed in'Note 1 -

Organization and Significant Accountmg Policies. Tech Pac’s total purchases from CPI were approximately
$37,000,000 for the: year: ended-Séptember 30, 20006. Amounts due to’ and from CPI as of September 30, 2006

werenotmatenal . : L et e e

A . . ., . P .
NS R i’"."

- - ‘ RS T

. An operatmg segment is deﬁned as a portion of an enterpnse engaged in busmess activitiés about Wthh

separate financial mfonnauon is available and evaluated regularly by the chref operaung decrsron—maker in.,
determmmg how to-allocate resources and in assessmg performance The Company s chief operatmg dCCISl()I'l-

maker is our Chief Executive Ofﬁcer Operating segments are managed separately because each segment )
represents a strateglc business,that offers different products or services. Our Chief Execuuve Ofﬁcer evaluates
“performarnice based on profit or-loss from.operations. The Company 5 Corporate division is mcluded in l;he
following presentatron since certam Jevenues and expenses of this division are not allocated separately fo the two

operating segmeénts. Segment assets exclude cash equlvalents short-term mvestments deferred taxes and -
goodw111 . :

rr J‘ l'
o TR ,

15 Busmess Segment Data

it

il
Management has‘determmed that the Company has two operatmg segments which are also reportable .

segments based on the level at.which the Chief Executive Officer reviews the results of operations to make™
decnslons regarding performance assessment and resource allocatron These operatmg segments are the Pet
Products Group and the Garden Products Group : A

1
]

- T ’ . RPN T TR
+ . The Pet Products Group segment consists of Four Paws Products, TFH Publrcanons Kaytee All-Glass!
Aquarium, Kent-Marine, Interpet, Energy Savers Unlimited, Pets.International, Breeder’s Choice and-Life .
Sciences. These businesses are engaged in the manufacturing, purchase, sale and delivery of mtemally and °
externally produced pet supphes -books and food principally to independent pet distributors, national and .+ ..
regional retailer chains, grocery’ stores; mass merchants and bookstores. The Garden Products segment consists
_of Pennmgton Seed, Matthews Four Seasons, Grant’s, Norcal Pottery, AMBRANDS, Ll]ly Miller, New Eng]and
Pottery, Gulfstream and GKI/Bethlehem Lighting. Products manufactured, designed and sourced; or distributed
are’products found typrcally in the lawn and garden sections of mass merchandisers, warehousé-typé clubs, home
improvement centers and nurseries and ificlude grass seed, bird feed, clay pottery, outdoor wooden planters and
trellises, herbicides and insecticides. These products are sold directly, to national and regional retail chains, :.. .
independent gar'den'distributors, ‘grocery stores, nurseries and garden supply retailers. :
The Corporate- drvrsron includes expenses associated with corporate functlons anid projects erdin”
emp]oyee benefits; goodwrll interest income, interest expense and intersegment ehmmanons
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Financial information relating to the Company’s business segments for each of the three fost récént fiscal

-

years is. presented m the table below I T PRI _ ke LA . .
s _ R e : wa.—-, Hfl‘ e e TR, e,
: o R S ! higal Year Ended
‘} " e ) J_ Vore Co. o September 30, September 24,  'Séptember 25,
s e W, 1 C L2006 . 0 D005 o+ . 2004 ¢
£ :‘ s ' : e * . . {inthousands)
Net sales ) : :

Pet Products:™. L.t 2. o vde e Mot e 1 $50819,159 0 .8 639,153 ¢ $ 568,942

Garden' Products S A T S PR SR toe 8023720 - 741,491 © - 697,584
Total ... oe o L 51,621,531 * $1,380644 "$1,266,526 1

. . L ! ' H | = - . .
Income from operations: .

Pet Products ... ....ov'vuvnee o ii i, $ 104513 % 83712 § 61,392

Garden Products ....... ... ... ... i 57,473 . 47079 42,872

COTPOTAIE . -« e e e ettt et et e e e ia e e (25.184)° ' (30,662) ~ (22,192)

Total - ' 136,802 ." " 100,129 " 82,072

Interest expense e O I S SR - (40,67T) (23,125) (18,282)

“ntérestincorne ... 11 ..., DU Toloaliaanoaes e 03,007 - 246540 ' TMIS29

Othérincome ~....:. 0l . ....vu. oot ol ' 3,083 - 4,576 2,023

Income taxes .. ..0......... L TR, -(35,791) ' * (30,258) (24;992)

Minority interest ... ... Ll (890 R : —
NEEIICOME . & . v e o s et e e eeneeeeeneseneesne § 63,534 $..53787 'S 41350 - .
Assets: P

PEEPIOGUCES -« -« v v v e et e e e e e et e e e $ 470,194 $ 273481 § 245212

GardefPrOdUCts ... ... oivu ot e 424639 330884 330,362

Corporate,. clumnatlons and all other ............. PN - 638,990 - 451,984 384,623
Total .o....... ... ROV SRS P ' '$1,533,823" $1,056,349 S “960,197

Dcprecmtlon and amortization: ‘ ,
Pet,Products ...« ... b ot idt oo L 08 01631200 8 12,120 +§ 11,827

Garden Products «... ¢ i, oot loiii ot s, < 06095, 6,663 - 5694
_ Corporate B O I P S S woeo, - 1,550 - BIT iy .- 995
Total ...... L ML T8 23,957 38 19,600 -8 18,516
o e e LuT ME e = T . —

Expendxtures for. long llved assc’.ts RTINS G G e wn “ o
Pet Products ....... e e s e - $ 16433 §. 11,518 $ . 12,930
Garden Products ........... cea e e e o 12, 457, . . 4534 4119
Corporate ...... T e e Lo, 18, 699 . 2,024 . 1,215
Total .-........ . e SR DR AN AP AP c5o . 3 7 47,589 .. $ 18,676 - % 18,264
- [P i T . . N - H - .1 .o .' - e

" Minority interest is assqcialted with the Garden Proquct§ segment. ' )

S L R Sk S S
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16. Consolldatlng Condensed Fmanelal Informatlon of Guarantor Suh51d|ar|es

Certain 100% owned subsndlanes'of the Company (as listed below, collectively the “Guarantor
Subsidiaries”) have guarameed ful]y and uncond1t1onally, ona Jomt and several basis, the obligation to pay
principal and interest on the Company's $150,000,000 9-1/8% Senor Subordinated Notes (the “Notes”) issued

on January 30, 2003. Certain $ubsidiaries and operating divisions are not guarantors of the Notes and have been

included in the financial results of the Parent in the information-below, These Non-Guarantor entmes are not-
material to the Parent. Those subsidiaries that are guarantors of the Notes are as follows: - [CRRE S RTINS

* Farnam Companies, Inc. (including, Thompson’siVeterinary Supplies, Inc.) . o0 an
Four Paws Products Ltd. TR
Grant Laboratories, Inc. ey R . o . :
. Gulfstream Home & Garden, Ing. . ~ T ity e
, - Interpet USA, LLC - O | ' o R

Kaytee Products, Incorporated ..
Matthews Redwood & Nursery Supply, Inc. .
' New England Pottery, LLC :"",:" R RS e
" Norcal Pottery Products, Inc:-"." . < R . : corree
Pennington Seed, Inc. (mcludmg Phaeton Corporatlon (dba Unicorn Labs),.Pennington Seed; Inc, of:

Nebraska, Gro Tec, Inc., Seeds West, Inc., All-Glass Aquarium Co., Inc. (including Oceanic .

Systems, Inc.) and Cedar Works, LLC._ K R . et ke
Pets International, Ltd. Rk LTI R TR A
T.F.H. Publications, Inc. wiEo . Vi

Wellmark lntemanonal

c -

.{ et . :'.’

[n lieu of prov:dmg separate audued financial statements for the Guarantor Subsndlanes the Company has
included the accompanying consohdatmg ‘condensed financial statements based on the Company’s understanding
of the Securities and Exchange Comrmssmn 5 lnterpretatlon and appllcauon of Rule 3-10 of the Securities and
Exchange COIDmlSSlOn s Regulauon S-X

1

L — - -a s mmms

" CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

PR YL

R _.‘:1 T PR L Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006
e ‘ ." - - ”"_"": P -t ‘ - . i (ln thOUSBlldS) .
v R T ik ‘Unconsolidated . R
o - h T - . ) Guarantor % . g e vt
. .. .J . Parent Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net sales .................................. $495,431 $1,234 061, $(107 961) " $l 621 331
Cost of goods sold and opcupancy e 348,724 845,456 7 (107.961) . I 086 219
. Grossprofit ......... ..ol e 146,707 388,605 LT L. 535312
Sellmg, general and administrative expenses ..... 132,311 T 266,199 7T e ‘ 308, 510
. Income from operations . . ...... REEEREE 14,396 122406 - i ',3,- 136 802
Interest —net ....... P PP (37,890) - 220 — (37,670
Other income (expense) ............ Vil ' (1:675) - 4,758 oot foeale L3083
Income (loss) before income taxes ....s ... .... (25,169)- ° 127,384 = loe2is
Incometaxes ...........ccoiiriiiiniiiiinn.n. 9,249 (45,040) . == ro; 0 (35791)
Minority interest ... .: et (890) —_ L e e (890)
Net income (loss) before equity in undistributed SRR : . -
.~ income of guarantor subsidiaries ............. (16,810) " 82,344 b 65 534
Equity in undistributed incoine of guarantor ot o : ANt
subsidiaries ...... Ve Gogreeee,82,344 - 82,344y - | -

Netincome (loss) ........0........ [ Lo 5655347 %8 82344 $ (82,344) $ 65534
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el g - CONSOLIDATING .CONDENSED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS -
. , Fiscal Year Ended September 24, 2005
It R AL S S BTN . ¢ - iy oo(inthousands) . v N Doy
AR AR SRR S . vior s b o iUnconsolidated it o, e Lol e o e
| Il et g ‘_;ﬁ-.." - L T RN Guaranfoi-,lv,‘.' vy N, ' v s
| N § T PR Cole e s e _Parent __, Subsidiaries - -, Eliminations .  Consolidated,

Net sales: . onil oot ooe, oved o )L i $449 562 s' $1,019:165. - .. * $(88,083)... . . ~$1,380,644
Cost of goods sold and occupdncy- .~ .. 2. 319,399 wun 706,673 - (88,083y - -, 1. 937,989 .

o < . LGrossprofit ... ...t ._:g=.='¢ 1304163t 312, 442,655
Selling, general and administratwe

EXpenses . ....... e 119,954 222,572 LT E— .+ 342,526
Income from operations . . ........ L. 10,209 89,920 e # AT L 00,129

IMETESt = DB -+ st eeeeeeaneeraeannns (20,931) T T 20,660)
Otherincome ................ e 2,086 . 2490° - CrTemre o 4,576

' Income (loss) before income taxes ... ..... 8636) 92681 3. .,.— Lo 84045
INCOME LAXES ...\ teoeeee . SRR 3,109 (33,182). 5. ., (185), .. (30258)

Netincorhie:(loss) before equity in® <soti’s <« 0 7 Jant s " oo dn n) onl sl 0 0
undistributed incomne of gUArantor: ' <ttt ot el e LERTP TS I O ORI
subsidiaries ........o i (5,527)° V7159499 bt o v (185) - 53,787

Equity in undistributed income of guarantor R | I
subsidiaries ........... . ieeaaiann 59,314 —_ A1 (59314) 0 T —

Netincome (10S5) - - -+ vvveeeeeeennens $ 53787 § 59499  $(50'499y T-$" 53,787

O T L B AR [ O D T L PR o T U U T N - PR T SRS N
BT Y| PR T S R I CONSOLIDAT[NG GONDENSED STATEMENT.OF OPERATIONS H
o e PR o0 B TN R Flscal Year%‘nded September25,2004 A e
e ! T _! (il thousands)*' ' )
Unconsolidated "~ "~ *° 7
Y SCERASLY) B AL A R TR M Guarantor
L Lo “om onteT Y+t Parent Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated

RN -
Nel salcs CITTTTU TN Q'.'}...';..'-._..'.' TaTTT8412,783 $ 941,625 - $(87,882) $1,266,526
Cost of goods sold and ocCUpancy ... ... . 301,214 668,986 . {87,973) 882,227

: '-l'-:’"- ' YR (LY ‘. ...:u.,

Gross: proﬁt—r-.«.—.-.—.—.-.—....-.'-. SEEL nis6e.. 272,639 91 384,299
Selling, general and admlmstratwe L : ’ ‘ SR Coe e

JeXPENses ... ... e, AU 166.43é 195,789 - M S 302227
LT

a0y o

Interest — net (17908) " 155 N Y A

Ottier income ... ... :;: RO . 1696 0 o Tt T o 702023
o ' . ' . f} e e ' - b
Ir;come (loss) before mcome taxes:.—.v_ ...... (1‘2;&5,0) N 78 701 91 .., = 66342 '

Incomelaxes AL SN TS - 4694 (29652) (38 o, (24.992)

';_ Income from operations ... ...\l .. 5, i31 T 76850 0 91 l 82,072

Net income (loss) before equity in . '-:" e, L AT T
:*undistributed income of guarantor s .o S S

SUDSIQIANIES e v eevaineenean. (1,756) ‘49,.04_9; . ST, 41350
Equity in undistributed income of guarantor - .- - .+, . N Seox e

SUDSIGHAIIES, -« v vevenenanseneeens 49,106 rten o (49,106), i e
NeLANCOME (I055)-r. "+ v v eeeneenr $41,350 5 40089 - 3(49049) - 37 41350

PRI " L * PN R R LI I R
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Tl e e s A T et e ) CONSOL]DAT[NG CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET
: o September 30, 2006
[P PRI T (in thousands)

—. e - Sere . - ‘l. . 'r'- —I.-' ceve 4 ==y Uncons()]jdated

e o,
i ERRS [TWRN

o me :.‘, B :‘”‘.m." T Guarantor
Ve i T ce Trm g Parent Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
- T A-SSETS““ T . PE e . L
Cash and cash equivalents . ., ... ... nc 0Ll ce:- 39087 519319 % .o §1,.28,406
Restricted investments ...t~ 2., . et e e — - P =, . =
Accounts receivable, net ... ., ou .. [ TR P 58,239 201,771 (20,838) ,.,239,172
Inventories .. ........... e e T ceeee . 94155 2380594 4 —..,. . 332214
Prepald EXPEnses and"other assets o .{,).,._‘.’.S;";”. ...... .o - 18,084 | 16826 . — 34,910
e :Total current assets . .g. .: .......... Bitaeees cereree, ,,,-;l7_9,§6_5_ o 475975 “ (20,838). . 634,702
Land, buildings, improvements ‘and eqmpment met ....... 32366 130238 —. 162,604
Goodwill .. ....:vr. ... e S e . 557,820 LT eriammgr 10957820
Investment in guarantors . ........... R Lol M2 — (542 121) - =
Other assets ; e T T T 74,820 106,540 (2,663) 178 697
Total ... 7300l Fe e R $1,386,692 $712 753 $(565 622) $1,533,823
iy« oo fey LIABILITIES 40 0 ° 0 o Arge 5o tima
Accounts payable ....... e teeodm ..., 8056925 .8 86,873 1$:(20,838) § 122 960
Accrued expenses and other habllmes :(_I" T . ’ 30,219 54 125 e T 84 344
e aTotal current llablllIICS .; ........ el ceeese 87,044 140,998 (20,838);,.,-207,304
Long-term debt . vi...... LI TR RN P 565 250 16Q e s T e 203,410
Other long-term obllganons .......... AN 2, 772 ] g 29 474 . -4(2,663). . ,m29 583
Converuble redeemable preferred stock .x 3 OOO Tl T e e, 3,000
Mmonty mterest T e ST 1,167 —_ = . l 167
Total shareholders’ equlty e L T 727,359 0 542,121 (542,121 727 359
Total ..... e e $1,386,692 $712,753  $(565,622) $1,533,823
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AR L SRR CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET
A T September 24, 2005
— A - (in thousands)
I Unconsolidated
L : . . - . Guarantor
cane Do b e U Parent  Subsidiarles ~FEliminations Consolidated
) ASSETS Tat e '
- Cash and cash equivalents . ........ ... L U $2732 § 6 060 $o0 -t 28792
. . Accounts receivable, net ..T. ... .. LR e 501804 “““l"&?"ﬁ‘lwrZS})'mT&é!SQGm
' Inventories ...::\........... e L ... 71871 198865 ' - — - 270,736
Prepmd expenses and other assets ..... P A ) 12,903 - 12,950 — - 25,853
N4 I ' Lt R T L I G

TotaJ current assets . .. ......... L. :'. RIS L.... 158,310 365,392 (13,425 510,277
Land "buildings; lmprovcments and equlpmcnt net .. ...... 11,154 - 99441 7 =" - "~ 110,595
Goodwill .. ... ... e 364,847 . - == Lo 364,847
Investment in guarantors ../ ........ Sl wn. 371,249 C e (371,249 ' =
Other assets \. =)= ... e SERAIRRIS ... 38338 - 35737 - (3,445) ' 70,630
U ol e $943,898  $500,570  $(388,119) $1,056,349

7" " 'LIABILITIES © ¢ S S
Accounts payable ....... ... ... .. i $ 43,383 §$'66;497 3 (13 425) $ 96455
Accrued expenses ‘and other habllmes RS DI 28,402 41,960 o2 T 70362

] . LA A . [

Total currenl‘habllmes T e 71,785 108 457 (13 425) 166,817
Longiterm debt .. [3..... .. P v 320,731 123 - <o 320,854
Other long-term obligations - ........ . .-.‘.‘:’" ...... Vet 1,204 - 20,741 - (3,445)"‘ 18,500
Convertible redéemable preferred stock -\ ........ e 3000 - - — Foewtnoe 0 3,000
Total shareholders equity ... ........ ............. . 547,178 371,249 ' {371, 249) '547'178

..'T_otal PP $943,898  $500,570 ° $(388,119) $1,056,349
' ! _f_" "
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71

N A S L oL . + + CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
L ' : Fiscal Year Ended
- N September 30, 2006
Ve (in Ihousands) ;
moTT RN Unconsolidated "'
T R T Guarantor . '
' T ) ‘ Parent Subsidiaries Eliminations ' ~ Consolidated :
Net cash pr0v1ded (used) by operanng activities . .y !$ (86 263) . $263,773, .$(82,344) . § 95-166-*‘
Addmons to propefty-. . .. ...... .: A ' (22 438) (25,151) — (47,589):+
Businesses acquired, net of cash acquired ......." L+ (68,089)  (312,601) . — 1 (380,690)
Colléction of note related to lmgatxon settlcmcm .. ' 16,058 © © 16,058 ¢
Restricted investments ........... . ... ........ ¢ (15,500) e iy 13 (15,500) - )
[nvestmem in guarantor S........ o (169,598) .« 87,254 . 82,344 "Lt — . o
Nef cash provided (used) by investing activities ." . ,;(259.567) (250,498) 821344 " (427,721)
Repayments on revolving line of credit ... .......:, ¢(878,678) . — « . @ »w— ‘ (873.678) o
Borrowings on revolving line of credit .......... 982,530 — v 1— .1 982,530 ¢
Repaynients of Yong-term debt . ................ (473,376) 54+t uiwnr L (473 322) s
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt . . . . .. b 600,000 - S 600,000" i
Procéeds from issuance of common.stock .. . .. . 114,297 - — et 14297
Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards . . ... B 4,026 - — T tatiot 4026 -
Repurchase of common stock ..... e e (10,014) — — 4 , . (10,014).
Payment of financing costs .................., {6,600) Mz e s+ (6,600)
Net cash prowded (used) by financing activities . 332,185 oA L — . 332,239
Effect of.exchange rates oncash . ....... . - —_ e (70) . — - (70) . .
" Net increase” (decreasc) in cash and cash - '
equivalents . ... .. (13,645) 13,259 — . (386). '
Cash and'cash equwale_nls at begmnmg of year . + 22,732 6,060 — 28,792 -
Cash and cash equivalents 4t enid of year ......... $ 9087 $ 19319 $ — $ 28,406
SR
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- . . .‘ -
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‘ . CENTRAL GARDEN & PET COMPANY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—~(Continued)

con et e w5 ICONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A 0 e Fiscal Year Ended
; L September 24, 2005
. TR o Ju,{”mﬂi“"‘ av. S - '(’il.f':}w?sands}
) h s e - - Unconsolidated
LI . S L' : N Guarantor :
N STt e L Parent Subsidiaries Eliminations- - Consolidated .
Net cash pr0v1ded by operatmg activities' . o...: 0 § 91,796 - 825362 - §(59.499) 3 57,659
Additionstoproperty .........: 0o .. v . (259) (18,417_} — v (18,676)
Businesses acquired, net of cash acquued - (62,194 . — . = . (62,194)
Restricted investments ............... N . 5062 . . — .. .= 15062
Investment in guarantor ..................- ... o (BL766) (7,733) 59499 0 —
Net cash prov1ded (used) by investing activities - o (99,157). . _(26,150) 59499 . . . (65.808):;

Repaymcn[s on rcvolvmg line of credity REEREry»; %“T(’QQLOOO) R . ' - v (291v000)
Proceeds from issuancgofglon® 75,000 — — 75,000
o e o crcclt ... L2000 - — e . 236,000 -
Payments on long-termdebt .. ............. L (1.574) 20, b - | (1,554)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ..... 7. ¢ 7,926 —_ . —_ - 41,926
Payment of financing costs ................. La, e (533) — ce o . (533)
Treasury stock purchases ................. ..., . (754) — L= .. (754)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities .. = 25,065 20,00 L — 25,085
Effect of exchange ratesoncash ............:..0 * — (365) v (365) -
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash : 1 _ . Coe . ‘
equivalénts ........ ... ..ol , 17,704 »(1,133) o — 16,571
Cash.and cash equivalents at beginning of year . 5028 - 7,193 Tl 12,221
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .. . ...... $ 22732 § 6060 - - $ — .- $-28792'F
P :__-_;_' Yoo = ., = =—=1."r
s CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
’ v - ‘ Fiscal Year Ended
OIS “.4+ ' SEPTEMBER 25,2004
eomm A, T " (in thousands)
Unconsolidated
Guarantor
. Parent Subsidiaries  Eliminations  Consolidated
Net cash provided by operating activities ........ $ 79478 $ 33,985 $(49,049) § 64414
Additions to property ................ L . (1,418) {16,846) —_ (18,264)
Businesses acquired ......... ... o (158,947 — — (158,947
Restricted investments .............cvenn... .. (14,936) - — ‘ —_ (14,936) -
[nvestment in guarantor ...................... (37,745) (11,304) 49,049 —
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities ... (213,046) {28,150) 49,049 (192,147)
Repayments on revolving line of credit .......... (87.823) —_ — (87,823)
Borrowings on revolving line of credit....... .. .o 142,823 — — 142,823
Repayments of long-termdebt ................. (1,000) (28) — (1,028)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ........ 8,242 _— _ 8,242
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities . .. 62,242 (28 — 62,214
Effect of exchange ratesoncash ............... — 136 — 136
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash _
Cequivalents ... (71,326) 5,943 — (65,383)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .. .. 76,354 1,250 . — 77,604
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ......... § 5028 $ 7,193 $ — O $ 12,221
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on-Accounting and Financial Disclosure 1

None.. '+ - . . . _ oo Coa

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Pmcedures Our Chief Executwe Officer and Chlcf Flnan(:lal
Officer have reviewed, as of the end of the period covered by this Teport, the “disclosure controls and
procedures” (as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rules'13a+15(¢} and -15d-15(e)) that ensure that

information relating to thé Company required to be disclosed by us in thie reports that we file.or submit under the

Exchange Act, is recorded, processed, summarized and reported in a timely and proper manner and that such
information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding rcqulred dlqclosure Based upon this
review, we believe that the controls and procedures in place are effective to ensure that information relanng o
the Company that is required:to be disclosed by. us-in the reports that we file.6r submit under the Exchange; Act is
properly disclosed as required by the Exchange Act and related regulanons T P
I PR S B
(b) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Central’s management, with the participation of
Central’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated whether any change in Central’s
internal control over financial reporting occurred during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006. Based on that
evaluation, management concluded that there has been no change in Central’s internal control over financial
reporting during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 that has materially. affected, or is reasonably likely to materially.
affect, Central’s internal control over financial reporting.

. - - T
vt e A

. {c) Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. A copy of our management’s
report and the report of Deloitte & Touche LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, are included
in Item' 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

Item 9B, Other Information ' ) N L

None.

R L T N AUARCE

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executivé Oﬂ'lcers of the Reglstrant ] v

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to all of our executive officers and dlrectors a copy of which
was filed as Exhibit 14 to our Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 24, 2005,
Ly 0o
The remaining information required by this item is incorporated by reference from Central’s Definitive
Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Election of Directors,”
“Further Information Concerning the Board of Directors - Committees of the Board” and “Section 16(a)

Beneficial Qwnership Reporting Compliance.” See also Item 1 — Business above.
Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from Central’s Definitive Proxy
Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption “Executive Compensation.”
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners-and Management ...~ .. -1

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from Central’s Definitive Proxy. -
Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Ownership of Management and
Principal Stockholders™ and “Equity Compensation Plan Information.”

! " 'n Lo

Item 13 Certaln Relatlonshlps and Related Transactrons | , . .

“The information'required by this item is’ mcorporated by reference from Central’s Deﬁmtlve Proxy
Statement for-its-2007: Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the captions “Compensanon Commrttee lnterlocks
and Insider Participation™ and ”Transaclrons w1th ithe Company B ol

AN BT EHEN IS I ShENR s | 1 SERCE I A R P T T I - i RSN

LE] . o '
' . H
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¥ e g e

Item 14 Prmclpal Accountant Fees and Ser\’lces \ _

~The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from Central s Definitive Proxy
Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders under the caption “Indépendent chlstered Public

Accounting Firm.”
) ‘o K . L AR I I U L o

T P IR v - LT :
e e PARTIV - .
L o ' T, YA :

Item 15 Exhlblts and Fmanc:al Statemernit Schedules P N L A
{a) The following documents are filed as part of this report: ST 7 '

(1) Consolidated Fmanc1al Statemems of Central Garden & Pet Company are included in Part II,
ftem 8 . f . . . . PR F K ) e N

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting’
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets T SN
Consolidated Statements of Operations )

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Stat;ments; -

All other schedules are omitted because of the absence of conditions under which they are required or
because the required lnformallon is included in the consolidated financial statements or noies lhereto ’
L IEUR I 73 L SO P S N - . .
2y Exhlblts

See attached Exhibit Index.
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SIGNATURES -

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the i'f_:gistrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized,

Date: December 14, 2006 - L et ‘ "

’

' ‘CENTRAL GARDEN & PET COMPANY
By /s/  GLENN W. NOVOTNY

«" Glenn W.Novotny - -« =i+ -
-+ Chief Executive Officer, Presidént and Director

f . . e Covy i, et .

Pursuant to the requirements of the’ Securities ‘Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been-signed below by
“the following persons,on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities indicated,

Signature : ’ L kCal')acily' ’i P o Dote . |
fs/ GLENN W. NovoTny Chief Executive Officer, President - December 14, 2006 :
Glenn W. Novotny SR and Director (Principal =~ .*". 7. .o N |
' ' Executive Officer) . L
" /s/_STUARTW.BootH ' Executivé Vice Prébidentand " " "Décember'14, 2006 o
Stuart W. Booth - o Chief Financial Officer o Co ;
Y ' (Principat Financial Officer and,. - . .. . ,, ' o i
. . Principal Accounting Officer), -« « .. .. .. .. ' !
o T e . ] |
4 - - - .

/s/ JoHN B. BALOUSEK : ~ Director ' o December 14, 2006 |

John'B. Balougék o LN -

/s/ WiLLIaM E. BROWN o © ., . - Chairman ... . ", <. December 14, 2006 °

" William'E. Brown * ' I R PR o
o= . tor * * e | . - .
/s/{ _DAVIDN.CHICHESTER _~ ‘+*" ' ° Director - " "' Decémber 14, 2006
David N. Chichester : g ot TE R T e e '
* oo N * e * NFERITT SN & PR [ AN B .
/s!/ BROOKS M. PENNINGTON, 11 ' " DirectorT M Decembér 14, 2006

Brooks M. Penhington, 111 o o ' Mk,w,fmu
o - . < . “f,__ ” .1 G -{/ 'y : ‘
s/ ALFRED A. PIERGALLINI . Dcsqml:gc;r 14,2006 - .

Alfred A. Piergailini

: P R R T W’wﬁ?"( e . . Ly N "y P14 4
/s/ BRUCE A7WESTPHAL % T -t Diréctor - - <1+ “December 14,2006
G ] T R S RN B o I S S &
Bruce A. Westphal ’ L ; ! ,
+ N 1 I _l". r LV B . ' 4 !
. ': i +y oy i 1
" oy i ¥T -1 :_
. P . L. e T T :_,.;,'. N . b
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EXHIBIT- INDEX

- Set forth below is & list of exhibits that are berng ﬁled or mcorporated by reference into this Form 10- K

r

- TH .. gt o v . N (] I EI v IR R
Exhibit .
Number - Exhibit . o
- L o ~~w1‘1u-._..,, e
21 Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of January 19, 2006 among Central Garden & Pet Company, the

- Duff Family Revocable Trust and the Bassham Trust Regarding Ali of the Outstanding Stock of
Farnam Companies, Inc. ([ncorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K ﬁled ] anuary 20, 2006)

2.2 Amendment dated February 28, 2006 to Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of January 19, 2006,
-,among Central Garden,& Pet Company, the Duff Family Revocable Trust and the Bassham Trust
Regardmg All of the Outstanding Stock of Farnam Companies, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to

C -, » 'Exhibit.2.1 10,the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 2, 2006). ..

31.  Fourth Amended and Restated Ceftificate of Incorporation, including the Cerfificate of Désignation —
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock and Certiﬁcate of Designation — Series B Convertible Preferred
Stock SN . . N

32 Copy of Registrant’s Bylaws (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 to Registration Statement ;

~ No. 33-48070).

4.1 (iSpecimen Common Stock Certificate (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to Regtstratron ' .
“Statement No. 33-48070). .

4.2 Indenture dated as of January 30 2003‘between the Company, Wells Fargo and the Subsrdrary
Guarantors name therein (Incorporated by reférence from Exhibit 4.1 to Registration Statement on *
Form S-4 No. 333 103835).

. L
10.1* Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and Executive Ofﬁcers ‘and’ Dlrectors
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.18 to Registration Statement No. 33- 48070).

10.2 -+ 'Credit"Agreement dated as of February 28,:2006 among Central Garden & Pet Company, the 5
- Subsidiary Borrowers from time to time party thereto, the Lenders from time to time party thereto -
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association, as Administrative Agent, Bank of America, N.A., as

. -Syndication Agent, CIBC World Markets Corp., Suntrust Bank and Union Bank of.California, N A,
as Co-Documentation Agents, and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. and Bang of America Securities LLC
\ - as Joint Bookrunners and Joint Lead Arrangers (Incorporated by reference from Exhibif 10.1 to the

~ Company $,current report on Form §- K ﬁled March 2, 2006).

‘ N o ‘ - L
v, [ NP KN

10.3* 1993 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan, as amended (Incorporated by reference from Exhrbrts 4.1t0
“_ . the Company’s Registration Statements Nos. 33-7236, 33-89216, 333-1238 and 333-41931)

18

10.4* 2003 Omnibus Equrty Incentive Plan ([ncorporated by reference from: Exhibit 10.8' to the’ Company s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 29, 2003). - W

10.4.1% ;. Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement for 2003 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan.

(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5.1to the Company’s Form 10-K for the f' scal year |
ended September 25, 2004). ' )

104.2* Form of Restncted Stock Agreement for 2003 Omnibus Equity Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.5.2 to the Company s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 25,
2004).

10.5% Nonemployee Director Equity Incentive Plan, as amended June 8, 2001 (Incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.12 5 the Company’s Form 10- K/A for the fiscal year ended September 29, 2001).
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' Exhibit
‘ Number

Exhibit

| 10.5.1%

10.5.2*

10.6*

10.7*°

10.7.1*

10.8%

10.9*

10,10

10.11*

10.12*

12
14

21
23
31.1
312
321
322

Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement for Nonemployee Director Equity Incentive Plan
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit-10.6.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q) for the quarter ended
December 23, 2004).

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for Nonemployee Director Equity Incentive Plan (Incorporated

by reference from Exhibit 10.6.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended December 25,
2004).

Employment Agreement dated as of February 27, 1998 between Pennington Seed, Inc. of Delaware
and Brooks Pennington III (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s Form
10-K/A for the fiscal year ended September 26, 1998).

Maodification and Extension of Employment Agreement dated as of February 27, 1998 between
Pennington Seed, Inc. of Delaware and Brooks Pennington I1I, dated as of May 6, 2003 (Incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.7.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 28. 2003).

Modification and Extension of Employment Agreement and Noncompetition Agreement, dated as of
April 10, 2006, between Central Garden & Pet Company and Brooks M. Pennington II1
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K filed
April 10, 2006).

Employment Agreement dated as of July 9, 2004 between the Company and James V. Heim.
(Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
September 25, 2004).

Form of Agreement to Protect Confidential Information, Intellectual Property and Business
Relationships (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s current report on Form
8-K filed October 14, 2005). : ' )

Form of Post-Termination Consulting Agreement (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s current report on Form 8-K filed October 14, 2005).

Employment Agreement between Central Garden & Pet Company and Bradley P. Johnson, dated
September 30, 2005 (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s current report on
Form 8-K filed October 17, 2005).

Deferred Compensation Plan of the Company dated as of December 14, 2005 (Incorporated by

reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s current report on Form 8-K filed December 20, 2005).

Statement re Computation of Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges.

Code of Ethics Form 10-K (Incorporated by reference from Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended September 24, 2005).

List of Subsidiaries.

Consent Of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a- 14(a).
Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).
Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350.
Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursvant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350.

*  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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